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— 23 409, 943343,737 851,864714,288 (52)
19 112,653 94,460 101,546 85, 146 11

18 410,475344, 183 465,741390,524 (12)

8,689 7,286 10,196 8,549 (15)

19 131,352110, 139 197,254165,397 (33)

20,21,22 33,986 28,497 42,998 36,054 (21)

1,291,905083,262, 974,282655, 435 (35)

356 299 293 246 22
34,786 29,168 25,250 21,172 38
(4,875) (4,088) (4,335) (3,635) (12)

38 32 38 32 0
11,751 9,853 14,487 12,147 (19)
(2) (2) (46) (39) 96

(1,040) (872) (3,156) (2,646) 67

UBS 41,013 34,389 32,531 27,277 26
7.620 6,389 8,002 6,710 (5)
48,633 40,779 40,533 33,987 20

1,340,538124,042,014,815689, 422 (33)
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2007 211 12,640(10,214)(185) 47,728(1,614)2,876 (443) 38 51,037 6,089 57,126
0 0
(7,169) (7.,169) (7,169)
4,605 4,605 4,605
(4) 2,415 (2,411) 0 0
(560) (560) (560)
12 12 12
898 898 898
(557) (557) (557)
(4,275) (4,275) (400) (4,675)
111 111 111
0 996 996
0 101 101
0 (104) (104)
(5,247) (986) (1,405) 411 (7.,227) 269 (6,958)
2007 12 31 207 12,433(10,363)(74) 35,795(2,600)1,471 (32) 38 36,875 6,951 43,826
86 86 86
(367) (367) (367)
7,574 7,574 7,574
(4,626) (4,626) (4,626)
20,003 20,003 20,003
(1,961) (1,961) (1,961)
(176) (176) (176)
(423) (423) (423)
(16) (16) (361) (377)
28 28 28
0 1,618 1,618
0 12 12

99/395



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00Ono(eosss2)

Ooooooo
0 (141) (141)
(21,29203, 709 1,124) 1,659 (24,465) (77) (24,542)
2008 12 31 293 25,250 (3,156) (46) 14,487 (6,309) 347 1,627 38 32,531 8,002 40,533
UBS
63 63 63
(476) (476) (476)
2,592 2,592 2,592
(1,268) (1,268) (1,268)
10,5909 10,599 10,599
291 291 291
1 1 1
(87) (87) (87)
0 (849) (849)
44 44 44
0 (7) (7)
0 3 3
0 (13) (13)
(2,736) (136) 17 (421) (3,276) 484 (2,792)
2009 12 31 356 34,786 (1,040) (2) 11,751 (6,445) 364 1,206 38 41,013 7,620 48,633
UBS
2007 177 10,599 (8,564)(155) 40,020 (1,353p,412 (371) 32 42,795 5,106 47,900
0 0
(6,011) (6,011) (6,011)
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3,861 3,861 3,861
(3) 2,025 (2,022) 0 0
(470) (470) (470)
10 10 10
753 753 753
(467) (467) (467)
(3,585) (3,585) (335) (3,920)
— 93 93 93
0 835 835
85 85
0 (87) (87)
(4,400) (827) (1,178) 345 (6,060) 226 (5,834)
2007 12 31 174 10,425 (8,689) (62) 30,014 (2,180, 233 (27) 32 30,920 5,828 36,748
72 72 72
(308) (308) (308)
6,351 6,351 6,351
(3,879) (3,879) (3,879)
16,773 16,773 16,773
(1,644) (1,644) (1,644)
(148) (148) (148)
(355) (355) (355)
(13) (13) (303) (316)
— 23 23 23
0 1,357 1,357
0 10 10
0 (118) (118)
(17,8530)3,110) (942) 1,391 (20,514) (65) (20,578)
246 21,172 (2,646) (39) 12,147 (5,290) 291 1,364 32 27,277 6,710 33,987

2008 12 31
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UBS
53 53 53
(399) (399) (399)
2,173 2,173 2,173
(1,063) (1,063) (1,063)
8,887 8,887 8,887
244 244 244
1 1 1
(73) (73) (73)
0 (712) (712)
37 37 37
0 (6) (6)
0 3 3
0 (11) (11)
(2,294) (114) 14 (353) (2,747) 406 (2,341)
2009 12 31 299 29,168 (872) (2) 9,853 (5,404)305 1,011 32 34,389 6,389 40,779
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2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
7,381 6,189 6,381 5,350 5,633 4,723
1,618 1,357 996 835
(7) (6)
(120) (101) (618) (518) (248) (208)
7,254 6,082 7,381 6,189 6,381 5,350

2009 12 312008 12 312007 12 31 2008 12 31

2,932,580,54®73,547,34805, 273, 286 41
625,532, 28469, 033,205 1,294, 058 (27)
(33,020,000)
3,558,112279B2, 580, 4073, 547, 344 21
61,903,12158, 105, 52464, 475, 699 (61)
33,566,09713, 398, 11802, 074, 942 151
(57,915, 346)09, 600, 517)5, 425, 117) 47
(33,020,000)
37,553,8751,903, 121158, 105,524 (39)
UBS 293,258, 050
20009 15
UBS ( MCN ) 2009

332,225,913
10,370,000
98,698, 754
760, 295, 181

MCN 26

277,750,000 2008 uB
100,000,000
UBS AG
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
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(2,12501,782)20,724)17,377({4,708)3,948)

1,048 879 1,241 1,041 1,253 1,051
1,323 1,109 554 465 282 236
1,832 1,536 2,996 2,512 238 200
(387) (31) 6 5 (120) (101)
(960) (805) (7,020)5,886) (371) (311)
425 356 (797) (668) (4,085)3,425)

8,355 7,006 (47,90§)0,169)3,779 3,169

(57,32848,070)16,56%)13,886()60, 7650, 949)
162,82236, 526236, 49798, 303173, 4345, 4214

11,1189,322 350, 098%93,558 60, 72%0, 921
(23,700639,877)183,476)53, 84536, 1680, 327
2,214 1,856 7,512 6,299 (2,408)02,019)

(41,35(134,678220, 935)85, 25471, 060227, 284)
(8,62907,235)Y23,5923)19,78249,2176, 113
(505) (423) (887) (744) (3,663)3,071)

54,49745,696 77,00764,570 (52,07833,667)

(42) (85) (1,502)1,259)(2,337)1,960)
296 248 1,686 1,414 885 742
(854) (716) (1,217)1,020)(1,91001,602)
163 137 69 58 134 112
(20,12(736,876) (712) (597) 5,9815,015

(20,56@3%7,242)1,676)1,405)2,753 2,308

(60,04030,3440)40,637)34,07482,6727,395

673 564 623 522 (2,771)2,323)
3,726 3,124 23,13519,399 0 0
0 0 0 0 (4,275)3,585)

67,06256, 231 103,0886,438 110,8792, 968

(65,02(494,523()92,894)77,892)62, 407%2,328)
3 3 1,661 1,393 1,094 917

(583) (489) (532) (446) (619) (519)

(54, 18@45,432)5,557)4,660)74,5682,525
5,5294,636 (39,18)32,857)12,22810, 253)

(14,72(132,344830,58825, 648 13,0150, 913
179, 698B50, 673149, 10625, 025136, 099014, 111

164,978B38,330179, 69850, 673149, 10155, 025

20,89917,524 32,74427,456 18, 79315, 758
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2 98,4382,535 86, 73272,725 77,2154, 745

45, 643838,271 60, 21750, 492 53,0974,522

164,971388,330179,69B50,673149, 105%5,025

o008 12 31

2007 12 31 1,617 996

2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31

19,912 7,881

2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31

23,84M9,99368,2327,213103, 8287, 060
19,5976, 432 62, 2882, 22597, 4881, 745

1,090 914 2,7792,330 5,3134,455

2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31

UBS UBS

Pactual
14 12
31 26
731 613
1,3931,168

33 28 24 20
22 18

(Caisse Centrale de

REescompte Group (CCR))

405 340

114 96
(VermogensGroep)
2 2
173 145
McDonald I nvestments
3 3
262 220
(Daehan I nvestment Trust Management Company
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224 188
60 50
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management

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

29c

I FRS

UBS
SPE

SPE

SPE

SPE

Il FRS
2010
Il FRS
UBS AG
UBS
UBS
UBS
SPE
UBS

UBS
)
UBS
SPE
SPE
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1998 29
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UBS AG
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( Ri s k
| FRS
27c¢c
SPE
UBS
SPE
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UBS
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19) 28)

28)

UBS
UBS 20 50

UBS
UBS
UBS

19 28

UBS

UBS

13 14

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS UBS

27

15 UBS
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11 5
(a)
(b)
UBS
5
UBS
2008 | AS 39 b 29b
UBS 2008
20009 MBS
8
12 19
a)
b)
c)
a) i i i
UBS
9
UBS
UBS
5 7
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UBS
|l FRS
UBS
5 7
10
29
29b
290D

2008 20009 UBS

b 29 a b

UBS

110/395



EDINETOO OO
0O00000000000(E05852)
0oooood

UBS
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UBS

29c

11

90

UBS

12 UBS
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UBS

13

14

24

UBS

UBS

MB S

UBS

UBS

UBS
UBS

UBS

2008

ABS
UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UB
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S 20009
3
5
15
UBS
UBS
24
UBS
UBS

UBS

UBS
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oTC

LCH

UBS a

80 125
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16

17

18

19

26

29

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS

23

10
UBS

15

26
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UBS AG

23
UBS
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15
( )
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
8
)
UBS

19

UBS
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30
UBS

a) 10
b) 10

10 UBS

UBS
UBS
UBS

UBS

24
UBS SAR

UBS UBS
SAR

UBS

UBS
SAR SAR

UBS UBS
UBS

( Al V ) Al V
( UBS UBS
UBS )
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31
25
UBS 20

UBS

26

UBS

21
UBS
UBS
27 UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS
UBS AG
UBS
UBS

UBS UBS

UBS AG UBS
UBS UBS

UBS
UBS
UBS

28
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17 20

UBS

UBS

UBS 37

29
UBS

UBS 25
UBS
UBS UBS

UBS

UBS

30
UBS

31

UBS
CHF

32 EPS

119/395



33

20009 UBS

UBS

UBS

b)

2008

UBS 2008

UBS

I FRS

UBS
oTC
UBS

2008

20009

2008 12 31

2008

2008

2008

UBS

2008
405

2009
I AS

UBS
2008

112

180

192
65

UBS
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GEB
Il FRS
2008
20009 21 2008
100
UBS
2008 12 31
UBS
79
UBS
269
0.14



20009 I AS
UBS
20009 1 UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
I AS I AS 32
I ASB I AS
I AS 32
I AS I AS 32 I AS 39
I AS
UBS 20009
UBS
I FRS
UBS 20009 I FRS I AS
UBS
(
20009 UBS UBS
a
16
UBS
UBS
UBS
a
I FRS
| ASB
2009 20009
Il FRI C 20009
I AS 39 Il FRI C
UBS
| FRI C 15
I FRI' C 15 2008 2009

15
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| FRI C 16
I FRI C 16 2008 10 20009 Il FRI C 16
UBS
| AS 24
| ASB 2009 11 I AS 24 2011
UBS 20009
UBS UBS UBS UBS
2008 32e
2008 12 31 668
2007 12 31 530 UBS 2008
11 2007 10
20009 I TI
2008 12
228 85 20 300 (633)
328 121 28 431 (909)
163 60 15 216 (455)
(719) (267) (62) (949) 1,997
20009 UBS
UBS
2008 2008 12 31
11, 787
9, 033 UBS
2008
| FRS
UBS | FRS 2008
UBS
UBS
2006
23 23
UBS
2007 863 2006 730
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2007 2006 797
2007
2007 12 31
2007 12 31 39
( )
0.40 2006 12 31
2007

2008 10 13

2008
2008 10
29b
UBS
c) 2010
2010
2009 | FRS
20009
UBS 2010 UBS
I AS 39
I AS 39 2008
) )
| AS 39 UBS 2010
| FRS I AS 27
| ASB 2008 | FRS | AS
| FRS
| FRS | AS 27 2010
| AS 27 | AS 21
| AS 21 2010

- N
no
P
0nkF
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516
2008
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35
2007 12 31
0.33 0.31
2008
39 (1 AS 39 )
UBS 2008 10
2008 UBS
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2009 | FRS
UBS
| AS 21
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| ASB 2009 11 | FRS
| FRS | AS 39
UBS
a)
b) UBS
2013
UBS 2009 12 31 | FRS
| FRI C 14
| ASB 2009 11 | FRIC 14 | AS 19
2011
UBS
a
20009 UBS
UBS 20009
UBS 40
UBS

us
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UBS

2009 12 31

125/395

1 4,533 800 2 2,339 (1,229)6, 446
6,980 4,746 2,134 2,494 1,623 17,987
11,523 5,546 2,137 4,833 394 24,433
(133) 3 0 (1,6098) (5) (1,832)
11,390 5,550 2,137 3,135 389 22,601
5,197 4,231 996 5,568 551 16,543
2,017 1,017 387 2,628 199 6,248
(90) 4 (74) (147) 306 0
289 170 36 360 193 1,048
0 34 340 749 0 1,123
67 62 13 59 0 200
7,480 5,518 1,698 9,216 1,250 25,162
3,910 32 438 (6,081) (860) (2,561)
0 0 0 0 (7) (7)
4 3,910 32 438 (6,081) (867) (2,569)
(443)
0
(2,125)
248,140 53,197 20,238 991,964 26,998,340, 538
43 59 11 81 745 9309
! | FRS
2009 12 31 158
20 142
29
3
16 ‘UBs
38
27
UBS
2008 12 31
5,424 938 (2) 2,007 (2,375%, 992
9,989 5,340 2,906 (23,808) 3,373(2,200)
1 15, 413 6,278 2,905 (21,800) 998 3,792
(392) (29) 0 (2,575) 0 (2,996)
15,021 6,249 2,904 (24,375) 998 796
5,430 4,271 946 5,182 433 16,262
3,295 2,558 4602 3,830 353 10,498
(73) 16 88 41 (73) 0
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323 162 44 447 265 1,241
2 0 0 0 341 0 341
2 33 65 33 83 0 213
9,008 7,072 1,572 9,925 979 28,555
6,013 (823) 1,333 (34,300) 19 (27,758)
0 0 0 0 198 198
6,013 (823) 1,333 (34,300) 217 (27,560)
(6,837)
1
(20, 724)

251, 487 39,039

24,640 1,680,257 19,322014,815

275 135 430 8009 961 2,600
2008 12 31 19
22
121 40 2
16 3
1 UBS
2007 12 31
5,600 824 (76) 2009 (1,2205, 337
12,089 6,329 4,170 (747) 4,78226,622
2 17,689 7,153 4,094 (538) 3,56231,959
30 (2) 0 (266) (0) (238)
17,718 7,151 4,094 (804) 3,56231,721
6,356 5,060 1,883 11,633 583 25,515
2,514 1,209 593 3,800 312 8,429
(43) 28 73 (171) 114 0
334 163 72 4331 243 1,243
4 15 70 19 172 0 276
9,176 6,530 2,640 15,865 1,25235, 463
8,543 621 1,454 (16,669) 2,310 (3, 742)
0 0 0 0 145 145
8,543 621 1,454 (16,669) 2,455 (3,597)
1,369
(258)
(4,708)

256,738 34,730

43,5001,922,81517,1@9274,891

223 416 553 1,111 1,927 4,230
Loo7 6809
163 526 138
2007 12 31 11
39 22
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34 4
16
b
UBS
I FRS
2009 12 31
11,939 53 5,137 28
(3,999) (18) 743 4
1,264 6 1,266 7
9,333 41 9,928 55
3,770 17 451 3
294 1 565 3
22,601 100 18,090 100
2008 12 31
11,564 1,453 5,207 25
(9,219) (1,158) 805 4
6,132 770 1,337 7
(10,519) (1,321) 10,505 51
3,122 392 495 2
(284) (36) 2,184 11
796 100 20,533 100
2007 12 31
18,787 59 5,355 22
(1,671) (5) 2,336 10
2,541 8 1,006 4
880 3 11,686 49
6,393 20 388 2
4,791 15 2,980 13
31,721 100 23,751 100
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UBS
20009 2008 2007 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
6,446 5,992 5,337 8
(324) (25,820) (8,353) 99
6,122 (19,828) (3,016)
382 (27,203) (10, 658)
5,053 6,160 6,230 (18)
687 1,214 1,412 (43)
6,122 (19,828) (3,016)
13,202 20,213 21,263 (35)
2,629 22,521 48,274 (88)
7,150 22,397 39,101 (68)
316 404 298 (22)
164 145 176 13
23,461 65, 679 109,112 (64)
3,873 18,150 29,318 (79)
2,179 16,123 40,581 (86)
3,878 9,162 15,812 (58)
2,855 7,298 7,659 (61)
4,231 8,954 10, 405 (53)
17,016 59,687 103,775 (71)
6,446 5,992 5,337 8
20009 95 2008
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2009 2008 2007 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
2,462 4,694 9,048 (48)
(5,455) (35,040) (21,424) 8 4
2,668 4,525 4,023 (41)
(324) (25,820) (8,353) 99
678 (974) (30)
2 (6,741) 44,284 (3,779)
1
2
27
20009
(2008 82 )
2008
237
SNB SNB UBS
2008
52
2008 MCN (2008 46
)
2009 2008 2007 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1,590 1,138 2,564 40
796 818 1,178 (3)
2,386 1,957 3,742 22
M& A 881 1, 662 2,768 (47)
1 6,217 8,209 10,211 (24)
4,000 5,583 7,422 (28)
2 5,863 7,667 9,454 (24)
264 317 423 (17)
19,611 25,394 34,020 (23)
339 273 279 24
878 1,010 1,017 (13)
20,827 26,677 35,316 (22)
1 1,748 1,763 2,540 (1)
1,368 1,984 2,142 (31)
3,116 3,748 4,682 (17)
17,712 22,9209 30,634 (23)
4,469 6,445 7,671 (31)
L0009 UBS
2008 12 31 146 2007 12 31 70
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2009 2008 2007 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
96 (184) (70)
(1) 199 28
37 (6) 145
133 9 103
110 6 1°5 3, 3°38 (82)
( 34%) (202) (71) (73)
(239) 413 3,267
5 72 88 108 (18)
6 (39) 0 31
0 0 689
672 183 143 267
599 692 4,341 (13)
2009 UBS 498
UBS 360 3
UBS 20.7 1,950 4 155
86 55 °
uBs
304
20009 2008 2007 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
12,801 12,207 20,715 5
275 423 630 (35)
851 706 1,290 21
941 926 922 2
1,675 2,000 1,958 (16)
16,543 16,262 25,515 2
913 (94) 3,173
2009 2008 2007 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1,420 1,516 1,569 (6)
623 669 701 (7)
697 888 948 (22)
695 926 991 (25)
225 408 585 (45)
412 728 1,029 (43)
830 1,085 1,106 (24)
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T 836 1,029 1,233 (19)
512 3, 209 267 (84)
6,248 10, 498 8,429 (40)
! 1,464 UBS
917
EPS
2009 2008 2007 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS (2,736) (21,292) (5,247) 87
(2,719) (21, 442) (5,650) 87
(17) 150 403
UBS (2,736) (21,292) (5,247) 87
(5) (28) (16) 82
EPS UBS
(2,741) (21,320) (5,263) 87
(2,724) (21,470) (5,666) 87
(17) 150 403
EPS 3,661,086,226®2, 02320082, 836,078 31
1 754,948 1,151,5561. 467, 326 (34)
EPS
3,661,841,22TU83,1742,6684,303, 404 31
20,166,3727,909, 96%3, 668, 047 (28)
(0.75) (7.63) (2.40) 90
(0.74) (7.68) (2.59) 90
0.00 0.05 0.18 (100)
(0.75) (7.63) (2.41) 90
(0.74) (7.69) (2.59) 90
0.00 0.05 0.18 (100)
3,558,112,279%382,5802,5803,547, 344 21
37,553,87%1, 903, 1258, 105,524 (39)
3,520,558,28870, 6771 ,42B5, 441,820 23
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5 273,264, 46D5,547, 748518, 711 (55)
EPS 3,793,823,33439, 4772,665B1, 023, 364 8
1
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
288,915,585 283,263, 330 119,309,645 2009 12 31 2008 12 31
100
2 2008 7.053 3
20 2007 2008 4
20009 0.81 2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2008
272,651,005 2008 12 31 2008 12 33
a
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
46,606 64, 473
(32) (22)
46,574 64, 451
121,031 121,811
19,970 21,270
1 141,237 173,812
2 27,237 26,320
309, 475 343,213
(2,648) (2,905)
(179) (126)
306,828 340, 308
353, 402 404,759
163,397 166, 798
24,038 30,540
35,482 47,724
85,411 105, 907
19,531 23,2709
32,231 38,590
360,090 412,838
(2,680) (2,927)
3 357,410 409,911
142,617 145,491
56,783 56, 312
75,5809 113,032
85,101 98,003
360,090 412,838
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(2,680) (2,927)
3 357,410 409,911
! 009 12 31
( ARS ) 78 (2008 12 31 8 4 ) 115
(2008 12 31 134 ) ARSS80 (2008 12 31 45
8 2009 12 31 40 2008 12 31 52
12
b
20009 2008
12 31 12 31
3,047 23 3,070 1,164
(2,046) 0 (2,046) (868)
52 0 52 4 4
1,806 26 1,832 2,996
(51) 0 (51) (223)
(37) 0 (37) (43)
2, 771 49 2,820 3,070
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
32 0 32 22
1 2,598 49 2,648 2,905
51 0 51 112
2,681 49 2,730 3,030
90 0 90 31
2,771 49 2,820 3,070
009 12 31 1,192 2008 12 31 1,331
10
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
17,143 71,051 17,523 110, 254
46, 364 45, 638 105,374 114,393
63,507 116, 689 122,897 224,648
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
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7,268 26,167 12,181 36,088
727 38,008 881 66, 473
7,995 64,175 14,063 102,561
11
23 I FRS
2009 2008
12 31 12 31

59,731 21,656 742 82,129 115,696

155 121

22,498 31, 366

25,795 46, 049

578 13,768 678 15,024 23,175

3,293 28,123 10, 462 41,878 85,991
63,601 63,546 11,882 139,030224, 862

46, 348 62, 153

30,622 30, 903

61,788 14,317 258 76,364 77,258
18,400 15, 849

13,599 9,312
125,38977,864 12,141 215,393302, 120
16,864 9,934
232,258312,054

20,389 5,917 0 26,306 34,043

85 129

10,351 18, 914

3, 384 2, 344

753 2,617 102 3,472 4,354

298 4,989 161 5,447 10, 945

21,441 13,523 262 35,226 49,342
12,014 70 160 12,243 13,089
33,454 13,593 422 47,469 62, 431

12
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20009 2008
12 31 12 31
3,052 4,500
957 653
3,712 4,321
1, 662 2,329
840 1,079
10,223 12,882
2009 12 31 9, 383 2008 12 31 11,803
2009 12
31 2008 12 31 4,845
6, 335
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
4,224 6, 186
} 1 2,699 4,314
B 1 90 547
20009 2008 20009 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
2 530 (668) (128) (659)
2 (435) 486 90 547
1
UBS
2
13
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
72,510 3,591 41 76,142 2,349
232 3
46,906 281
7, 958 0
7,936 0
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4,774 2,014
3,950 0
1,748 1,981 4 3,732 180
14 95 422 531 1,038
1 74,271 65,667 467 80,406 3,567
35 405 910 1,351 1,681
74,307 6,073 1,378 81,757 5,248
500 403
391 349
Looo
UBS
14
20009 2008
12 31 12 31
892 1,979
14 807
(38) (1,307)
(1) (422)
42 12
(4) (18)
(30) (34)
(5) (125)
870 892
34
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
5,155 4,272
3,248 3,448
1,468 1,211
319 198
15
I T
2009 2008
31 31
9,289 3,393 4,086 867 317 17,952 18,723
259 77 265 24 229 854 1,181
0 0 0 0 0 0 7
1 (15) (309) (346) (65) 0 (736) (792)
(78) 76 132 (34) (323) (227) (222)
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13 (10) 12 (7) (6) 2 (945)
9, 468 3,227 4,150 784 217 17,846 17, 952
5,272 2,031 3,612 546 0 11,461 11,679
2 247 358 371 72 0 1,048 1,241
1 (13) (263) (325) (42) 0 (644) (697)
(94) 3 2 (14) 0 (104) (164)
6 (20) 9 (7) 0 (12) (598)
5,417 2,109 3,669 555 0 11,750 11, 461
3 4,051 1,118 481 229 217 6, 096 6, 491
20009 26 30
T 3 13,800
2008 14,166
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
215 1809
0 37
(60) 0
(37) (6)
(2) (5)
116 215
16
2009 12 31
15 37
16 33
UBS
2009 12 31 UBS 41 2008 12 31
MCN 2008 12 31
2009 12 31 57
UBS 20009
20009
UBS
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2009 2008 2009 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
9.0 9.5 1.2 1.3
9.0 11.5 2.4 2.6
9.0 11.0 2.4 2.6
11.0 13.0 2.4 2.6
2009 12 31
2009 12 31 33
2008 12 31 43 UBS
749
38 2009 12
31 37 2008 12 31 38 20009 UBS
40 34
38
20009 UBS
UBS
2009 12 31
3.5
UBS
|l FRS UBS
UBS Bl S Tier BI S
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
11,585 824 1,308 2,131 13,716 15,324
32 0 38 38 70 585
(1,631) (13) (546) (559) (2,190) (33)
1 0 0 0 0 0 (472)
128 (24) 95 71 199 (1,688)
10,115 787 894 1,680 11,795 13,716
0 337 444 781 781 786
0 42 102 144 144 193
1, 1%23 0 57 57 1,180 361
(1,199) (6) (211) (217) (1,416) (7)
1 0 0 0 0 0 (472)
76 (12) 34 23 99 (80)
0 361 426 787 787 781
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10,115 425 468 893 11,008 12,935
! UBS
2009 12 31
1,523 (2) 0 0 (11) 1,510
3. 803 (1) (14) (34) (100)3,655
1,982 4 (130) (340) 94 1,610
4,277 31 (287) (749) 68 3,341
UBS 11,585 32 (432) (1,123) 52 10,115
2 0'3 0 0 (11) (56) 1 137
6 7'4 0 (83) (61) (1) (4) 526
186 0 (160) (13) 0 36 49
286 38 (99) (59) 0 15 182
UBS 1,350 38 (342) (144) (57) 48 893
125 48 20009
2010 105
2011 103
2012 97
2013 89
2014 82
2015 417
893
17
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
915 1,203
209 330
3,053 2,922
568 981
2,590 4,495
7,336 9,931
18
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2009 2008
12 31 12 31
65, 166 125,628
_ 101,573 91,614
308,903 374,127
410, 475 465,741
475,641 591, 3609
19
20009 2008
12 31 12 31
54,856
25,663
16,367
2,286
99,173 92, %46
13,306 7,468
2 174 1,632
112,653 101,546
20009 2
a) )
2009 12 31
76 2008 12 31
122 a) 8
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
51,579 111,619
57, 653 67,298
11,244 12,7609
7,900 2,418
2,967 3,150
131, 352 197,254
a) 15 23
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
600 9014
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 11, 24
12, 769
LI BOR
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 167, 702
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2009 2008
12 31 12 31
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015-2019

UBS AG
66, 453,6007,839 10,609 8,132 17,517 6,209 130,356103,579
)1 0O 10.46 10.000 7.0 O 9.440 8.84 0 9.5 0 8.0
16,3411, 15410, 463 5,653 4, 368 8,631 11,765 68, 375 81,000
0 0 0 0 397 5,488 1,282 7,167 8,875
) 3.34 2.38 76388 8.75
0 0 0 0 0 3,578 499 4,077 3,820
82,7924,75418,30316,26212,897 35,21419,754 209,975197,274
8,3351,012 308 340 180 944 8,375 19,494 83,003
)l 0 9.00 9.490 7.74 0 9.0 0 7.63 0 5.540 12.0
1,1601,451 1, 354 1,108 713 4,650 4,102 14,537 18, 449
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 74
)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9,495 2,463 1,661 1,448 893 5,594 12,476 34,030 101,526
92,2827,21719,96417,71013,789 40,80832,230 244, 005298, 800
! 69.5%
20
20009 2008
12 31 12 31
21 2,311 2,727
9b 90 31
1,082 1,192
22 142 1,470
612 1,022
1,430 3,080
21,740 22,084
1 6,579 11, 384
33,986 42,998
! 16 2008 31
25 2008 36 2006 2008 12
14 2009 UBS 2009
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21
20009 2008
12 31 12 31 3
1 2 4
270 1,418 183 856 2,727 1,716
0 0 0 0 0 1
293 265 649 139 1,346 4,002
(94) (22) (6) (187) (309) (528)
(352) (516) (415) (92) (1,375) (1,381)
0 0 0 3 3 (21)
(32) (3) 0 0 (35) 0
0 0 92 (1) 90 (979)
(3) (113) (14) (5) (135) (83)
82 1,028 488 713 2,311 2,727
1 2
%008
ARS 1, 464 1,363
2008 ARS 968 908
UBS 917 780
%009 12 31 161 2008 12 31 167
UBS UBS
UBS
2009 12 31
a) 2006 11 UBS SEC
UBS
SEC
2008 UBS Well s notice( )
UBS AG SEC SEC
SEC
b) UBS ( ARS )
ARS ARS UBS
SEC UBS
2008
2008 UBS SEC
NYAG
UBS 2010 30 ARS
150 (NYAG 75 75 )
UBS UBS
SEC ARS
UBS
c) 2000 2007 UBS AG
20009
18 UBS AG ( DOJ )
( DPA ) SEC
UBS (i) 780
( ) SEC
() ( I RS ) ( Ql )
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DPA
DOJ UBS
UBS 18 UBS DPA
DOJ UBS
UBS
SEC UBS
( ) UBS SEC 200 ( 780
) ( )UBS SEC
DOJ SEC 2008 | RS UBS
20009 19 DOJ
- UBS
UBS
20009 19 UBS | RS DOJ
) (
) (i )UBS
| RS
( )IRS 1996
UBS ( SFTA
) 20009 31 ( )UBS
SFTA
UBS 20009 SFTA ( )UBS
| RS QI | RS 2008 15 Ql (
UBS UBS
2009 12 31 UBS UBS
| RS
UBS UBS
| RS | RS
2010 2 4
2010
UBS 10,000 | RS
2010 1 21
| RS
SFTA UBS
2010 2 4
UBS SEC
SFTA
d)
DOJ SEC UBS
UBS
UBS
e) UBS
UBS
UBS
FI NMA SEC
FINMA 2008 10
f) UBS UBS
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UBS UBS UBS
ERI SA
UBS ERI SA
g) UBS UBS( ) SA UBS
( CSSF
(
L LLC( BMI S )
) BMI S
17
UBS UBS
20009 25 CSSF
UBS( ) SA
CSSF
UBS ( ) SA 20009 25 UBS(
) SA CSSF CSSF
UBS ( ) SA
2009 12 17
UBS
SA CSSF
15 890
UBS UBS
UBS UBS
20009 2005 2005 2007
UBS UBS
8 8 UBS 16
150
UBS
2009 11 UBS
1 UBS
2005
UBS
2010
22
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
55 (336) 4009
23 (7,282) (25)
462 519 1,061
(983) 262 (76)
(443) (6,837) 1,369
0 1 (258)
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0 1 (258)
(443) (6,836) 1,111
373
127
UBS
243
20009 50
116
65
20009 2008 2007
505 3,663
20009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
(2,561) (27,758) (3,742)
4,871 3,269 10, 337
(7,433) (31,027) (14,079)
20009 2008 2007 22
(551) (6,107) (823)
(1,636) (7,056) (3,054)
1,188 7,412 6,327
(79) (10) (257)
(932) (773) (1,587)
7 160 15
1,005 737 227
(65) (490) (72)
552 (692) 279
69 (17) 314
(443) (6,837) 1,369
20009 2008
12 31 12 31

1,782 (1,561) 221
32,505 (24,259)8,246
561 (403) 158
2,458 (2,215) 243

1,534 (1,213) 321
32,834 (24,708)8,126
608 (365) 243
258 (69) 190

37,305 (28,437)8,868

35,234 (26,354) 8,880

60
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0 244
61 289
15 591
142 1,470
20009 2008
| AS 12
2008 12 31
UBS AG
2009 12 31 8,773
2008 12 31 8,463
( 2007 2008
)
20
2009 12 31
| AS 12
2009 12 31 72,313
2009
12 31
1
4 4
72,308
72,313
2009 12 31
23
UBS UBS
oTC
oTC UBS UBS | SDA
MT A
ETD
ETD
27
L CH

a)
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oTC
oTC
LI BOR
/
CDS
LI BOR
( )
UBS
2009 12 31 2009
1,288 56 23
1,187
23 47
UBS oTC 2009
OTC CDS
UBS
UBS UBS | SDA MTA
UBS CDS I SDA
CDS
CDS UBS
/
UBS
UBS CDS UBS
UBS
CDS UBS oTC
CDS
UBS CDS

UBS UBS

147/395



CDS
CDS CDS
CDS
CDS UBS

2009 12 31
UBS
28
UBS UBS

526

CDS

20009

UBS

20009
71

CDS

2008

12 31

UBS

CDS

2008 12 31
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CDS CDS

12

883

2009 12 31

2008 12 31

2007 12 31

(171)

182

778

(796)

15

(11)

11

(18)
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2009 12 31 956
2008 12 31 765
2008 UBS
20009
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
(48) (644) (37)
11 688 30
(37) 44 (7)
1
19
2009 12 31
1 10 10
205 352 202 141 20
69 136 96 78 4
136 216 106 63 16
20009 2008 2007 183
108 443
2009 12 31
5,180 2,736
2008 12 31 2,539
2009 2008 46
86
20009 40 2008 49
2007 79
2008
2009 12
31 UBS
25
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12
0 0 (0) (1) (3) (15) (19)
0 0 0 0 2 18 20
2009 12 31 0 0 (0) (1) (1) 3 1
1
UBS
UBS ( ) I FRS
( ) 34 ) I FRS
Il FRS
2009 12 31
12
PRV NRV
PRV NRV
PRV NRV PRV NRV PRV NRV PRV NRV 4

oTC
1.8 1.6 0.7 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 2.5 1,343.72.5 1,286.5 0.0
8.2 6.818.716.989.782.669.565.0186.27,110.%X71.46,802.1%, 949. 2
1.0 1.1 3.5 3.010.111.911.313.5 25.9 543.229. 4 611.8 0.0
5
271.9
0.10.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.5 3.9 0.4 3.5 0.0
11.19.6 23.120.8100.094.880.878.6215.19,001.35303.78,704.1%,221.2
oTC

0.1 0.3 0.9 0.933.132.142.936.4 77.11,254.®9.71,208.9 0.0
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0.9 5. 4 0.0
0.0 6.6 0.0

.9 34.132.443.336.9 78.61,269.

60.6 1,220.9 0.0

FRS

16

oTC
7.5 6.3 2.4 2.6 0.8 0.6 0.0 0.0 10.6 453.2 9.5 403.7 0.0
0.0
31.230.313.115.318.923.517.316.8 80.52,279.®85.82,209.6
1.8 1.7 2.1 2.0 1.2 1.2 0.9 0.8 5.9 609.7 5.7 560. 2 0.0
5
1.5
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 1.5 0.1 0.1 0.0
40.438.317.620.020.925.218.217.6 97.13,344.201.13,173.5 1.5
oTC
0.9 0.8 1.1 1.2 0.5 0.8 0.4 0.9 2.9 56.6 3.7 46. 9 0.0
0.4 0.9 2.1 2.7 2.4 4.1 2.1 1.7 7.0 60.9 9.5 73.7 0.0
5
6.8
4.9 4.6 4.7 4.9 5.2 5.8 0.2 0.1 15.1 30.5 15.5 36. 2 0.0
6.2 6.3 8.0 8.8 8.1 10.7 2.7 2.8 25.1 148.028.7 156.8 6.8
oTC
0.6 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.1 0.1 2.0 20.6 2.0 15.0 0.0
0.3 0.2 0.7 0.6 0.9 0.9 0.1 0.2 1.9 21.7 1.9 23.6 0.0
5
2.7
0.4 0.4 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.0 0.0 1.9 0.6 1.9 2.0 0.0
1.3 1.2 2.0 1.9 2.4 2.4 0.2 0.4 5.9 42.9 5.8 40.7 2.7
I FRS
59,.355.951, 752.4165. 565, 545, 2036.2421.7.3,806.4D9.913,29616, 232.2
(313.2) (313.2)
(37.2) (32.7)
6 71.3 64. 1
1
PRV NRV
PRV - >NRV 4
UBS 16 UBS
5
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2008 12 31

12
PRV NRV

PRV NRV
PRV NRV PRV NRV PRV NRV PRV NRV 4

oTC
2.1 2.2 3.8 4.1 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.0 6.2 1,544.96.7 1,584.5 0.0
9.5 9.9 23.624.3152.140.944.842. 8B30.08,543.3817.68, 260.16,002.0
4.0 3.7 6.6 7.0 14.315.712.616.5137.4 498.443.0 595. 5 0.0
5
527.5
0.8 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 1.4 6. 4 1.4 8.7 0.0
16.416.6 34.536.0166.856. 157.459.5375.110,5933658.7.0,44815,529.6
oTC
0.5 0.3 3.4 3.5 95.491.289.888.2189.11,856.183.31,754.0 0.0
3.4 0.4 0.2 0.1 3.1 0.5 1.6 0.5 8.3 31.2 1.5 12.6 0.0
3.9 0.7 3.6 3.6 98.491.791.488.8197.41,887.1284.81,766.7 0.0
oTC
21.022.8 8.4 10.6 1.6 1.1 0.1 0.1 31.2 468.134.5 485.6 0.0
0.0
72.174.536.233.834.939.227.126.5170.32,047.473.91,868. 4
7.5 7.6 10.0 9.1 2.1 1.8 0.0 0.0 19.7 610.118.6 524.8 0.0
5
1.7
0.2 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 O0.0O0 0.2 12.8 0.3 6.1 0.0
101.005.254.653.538.742.127.226.6221.53,138.2827.32,884.8 1.7
oTC
1.9 1.6 2.0 1.8 2.2 2.0 0.2 0.3 6.4 68.5 5.7 40.1 0.0
1.7 3.2 4.8 7.4 4.7 8.5 1.7 4.0 12.9 108.923.0 106. 1 0.0
5
33.5
5.0 5.2 5.3 6.7 4.8 5.6 0.9 1.2 16.1 97.9 18.7 110.5 0.0
8.6 10.012.116.011.716.1 2.9 5.5 35.3 275.247. 4 256.7 33.5
oTC
3.0 2.4 4.3 3.7 1.9 1.6 0.9 1.1 10.0 39.1 8.7 33.1 0.0
0.8 1.0 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.3 0.3 0.2 6.3 36.3 6.1 42. 4 0.0
5
14.1
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2.1 2.2 3.8 3.9 2.7 2.7 0.0 0.0 8.6 74.7 8.7 95. 6 0.0

5.8 5.6 10.710.1 7.1 6.6 1.2 1.4 24.9 150.123.6 171.1 14.1

| FRS
135.738. 115.819. 822.813. P80.@81.6854. 116, 043851.9.5,52819,578.9
(651.7) (651.7)
(41.3) (52.8)
6 161.1 147. 4
1
PRV NRV
PRV - °NRV 4
UBS UBS
5
61 FRs
24
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
528, 856 651, 380
515,314 621, 981
13,542 29,399
398, 883 430,670
335,371 343,252
47,469 62, 431
16,043 24,987
25
2009 12 31 UBS
2009
12 31
2010 989
2011 870
2012 786
2013 658
2014 555
2015 2,113
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5,971
690
5,281
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
1,191 1,215 1,251
1,191 1,215 1,233
0 0 18
57 50 54
1,134 1,165 1,197
1,134 1,165 1,179
0 0 18
UBS
2009 12 31 11 100
500
26
20009
20009 25 UBS 0.10 293,258,050
13.00
38 20009 15
( MCN)
20009 19 UBS MC N
20009 25 UBS 0.10
332,225,913 MC N
- MC N 20009 33
6,685 6,718
MC N 20009 341
18 MC N

UBS
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27
a)
UBS
UBS
oTC
20009
UBS
/
UBS
UBS
CVA

oTcC
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DVA
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OTC
CVA
CVA
CVA
UBS
2009 CVA
DV A
LI BOR UBS LI BOF
DV A DVA
CVA
UBS UBS UBS
DV A UBS CVA
UBS
UBS
2009 12 31 CVA DVA
2009 12 31
CVA DVA
(4.3) 0.4
CVA (2.9) N/ A
CVA (0.2) N/ A
CVA (1.2) N/ A
2 0.6 (1.9)
CVA (0.8) N/ A
CVA 0. 4 N/ A
CVA 1. N/ A
! cva
UBS
UBS
UBS
2009 12132008 12 32007 12 31
(2,028) 2,032 6509
(1,958) 3,993 659
890 2,953 663
bLooo

441
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2009 12 31 2008 12 31
110. 9 65.5 11.6 188.0 1 128. 4 15.3 271. 8
31.3 12. 3 0.6 44. 2 .4 13.2 1.6 40. 2
4.0 393.8 23.8 421.7 811. 2 37.8 854.1
0. 8 213.7 0. 6 215. 1 372.0 3.0 375. 1
0.0 58. 0 20. 5 78. 6 166. 7 30.7 197. 4
0. 3 95. 9 0.9 97. 1 221. 0 0. 0 221. 5
2.9 20. 5 1.7 25. 1 26. 7 4. 1 35. 3
0.0 5. 8 0. 1 5.9 24. 8 0. 0 24. 8
0.8 9.2 0.3 10. 2 11. 2 0.6 12.9
74. 3 6.1 1.4 81. 8 1.2 1.6 5.2
221. 4 487.0 37.6 745.9 1 965. 2 57.01,184. 3
33.5 13.6 0.4 47.5 .9 27.5 1.0 62. 4
3.7 389. 2 17.0 409.9 812.0 35.0 851. 9
0.7 203. 1 0.0 203. 7 366. 9 1.8 368. 7
0.0 55. 8 14. 7 70. 6 153. 7 31. 0 184. 8
0. 3 99. 4 1. 4 101. 1 227.0 0. 0 227. 3
2. 8 25. 0 1.0 28. 7 40. 7 2.1 47. 4
0.0 5. 8 0.0 5. 8 23. 6 0. 0 23. 6
0.0 102. 4 10.3 112.7 91. 2 10.3 101.5
37.2 505. 2 27.7 570.1 . 8 930. 7 46.31,015. 8
UBS
11 13
1 ( } 1
2008 12 31 16.9 2.8 10. 3
(3.9) 2.4 (1.7)
(3.7) 2.2 (1.1)
(0.2) 0.2 (0.86)
(6.3) (1.0) (4.6)
5.6 0.0 0.0
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(11.9) 0.0 0.0
0.0 2.0 2.7
0.0 (3.0) (7.3)
5. 4 2.8 5.3
12.5 3.3 8.0
(7.1) (0.5) (2.7)
0.1 (0.2) 1.0
2009 12 31 12.2 6.8 10. 3
(0.5) (0.6) (0.7)
(1.0) (0.6) (0.7)
0.5 0.0 0.0
HLooo
2009 12
CDO
UBS
71
20009
12
CDO
26 23
20
19
CDO
CDS
CDS
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20009
UBS
UBS
2009 12 31 UBS
UBS
2009 12 31
1 4.1 (4.1)
(
) 1.0 (1.0)
3.1 (3.1)
(3. 3) 3.3
(1.6) 1.6
(1.7) 1.7
1
c)
UBS
RMBS CDO CLO
ABS CDO UBS
CVA
CVA
CDS
CDS
RMBS CDO CMBS CDO CLO
CVA
10 2,000
2,200 2009 12 31
77 80 2008 12 31 206 22
20 19
CVA 26 27
2008 12 31 58 62
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2009 12 31 RMBS CDO
AB X
CDO
ARS
ARS UBS ARS
(1) ARS
(2) (3)
UBS
ARS UBS
UBS 50
287 297 303 314
2008 12 31 2009
RLN
RL N UBS
ABS
/ RL N
Gaussian copul a
( )
UBS ( )
UBS
/
15
2009 12 31 RL N ( ) 1,502
(1,555 2008 12 31 3,284 3,502
2009 12 31 71 (74
2008 12 31 299 319 )
RLN
RL N
RL N
10 2009 12 31 RL N
1,155 (1,196 2008 12 31 1, ¢
2,102 ) ( )
105 (109 2008 12 31 155 165
)
SNB
Il FRS SNB UBS
2009 12 31 UBS
1,174 1,216 2008 12 :
1,100
2009

UBS
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LI BOR
2009 12 31 262 271
2009 30 229 237 2009 12
100 126 130
100 143 148
CDO
CDO 2009 12 31
6, 067 6, 208 2008 12 31
15,118 16,137
UBS
2009 12 31 UBS 3,398 2008 12 31
3,316
Local
Vol atility Monte Carlo
d
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
627 550
231 588
(240) (459)
(19) (52)
599 627
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
CDO
2008 12 31
OoTC UBS
e)
UBS
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2009 12 31 2008
46. 6 46. 6 64. 64.5
305.1 306.0 338. 338.1
63.5 63.5 122. 122.9
116. 7 116.7 224, 224.8
5.1 5.1 9.1 9.1
65. 2 65. 1 125. 125.6
410.5 410.5 465 . 465. 7
8.0 8.0 14. 14.1
64.2 64. 2 102. 102.5
134.5 133.6 201 . 199.7
15.9 15.9 22. 22.8
1 0.3 0.4
2 0.1 (0.1)
2
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
( )
99 55 100 100
96 100 100 100 49
)
UBS
( )
33
24
28
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2009 12 31 2008 12 31
64,748 78,002
44,221 40,216
1 21,741 3,690
2 65,775 21,040
152, 264 102,741
1 2 53
2008 10 2008 16
a)
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
17.1 22.0
24.6 13.1
110. 9 46.6
152. 6 81. 7
UBS
UBS
a) 13 a) 14
20009 2008
29
a)
I AS 39
27
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
1
171,173 261,904
44,221 40,216
2 3,109 4,152
421,694 854,100
640,197 1,160,372
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10,223 12,882
20,899 32,744
46,574 64, 451
63,507 122,897
116, 689 224,648
305,061 338,520
1,465 3,238
3,594 5,901
557,789 792,399
81,757 5,248
1,289, 966 1,970,901
47,469 62,431
2 8 185
409,943 851, 864
457,420 914,480
112,653 101,546
21,740 22,084
134,393 123,630
65, 166 125,628
7,995 14,063
64,175 102,561
410, 475 465, 741
8,522 10,012
134, 453 201,221
7,415 12,765
698, 201 931,991
1,290,014 1,970,101
! 138
12 2
b)
UBS
2008 20009 26
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
19.9 24.2
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19.0 20.8
(0.9) (3. 4)
20009 4 3 26
10 33
20009
2009 18
47 2009
26 45 /
2009 12 31
9.3 8.0 8.2 88 %
1 7.5 6.1 6.5 86 %
2.6 0.9 0.8 30%
CMBS/ CRE 2.0 1.5 1.6 82 %
1.1 0.9 1.0 86 %
1.1 0.9 1.0 90 %
CMBS 23.6 18. 2 19.0 80 %
CMBS 0.8 0.9
23.6 19.0 19.9
! cDS cCDS CDO( 4.5
)
UBS
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
1.5 0.1
(1.0) (1.3)
0.1 0.0
0.6 (1.2)
c)
| FRS
a)
b) UBS
1
2009 12 31
WM& S B WMA I B 2 UBS
8,580 0 9,525 0 18,114
2,651 1,074 42,568 282 46,574
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194,410 21,492 89,057 101 305,061
0 0 63,507 0 63,507
1,107 4,302 109,896 1,384 116,689
1,319 147 2,436 1,185 5,087
208,076 27,015 316,989 2,952 555, 032
2,534 520 416,862 1,778 421,694
16,341 1,107 117,047 4,535 139,030
65 0 9,317 0 9,383
5,393 16,515 52,183 6,315 80,406
24,333 18,142 595,409 12,628650,513
3 11, 888 385 4,569 137 16,979
7,236 498 51,593 0 59,328
ARS 0 0 8,700 0 8,700
19,124 883 64, 862 137 85,007
251,533 46,040 977,260 15,717,290, 552
2008 12 31
WM& S B WMA I B 2 UBS
17,628 0 11,528 0 29,156
5,499 1,096 57,475 381 64, 451
203,758 23,956 110,056 750 338,520
0 0 122,897 0 122,897
0 4,223 219,580 844 224,648
1,955 183 4,526 2,479 9,144
228,840 29,458 526,062 4,454 788,816
5,610 491 847,158 841 854,100
85 1,343 219,739 3,695 224,862
0 0 11,803 0 11,803
615 278 2,451 223 3,567
6,310 2,1121,081,1514,7591, 094, 332
3 14,258 405 4,856 149 19,668
2,775 13 57,528 0 60, 316
ARS 0 0 16,571 0 16,571
17,033 418 78,955 149 96, 555
252,183 31,9881,686,1689,3621,979, 703
| FRS
2
%0 2008 31
UBS
UBS
Il FRS
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2009 12 31
0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13
14,4913,615 9 18,114
3,39239,256 2,5261,108 186 106 46,574
21,00®2,20481,79H08,61118,544 2,910 305,061
47,92B00,12724,1087, 444 537 52 180, 196
18, 13857,59031,51110,31@,682 1,456 421,694
61,49%57,128 10,0814,5235, 0090 716 139, 030
75,3635, 007 3 25 8 80, 406
696 9,211 2,435 0945 559 624 14,470
1
2 87 8,391 4,1292,9311, 475 56 17,070
962 40,682 8,4413,3575, 463 422 59,328

243,59®3,21065, 0329, 262, 546

6,341 1,281,942

2008 12 31
0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13
23,6195, 534 3 29,156
5,69743,075 13,8471, 418 327 87 64, 451
26,2107,30082,430108,02®, 204 4,298 338,520
95,37918,64419,8412,528711 441 347,544
46,80602,505172,8654,33%,081 2,511 854,100
98,83689,508 20, 7807, 1038, 031 604 224,862
3,271 131 110 35 16 3 3,567
1,25313,085 2,846 2,048 890 824 20, 947
1
2 36 9,496 4,9443,6541, 497 72 19,699
238 33,820 15,2852,8407, 719 415 60, 316

301,3144113, 0LBBV2, 9852, 0384, 477

9,254 1,963,161

Looo

30

UBS

UBS

ARS

2008

12

31

31

8,700 2008 16,

168/395

571

%009



UBS

100 375
2010
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107
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560

2010

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

(21,311pR0,877R1,50603,642Y4,928)5,207)
(432) (336) (367) (41) (63) (88)
(672) (710) (633) (230) (251) (264)
(195) (233) (236)

0 0 (414)
231 (288) 1,508 (471) 318 236
1,314 1,158 792 153 148 151

(54) (25) (21)
0 0 (54)
(122) 1,134 298

(21,1191,311R0,8770)4,353)Y3,642)4,928)

19,02922,18121,336 2,866 4,579 4,602
846 990 1,067 202 282 313
963 (3,820) (250) 266 (1,027) (97)
567 603 584 232 194 200
195 233 236

(1,314 1,158) (792) (153) (148) (151)

104 (1,014)(288)

20,28619,02922,181 3,517 2,866 4,579

(833) (2,282)1,304 (836) (776) (349)

2,996 4,405 2,123 1,475 1,324 975

0 0 (1,304)
2,163 2,123 2,123 639 548 626
2,123 2,123 1,953 548 626 633
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(527) (603) (414) (167) (69) (97)
567 603 584 232 194 200
0 0 (54)
26 (203) (56)
2,163 2,123 2,123 639 548 626
2,163 2,123 2,123 890 798 887

(251) (250) (261)

2,163 2,123 2,123 639 548 626

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

432 336 367 a1 63 88
672 710 633 230 251 264
(846) (990) (1,067) (202) (282) (313)

215 0 0 98 37 58
0 1,826 (1,258)

0 0 414

54 25 21

0 (1,304)1,304

527 603 414 167 69 97

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

(21,119p1,311R0,87TR1,506R0,972)
20,28619,02922,18121,33620,229

(833) (2,282)1,304 (170) (743)

214 0 0
963 (3,820) (250)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

(4,078)X3,402)X4,654Y5,002Y4,635)
(275) (240) (274) (205) (385)
3,517 2,866 4,579 4,602 4,288

(836) (776) (349) (605) (732)

(12) 62 (32)
266 (1,027) (97)
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2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
3.3 3.3 3.5 5.7 6.0 5.8
2.5 2.5 2.5 5.0 4.5 4.8
0.5 0.5 0.8 2.5 1.9 2.4
3.3 3.5 3.0 6.0 5.8 5.2
4.5 4.5 5.0 6.6 7.1 7.0
2.5 2.5 2.5 4.5 4.8 4.6
0.5 0.8 0.8 1.9 2.4 2.1
35 26 38 46 46 50
51 55 47 35 35 38
13 13 11 3 3 4
1 6 4 16 16 8
100 100 100 100 100 100
18 44 20 48 33 51 42 45 45 48 49 52
41 65 37 63 31 50 37 44 37 38 38 44
9 17 10 20 10 19 3 7 3 7 4 6
0 5 0 5 0 11 12 10 12 1 3
9.7 (12.8) 3.9 15.5 (18.2) 4.8
UBS UBS 205 782 336
UBS AG 6 6 55 128
UuBsS 0 0 9,379
UuBsS 218 148 111
uBs ac 2009 12 2008 12 31 2007 12 31 4,095,850 3,734
65
65 45
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
BVG 2005 17.9 17.8 17.8 17.9 17.8 17.8
PA 2000G, 22. 8 22.7 21.9 25.7 25. 6 23.0
K. 2005 G 19.1 19.0 18.9 21.9 21. 8 21. 6
RP 2000 18. 4 18. 4 18.3 18. 4 18. 4 18. 3
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65

65 45

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

BVG 2005 21.0 21. 1 21. 1 21.0 21.1 21.1
PA 2000G, 24. 6 24.5 24.8 26.5 26. 4 25. 8
K. 2005 G 23.3 23.1 23.0 25. 8 25. 7 25. 6
RP 2000 20. 6 20. 6 20.5 20. 6 20. 6 20. 5
UBS
UBS
2009 12 31 186
2008 159 2007 190
2009 12 31 163 2008 164 2007
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
( )
11 26
2010
20009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
(159) (190) (219)
(7) (8) (12)
(10) (11) (11)
(2) (0) (1)
(31) 14 39
0 0 (8)
10 7 8
9 9 0
4 20 14
(186) (159) (190)
0 0 0
8 6 7
2 1 1
(10) (7) (8)
0 0 0
20009 2008 2007 2006 2005

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

(186) (159) (190) (219) (216)
0 0 0 0 0

(186) (159) (190) (219) (216)

8 3 8 1 (3)

2009 2015
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1 1
4 (3)
26 (21)
c
UBS
UBS
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
246 312 285
d
UBS UBS UBS
UBS UBS UBS /
2008 UBS 186
97 UBS
25 10 2008 12 31
41
20009 UBS UBS
2009 12 31 27
UBS 20009
UBS
20009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS
34 44 58
UBS
2 1 2
0 4 38
UBS UBS
20009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS AG 3,869 6,925 1,728
UBS 35 78 950
UBS AG 4,116 1,881 1,930
UBS 14 10 976
UBS UBS 2009

173/395



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

OOoooo0
12 2008 2007
2009 12 31 UBS 2008
2007 UBS
UBS 2009 12 31 UBS 17, 259
278 2008 17,866, 949 27 2
2007 14, 121, 239 736
31
a
UBS
50
UBS
a) 24)
( EOP ) :
UBS UBS Al V
EOP UBS UBS
UBS Al V EOP
UBS UBS EOP
UBS
20009 UBS EOP
2008 UBS EOP
2007
SEEOP
UBS UBS UBS UBS UBS
SEEOP
SEEOP (
)
20009 UBS SEEOP
2008 UBS SEEOP
2007
. UBS
CVCP CVCP
20009 UBS
UBS
WMU S
UBS
UBS
10 20
UBS
UBS
CBP
60

20009 40
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UBS
/
KESAP
KESOP
SAR UBS SAR UBS
SAR
SAR UBS UBS
UBS
KESAP KESOP UBS 200
10 2008 SAR
10 UBS
SESAP
SESOP SAR UBS 110
SAR UBS SAR UBS
110 UBS
UBS SESAP SESOP
UBS
10 SESAP SESOP
( ) 20009 UBS
SESOP
KESAP 2009
UBS
UBS
/
UBS
10
UBS
UBS
UBS UBS SAR
UBS
SAR UBS
UBS
2009 12 31 UBS SAR
27.7 150
SAR
( ECAP ) UBS
UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
b
EOP Al V 2009 12 31 2008 12 3
2007 12 31 913 94 3,1
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
20009 2010
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EOP Al vV
2009 12 31 832
3.6
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
EOP Al vV 83 80
42 2009 12 31
206
2009 12 31 CBP CVCP
63 2009 12 31 2009 2010
CVCP 570
1.8
c UBS
31 a)
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
84,736,935 53 59,102,580 66 56,141,102 58
39,067,130 12 90,895,594 32 30,271,820 70
(31,293,824) 66 (60,105,109) 61 (25,031,819) 55
(5,621,615) 38 (5,156, 131) 54 (2,278,523) 6 6
86,888,626 31 84,736,935 53 59,102,580 66
40,148,461 65,767,017 47,700,903
UBS Il FRS UBS
UBS
20009 UBS
31.7
2008
Il ASB | FRS
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
346 1,385 1,737
d UBS
31 a)
20009 2008 2007
12 31 2 12 31 12 12 31 12
( ) S ) ! ( )
236,055, 545 47 198,213,092 52 188,393,473 47
22,525,624 13 62,973,879 30 48,094,483 67
(48,241) 16 (3,673,657) 26 (34,331,511) 36
(7,245,512) 37 (6,732,080) 52 (3,650, 942) 62
(22,663,530) 48 (14,725,689) 46 (292,411) 58
228,623,886 43 236, 055,545 47 198,213,092 52
137,797,186 51 124,054, 442 46 96,396, 428 39
2008 UBS
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2008 3,881,320 2,400, 143
2
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12
18 34 72
20009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) 0.2 29 1,046
6.00 7.53 10.43
2009 12 31
10.21 15.00 18,599, 22511. 33 87. 8 9.1 2,001 14. 47 0.0 8.9
15.01 25.00 11,560,85218. 70 1.8 9.3 93,767 20. 07 0.0 8.7
25.01 35.00 45,514,53731.10 0.0 7.3 8,319,50828. 31 0.0 3.4
35.01 45.00 25,831,52439.04 0.0 5.0 16,931,90140.58 0.0 3.3
45. 01 55.00 21,961,02449. 34 0.0 5.4 21,539,5339.26 0.0 5.3
55.01 65.00 4,945, 13660. 26 0.0 7.0 4,509,03859. 96 0.0 6.9
65.01 75.00 67,395,23267.89 0.0 6.7 53,616,749%7.27 0.0 6. 6
10.21 75.00 195,807,5304.98 89. 6 6.9105,012, 49%5. 83 0.0 5.6
4.61 15.00 15,632 13.53 0.0 0.3 15, 632 13.53 0.0 0.3
15.01 25.00 10,288, 74621. 11 0.0 2.7 10,268, 74621. 11 0.0 2.7
25.01 35.00 3,037,46027.95 0.0 3.7 3,037,35527.95 0.0 3.7
35.01 45.00 16, 052,30238. 12 0.0 4.8 16,040, 74038. 12 0.0 4. 8
45.01 51.99 3,422,21644.89 0.0 5. 4 3,422,21644.89 0.0 5. 4
4.61 51.99 32,816, 35632. 54 0.0 4.1 32,784,68932.514 0.0 4.1
e) UBS SAR
31 a) SAR
2009 12 31
0 0
66,126, 830 12
0 0
(5,219,655) 11
0 0
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60,907,175 12
4,000,000 10
2009 12 31 SAR
SAR
SAR SAR
9.35 12.50 59,273,505 11.26 283.9 8.8
12.51 15.00 53,410 14.57 0.1 9.5
15.01 17.50 268,330 16. 47 0.0 9.5
17.51 20.00 406,930 19.25 0.0 9.7
37.51 40.00 905, 000 40.00 0.0 9.2
9.35 40.00 60,907,175 11.77 284.0 8.8
f
SAR
SAR
SAR
UBS
20009 SAR 2008 2007
2009 12 31
48.22 40.91 53.47
2.16 1.50 2.57
0.27 0.00 0.29
11.88 9.35 40.00
11.64 9.35 19.27
2008 12 31
33.86 30.00 49.32
2.83 1.74 3.27
1.85 1.10 2.57
30.11 14.47 46.02
28.05 14.47 43.61
2007 12 31
23.86 22.51 29.23
2.58 2.46 3.27
3.13 2.20 4.56
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1 71.31 55. 48 78.80
1 70.25 55. 48 78.80
Loos
32
UBS UBS
( BoD
) ( GEB ) 2009 11
| AS 24
a
Bo D 2009
! BoD GEB
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
16 12 14
6 4 0 38
2 2 2
1 1 2
2 29 o 22
112 15 78
Looo
GEB 39
2
Bo D 20009 15 20009
2009 30
1,000, 000
20009 2008 2007
HRCC UBS
3,332,000
20009 26 CEO 12
1,500, 000 20009 2008
CEO
HRCC UBS
1,200, 000
UBS Bo D
20009 6. 4
2008 6. 4 2007 5.7
b
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
BoD GEB
1 9,410,2808,458,0376,828, 152
BoD GEB 4,180,1545,869,9526,693, 012
luBs 31
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
4,852 103, 841 2,200,000
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UBS
31 2009 12 31 BoD GEB
c
BoD GEB
20009 2008
12 31 12 31
11 15
12 8
(5) (12)
18 11
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
d
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
301 220
295 171
(222) (77)
(1) 0
0 (13)
373 301
42 82
1 3
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
130 90 87
2 6 20
156 40 33
34
e)
2008 2007 UBS UBS
2009 UBS
2008 2007 I AS 24
1b)
2008 Aebi + Co. AG Kedge Capital Sel
Lowenfeld AG Martown Trading Ltd. Omega
Omega Fund Ltd Stadl er Rail Team A

Team Al inghi
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2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
6 158 539
0 0 77
(6) (152) (458)
L 0 6 158
2000
2008
320
2007 158
57
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS 0 1 8
UBS 0 11 6
Team Al inghi UBS 2008 828,009
538,000 Team Al inghi UBS
f
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS
33
2010 UBS
2018 UBS 180
173 2010
2009 12 31
2010 2010
14
34
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
UBS
UBS
1
Caisse Centrale de Réescompte Pari s, France Gl obal AMUR 5.0 100. 0
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CCR Asset Management S. A. Paris, France Gl obal AMUR 4.8 100.0
Fondcenter AG Zurich, Switzerl andGl obal ARHF 0.1 100. 0
OO0 UBS Bank Moscow, Russi a I B RUB 1,250.0 100.0
PT UBS Securities Indonesia Jakarta, IndonesialB I DR 118, 000.0 98. 6
Topcard Service AG Gl attbrugg, Swi t z e rWMeSAB CHF 0.2 100. 0
UBS (Bahamas) Ltd. Nassau, Bahamas WM& S B UsSbD 4.0 100.0
UBS (France) S.A. Paris, France WM& S B EUR 125.7 100.0
UBS (Grand Cayman) Limited George Town, Cayman Bl sl andsUuSD 25.0 100. 0
UBS (Iltalia) S.p.A. Milan, Italy WM& S B EUR 60.0 100.0
UBS (Luxembourg) S.A. Luxembour g, LuxemboNM&SB CHF 150.0 100.0
UBS (Luxembourg) SA Austria BrancWi enna, Austria WM& S B CHF 0.0 100. 0
UBS (Monaco) S.A. Monte Carl o, MonacoNM&SB EUR 9.2 100.0
UBS Alternative and Quantitative Lovésen me@rtesatiBiittaGlmnbal AMBP 0.3 100. 0
UBS Alternative and Quantitative DavawamentdSALC Gl obal AMSD 0.1 100. 0
UBS Americas | nc Del aware, USA I B UsSD 0.0 100.0
UBS Asesores SA Panama, Panama WM& S B UusSbD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Bank (Canada) Toronto, Canada WMA CAD 8.5 100. 0
UBS Bank Mexico, S.A. InstitucionMaxi danCiat Mul Mé pil egd BBS Gr uMXN 706. 4 100.0
Financiero

UBS Bank USA Ut ah, USA WMA uUusD 1,88020 100.0
UBS Bank, S. A. Madri d, Spain WM& S B EUR 82. 2 100.0
UBS Bel gium SA/ NV Brussels, Belgium WM&SB EUR 23.0 100.0
UBS Capital Securities (Jersey) L$&mitiell i er, Jersey CC EUR 0.0 100.0
WMA : WM& S B : Global AM:

| B: cc: 2
1

UBS Card Center AG Gl attbrugg, Swi t z e rWhMadnSdB CHF 0.1 100.0
UBS Casa de Bolsa, S.A. de C.V. Mexico City, MexicodB MX N 114.9 100.0
UBS Convertible Securities (Jerse$t. LHeniited, Jersey CC CHF 50.0 100.0
UBS Custody Services Singapore Pt®indapore, SingaporWM&SB SGD 5.5 100. 0
UBS Derivatives Hong Kong LimitedHong Kong, China I B HKD 880. 0 100.0
UBS Deutschland AG Frankfurt am Main, WWe&SmBany EUR 176.0 100.0
UBS Fiduciaria S.p.A. Mi | an, ltaly WM& S B EUR 0.2 100. 0
UBS Finance (Curacédo) N.V. Wil l emstad, NetherlCGOhhds AntudO es 0.1 100.0
UBS Finance (Delaware) LLC Del awar e, USA I B UusSbD 37.32 100. 0
UBS Financi al Services Inc. Del awar e, USA WMA UsbD 3,505 .28 100. 0
UBS Financial Services |Incorporatidat of RPuerPwe Ri @ oRiVWMA usD 31. 02 100.0
UBS Fund Advisor, L.L.C. Del awar e, USA WMA UusSbD 0.02 100. 0
UBS Fund Holding (Luxembourg) S. ALuxembourg, LuxemboQirogbal ANMHF 42.0 100. 0
UBS Fund Holding (Switzerland) AGBasel, Switzerland Global ARNMHF 18.0 100.0
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland)Ba#asel, Switzerland Global ANMHF 1.0 100.0
UBS Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd George Town, Cay manGlloshlaa n dssMS D 5.6 100. 0
UBS Fund Services (lreland) LimitRBdblin, Ireland Gl obal AMUR 1.3 100.0
UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.Auxembourg, LuxemboQirogoal ARMHF 2.5 100.0
UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.ZAabiPel amw, BPahamd ccC PLN 0.1 100. 0
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UBS Futures Singapore Ltd. Singapore, SingaporleB UsD 39. 8 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (AmerDelaawanec USA Gl obal AMSD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Aust83wdneay, LAustralia Gl obal AKUD 8.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Canafanoi€oo, Canada Gl obal AWNMAD 117.2 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (DeutBrahlafmunt Ganbo HMai n, G3eorbnaan yAEMUR 7.7 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (HongH&KmgpgKomrg mi €ridna Gl obal AMKD 25.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (1 talMialaiBsGRI SplAy Gl obal AMUR 5.1 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Japahokyed Japan Gl obal AMPY 2,200.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Sing@ipmgapored SingaporG obal ABGD 4.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (Tai whaipeitd Tai wan Gl obal AMWD 340.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (UK) ILenmdon, Great Britadlnbal ANMBP 93.0 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management (US) Dalcaware, USA Gl obal AMSD 17. 2 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management FundsLamndon, Great Britadlnonbal AMBP 26.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management Hol dibgndon, Great Britadlnbal ANMBP 109. 4 100. 0
UBS Gl obal Asset Management Life ILomdon, Great Britadlnobal AMBP 5.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Life AG Vaduz, LiechtensteiWM&SB CHF 5.0 100.0
UBS Gl obal Trust Corporation St. John, Canada WM& S B CAD 0.1 100. 0
UBS Hana Asset Management CompanySédouwl, South Korea Global AKRW 45,000.0 51.0
UBS Hypotheken AG Zurich, Switzerl andWVM&SB CHF 0.1 98.0
UBS I nternational Hol di ngs B. V. Amsterdam, the NethGCOI|lands EUR 6.8 100. 0
UBS International Life Limited Dublin, Ireland WM& S B EUR 1.0 100.0
UBS Invest ment Management Canada Tmorcont o, Canada WMA CAD 0.0 100. 0
UBS I nvestments Philippines, I nc.Makati City, Phili plpB nes PHP 360.0 99. 4
UBS Italia SI'M SpA Milan, Italy I B EUR 15.1 100.0
UBS Leasing AG Zurich, Switzerl andVM&SB CHF 10.0 100.0
UBS Life AG Zurich, Switzerl andWM&SB CHF 25. 0 100. 0
UBS Life Insurance Company USA California, USA WMA UsSbD 39. 3% 100.0
UBS Limited London, Great BritaibBn GBP 63.3 100.0
UBS Loan Finance LLC Del awar e, USA | B UsSD 16. 7 100.0
UBS Menkul Degerler AS I'stanbul, Turkey I B TRY 30.0 100.0
WMA WM& S B : Global AM:
| B: cc: 2
1

UBS New Zealand Limited Auckl and, New Zeal drBd NZD 7.5 100.0
UBS O Connor Limited London, Great Britalmbal AM®BP 8. 8 100. 0
UBS O Connor LLC Del awar e, USA Gl obal AMSD 1.0 100.0
UBS Preferred Funding (Jersey) Li®mttedelier, Jersey CC EUR 0.0 100.0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLCDEIl awar e, USA cc UsSD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLCDEIl awar e, USA cc uUsbD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLCDeEVaware, USA ccC UsSbD 0.0 100.0
UBS Preferred Funding Company LLCD¥Il aware, USA ccC UusSbD 0.0 100. 0
UBS Real Estate KapitalanlagegeseMusaschbhhft Gmbhany Gl obal AMUR 7.5 51.0
UBS Real Estate Securities Inc Del aware, USA I B UsD 1,300. 4 100.0
UBS Realty Investors LLC Massachusetts, USA Gl obal AMSD 9. 3 100. 0
UBS Sauerborn Private Equity KompBaethehoé&@buGmbHGer manWM&SB EUR 0.0 100. 0
UBS Securities (Thailand) Ltd Bangkok, Thail and I B THB 400.0 100.0
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UBS Securities Asia Limited Hong Kong, China I B HKD 20.0 100.0
UBS Securities Australia Ltd Sydney, Australia I B AUD 209. 8 100. 0
UBS Securities Canada | nc Toronto, Canada I B CAD 10.0 100.0
UBS Securities Espafia Sociedad deMWdlodesSPAinN I B EUR 15.0 100.0
UBS Securities France S. A. Pari s, France | B EUR 22.9 100. 0
UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong, China I B HKD 430.0 100.0
UBS Securities India Private Limi Mathbai, I ndia I B I NR 140.0 100.0
UBS Securities International Li miteddon, Great BritdiBn GBP 18. 0 100. 0
UBS Securities Japan Ltd George Town, Caymand Bl slandsIPY 60, 000.0 100.0
UBS Securities LLC Del aware, USA I B UsSD 22,2052 6 100.0
UBS Securities Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Kuala Lumpur, Mal ay sBi a MY R 80.0 100. 0
UBS Securities Philippines Inc Makati City, Philipgm®ines PHP 190. 0 100.0
UBS Securities Pte. Ltd. Singapore, SingaporleB SGD 311.5 100.0
UBS Securities Pte. Lt d. Seoul Br &8esohbl , South Koreal B KRW 150, 000. 0 100. 0
UBS Service Centre (Poland) Sp. zKoakow, Pol and ccC PLN 0.1 100.0
UBS South Africa (Proprietary) Li®danddon, South Afrilda ZAR 0.0 100.0
UBS Swiss Financi al Advisers AG Zurich, Switzerl andVM&SB CHF 1.5 100. 0
UBS Trust Company National Associ AeiwoNork, USA WMA UsSD 105.2 100.0
UBS Trustees (Bahamas) Ltd Nassau, Bahamas WM& S B UsbD 2.0 100.0
UBS Trustees (Cayman) Ltd George Town, CaymanWM&sSIBandsJSD 2.0 100. 0
UBS Trustees (Jersey) Ltd. St. Helier, Jersey WM&SB GBP 0.0 100.0
UBS Trustees (Singapore) Ltd Singapore, SingaporWww&SB SGD 3.3 100.0
UBS UK Properties Limited London, Great BritdiBn GBP 132.0 100. 0
UBS Wealth Management (UK) Ltd London, Great BritaNM&SB GBP 2.5 100.0
UBS Wealth Management Australia LMdlbourne, Austral iviM&SB AUD 53.9 100.0
Vermogens Advies Holding B. V. Amsterdam, the Net WaK&SaBnds EUR 0.3 100. 0
WMA WM& S B : Global AM:

| B: ccC: 2
2009
Topcard Service AG Gl attbrugg, Switzerl and
UBS (Luxembourg) SA Austria Branch Vienna, Austria
UBS Capital Securities (Jersey) Limited St . Hel i er, Jersey
UBS Casa de Bolsa, S.A. de C.V. Mexico City, Me xi co
UBS Custody Services Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Singapore
UBS Hypotheken AG Zuri ch, Switzerland
UBS Preferred Funding (Jersey) Limited St . Hel ier, Jersey
Banco UBS Pactual S.A. Ri o de Janeiro, Brazi
CCR Actions S. A. Paris, France
CCR Gestion S.A. Pari s, France
UBS Factoring AG Zurich, Switzerl and
UBS Finance (Cayman |Islands) Ltd. George Town, Cayman | sl ands
UBS I nternational I nc. Del awar e, USA
UBS Pactual Asset Management S.A. DTVM Rio de Janeiro, Brazi
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UBS Service Centre (lndia) Private Limited Mumbai , I ndi a
UBS Services USA LLC Del awar e, USA
SI'X Group AG Zzurtich, Switzerland 17.3
UBS Securities Co. Limited Beijing, China 20.0
uss
35
UBS UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS
2009 2008
12 31 12 31
UBS 319 339
590 528
1,325 1,307
2,233 2,174
254 273
(48. 2) 19. 1
(147. 3) (226.0)
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0 34 34
598 0 598
598 74 672
598 0 598
0 74 74
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2008
Cai sse Centrale de Réescompte Gr ol
2008 UBS CCR
100 613
387
CCR 133 36 23
2009 131 368
233 2007 12 31 133
190 CCR UBS
2008 CCR
0 36 36
5 0 5
0 368 368
513 1 514
518 405 923
297 13 310
221 392 613
518 405 923
20009
2008 CCR
10 26 36
33 335 368
Ver mogens Groep
2008 UBS 100
173 107 )
81 50 )
49 30
) 2.1 1 ) 126
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UBS
2008
0 49 49
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10 0 10
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2 12 14
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12 175 187
20009 2008
2008 2007 UBS UB
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 2007 12 31
22,606 910 31,932
(2,737) (21, 251) (5, 233)
(0.75) (7.61) (2.40)
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20009
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UBS
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UBS 1,403
1,123 498
2009 UBS 218
243
1,123
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34
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56
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UBS 18 154
UBS
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| FRS SNB UBS
2009 12 31 12
20009 2008 12 31
2008
607
SNB 20009 115
20009 232
UBS 117
20009 UBS 791 491
256
45
322
152 48
226 45
39
2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1.04 1.07 1.08 1.06 1.22
1.48 1.49 1.51 1.58 1.65
1.67 1.56 1.70 1.96 2.31
100 1.11 1.17 1.16 0.98 1.02
40
UBS ( | FRS )
( FI NMA ) | FRS | FRS
(FI NMA 08/ 2)
| FRS 23 27
FI NMA
| FRS
| FRS

Il FRS
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Il FRS
I FRS
UBS
I FRS
20
Il FRS
| FRS
41 SEC
UBS
SEC
UBS
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS UBS
| FRS UBS
UBS
UBS AG
2009 12 31 1 UBS
18,798 4,432 , 715 (6,484) 23,461

(16,860) (1,982) (4,657)

6,484 (17,0186)
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1,939 2,450 2,058 0 6,446
(937) (897) 2 0 (1,832)
1,002 1,553 2,060 0 4,614
7,912 6,025 3,774 0 17,712
(1,487) (423) 1,586 0 (324)
1,114 0 0 (1,114) 0
550 (872) 921 0 599
9,092 6,282 8,341 (1,114) 22,601
8,577 5,566 2,400 0 16,543
2,351 2,512 1,385 0 6,248
686 171 191 0 1,048
0 0 1,123 0 1,123
3 96 101 0 200
11,617 8,345 5,200 0 25, 162
(2,526) (2,063) 3,141 (1,114) (2,561)
210 (549) (104) 0 (443)
(2,736) (1,514) 3,245 (1,114) (2,118)
0 0 (7) 0 (7)
(2,736) (1,514) 3,238 (1,114) (2,125)
0 (3) 613 0 610
UBS (2,736) (1,511) 2,625 (1,114) (2,736)
ues aG | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2009 12 31 1 UBS
15,177 75 5,647 0 20,899
67,640 8,597 100,909(130,572)46,574
39,807 56,402 10,700 (43,402) 63,507
113,891 37,914 82,474 (117,590)116, 689
122,801 18,224 48,739 (1,727) 188,037
47,954 11,422 859 (16,014) 44,221
- 413,822 8,260 145,265(145,654)421, 694
5,831 5,876 11,283 (12,768) 10,223
296,497 45,774 22,749 (58,193)306, 828
63,459 15,441 2,857 0 81,757
1,664 3,880 1,100 (828) 5,816
61,551 24 49 (60,754) 870
4,920 791 501 0 6,212
494 9,101 1,413 0 11,008
6,352 2,037 479 0 8,868
7,131 2,115 2,169 (4,078) 7,336

1,268,991225,933437,194(591,580d), 340,538

110, 418
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17,662 22,993 10,742 (43,402) 7,995

38,563 66,545 76,657(117,590)64, 175

41,884 10,792 610 (5,817) 47,469
400,432 8,173 146,992(145,654)409, 943
100,768 276 27,953 (16,344)112,653
341,200 54,470 72,999 (58,193)410, 475
5,155 2,269 2,093 (828) 8,689
126, 965 493 12,242 (8,348) 131, 352
8,229 3,380 26,455 (4,078) 33,986

1,191,276223, 142408, 312(530,824d), 291,905

UBS 77,715 (234) 24,287 (60,754) 41,013
0 3,025 4,595 0 7,620
77,715 2,791 28,882 (60,754) 48, 633
1,268,991225,933437,194(591, 580), 340, 538
uBs aG | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2009 12 31 1 UBS
4,841 (6,469) 56,126 54,497
(42) 0 0 (42)
296 0 0 296
(656) (124) (75) (854)
104 53 6 163
(22,319)(12,484) 14,677 (20,127)
(22,616)(12,555) 14,608 (20, 563)
(7,020) (1,596) (51,424)(60,040)
673 0 0 673
3,726 0 0 3,726
64,956 0 2,106 67,062
(55,616) (1,548) (7,861) (65,024)
0 0 3 3
0 (8) (576) (583)
(4,0382) 2,419 1,614 0
2,686 (733) (56,136)(54, 183)
5,886 574 (933) 5,529
(9,202) (19,183) 13,664 (14,721)
132,782 24,421 22,490 179,693
123,580 5,238 36,154 164,973
15,177 75 5,647 20,899
78,025 3,714 16,694 98,432
30,378 1,450 13,814 45,642
123,580 5,238 36,154 164,973
uBs aG | FRS 2
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2009 12 31 57,116
UBS
UBS AG
2008 12 31 1 . UBS
49,699 21,343 27,354 (32,717) 65,679
(48,686) (17,436)26,282)32,717 (59,687)
1,013 3,907 1,072 0 5,992
(861) (2,050) (85) 0 (2,996)
152 1,857 987 0 2,996
9,709 7,910 5,310 0 22,9209
(8,129) (19,847) 2,156 0 (25,820)
(19,882) 0 0 19,882 0
2,836 1,058 (3,202) 0 692
(15,314) (9,022) 5,251 19,882 796
8,738 5,169 2,355 0 16,262
3,918 4,604 1,976 0 10,498
770 205 266 0 1,241
0 341 0 0 341
1 93 119 0 213
13,427 10,412 4,716 0 28,555
(28,741)(19,434) 535 19,882 (27,758)
(7,407) (4) 574 0 (6,837)
(21,335)(19,430) (39) 19,882 (20,922)
43 0 155 0 198
(21,292)(19,430) 116 19,882 (20,724)
0 (9) 577 0 568
UBS (21,292)(19,421) (461) 19,882 (21,292)
uBs AG | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2008 12 31 1 UBS
27,030 332 5,382 0 32,744

111,563 11,490 192,206 250,808) 64, 451
48,874 109,783 16,914 (52,674) 122,897
206,087 79,178 145,851 206, 468)224, 648
145,012 47,558 57,230 22,038 271,838
71,736 12,655 1,531 (45,706) 40,216
862,459 18,215 293,89§320,470)854, 100
5,120 7,755 12,741 (12,734) 12,882
326,548 53,774 35,193 (75,207) 340,308
1,237 638 3,373 0 5,248
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3,684 2,700 2,666 (2,909) 6,141
66, 255 58 50 (65, 473) 892
5,093 971 642 0 6,706
250 9,393 3,292 0 12,935
6,607 1,757 516 0 8,880
8,934 2,148 6,333 (7,484) 9,931

1,896, 489358, 405 777,8%6a,017,895)014,815

196,723 68,213 111,500 250, 808)125, 628
25,248 32,884 8,605 (52,674) 14,063
30,988 140,197 137,844206,468)102, 561
51,034 17,086 903 (6,592) 62,431
855,005 16,792 300,537320,470)851, 864
88,505 1,716 35,973 (24,648) 101,546
422,688 70,242 48,018 (75,207) 465, 741
7,417 2,584 3,104 (2,909) 10,196
127,408 2,439 72,569 (5,162) 197,254
12,598 4,313 33,571 (7,484) 42,998

1,817,614356, 466 752,624952,422),974, 282

UBS 78,875 (1,097) 20,226 (65,473) 32,531
0 3,036 4,966 0 8,002
78,875 1,939 25,192 (65, 473) 40,533
1,896, 489358, 405 777,846 ,017,895)014, 815
uBs AG | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2008 12 1 UBS
69,799 (438) 7,646 77,007
(1,502) 0 0 (1,502)
1,686 0 0 1,686
(819) (258) (140) (1,217)
37 27 5 69
330 156 (1,198) (712)
(268) (75) (1,333) (1,676)
(52,815) 914 11,264 (40,637)
623 0 0 623
23,135 0 0 23,135
91,961 0 11,126 103,087

(62,822)(14,500)(15,572)(92, 894)

0 842 8109 1,661
0 (112) (420) (532)
(11,978) 21,816 (9,838) 0
(11,896) 8,960 (2,621) (5,557)
(33,963) 442 (5,665) (39, 186)
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23,672 8,889 (1,973) 30,588
109,110 15,532 24,463 149,105
132,782 24,421 22,490 179,693
27,030 332 5,382 32,744
62,777 19,875 4,080 86,732
42,975 4,214 13,028 60,217
132,782 24,421 22,490 179, 6093
?Bs AG | FRS
2008 12 31 19,912
UBS
UBS AG UBS
2007 12 31 1
77,306 47,747 51,985 (67,926)L09, 112
(74,689) (46, 420Y50,592)67,926(103,775)
2,617 1,327 1,393 0 5,337
11 (234) (15) 0 (238)
2,628 1,093 1,378 0 5,090
12,852 10,119 7,663 0 30, 634
3,467 (9,932)(1,888) 0 (8,353)
464 0 0 (464) 0
(4,273) 8,369 245 0 4,341
15,138 9,649 7,398 (464) 31,721
13,239 8,329 3,947 0 25,515
5,684 3,446 (701) 0 8,429
930 138 175 0 1,243
3 101 172 0 276
19,856 12,014 3,593 0 35,463
(4,718) (2,365) 3,805 (464) (3,742)
794 (486) 1,061 0 1,369
(5,512) (1,879) 2,744 (464) (5,111)
265 0 138 0 403
(5,247) (1,879) 2,882 (464) (4,708)
0 18 521 0 539
UBS (5,247) (1,897) 2,361 (464) (5,247)
uBs ac | FRS
UBS
UBS AG
2007 12 31 1 UBS
(65,749) 19,670 (5,999) (52,078)
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(2,337) 0 0 (2,337)
885 0 0 885
(1,022) (581) (307) (1,910)
40 28 66 134
4,027 34 1,920 5,981
1,593 (519) 1,679 2,753
35,017 (1,426) (919) 32,672
(2,771) 0 0 (2,771)
(4,275) 0 0 (4,275)
105,197 1,022 4,655 110,874
(54,251) (7,022) (1,134) (62,407)
0 32 1,062 1,094
0 (665) 46 (619)
871 (6,627) 5,756 0
79,788 (14,686) 9,466 74,568
(9,070) (3,062) (96) (12,228)
6,562 1,403 5,050 13,015
102,548 14,129 19,413 136,090
109,110 15,532 24,463 149,105
8,530 1009 10,154 18,793
60,266 13,202 3,747 77,215
40,314 2,221 10,562 53,0097
109,110 15,532 24,463 149,105
?BS AG | FRS
2007 12 31 7,881
UBS AG
2009 12 31
UBS 2000 10 8.622 1.5
UBS 1 2001 7.247 0.5
UBS 2003 1 0.3
LI BOR+0. 7
UBS 2006 6.243 1.0
2006 2001 300 7.25
UBS AG
UBS UBS 2009 12 31
UBS 280
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UBS AG 36, 489 31, 448
9, 466 8,990 476
2008 SNB
2008 3,763 1,154
2008 2008 6, 707
9,101
2008 26,900
2,405
2008 3,071
1,432
2009 UBS
UBS
2009 12 31
848 2008 12 31 1,189 342
165
133 37
21 12
29
2009 141
2009
UBS 53
12
100 UBS
37 UBS

UBS
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2008
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 12 31
()
13,764 11,541 37,825 31,716 (64)
4,911 4,118 12,014 10,074 (59)
92 77 76 6 4 21

(16,901)(14,1271) (49,022)(41,105) (66)

1,866 1,565 893 7409 1009
255 214 208 174 23
9,294 7,793 11,668 9,784 (20)
624 523 610 511 2

(2,264) (1,898) (2,849) (2,389) (21)

7,909 6, 632 9,637 8,081 (18)
(476) (399) (9,466) (7,937) 95
123 103 176 148 (30)
1,154 968 3,763 3,155 (69)
26 22 29 24 (10)
4,761 3,992 3,384 2,837 41

(3,604) (3,022) (2,767) (2,320) 30

2,460 2,063 4,584 3,844 (46)
11,759 9,860 5,648 4,736 108
9,101 7,631 6, 707 5,624 36
4,421 3,707 5,822 4,882 (24)
13,522 11, 338 12,528 10,505 8

(1,763) (1,478) (6,880) (5,769) 74

2,405 2,017 26,900 22,556 (91)

1,432 1,201 3,071 2,575 (53)

(5,600) (4,696) (36,852)(30,900) 85

688 577 1,002 840 (31)
(49) (41) (482) (404) (90)
(80) (67) (157) (132) (49)

(5,041) (4,227) (36,489)(30,596) 86
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2008
12 31
2009 12 31 2008 12 31
()
15,177 12,726 27,030 22,665 (44)
91,988 77,132 62,777 52,6309 47
191,002 160, 155 355,679298,237 (46)
153,893 129,039 191,308160,412 (20)
140,671 117,953 141,328118, 504 0
138,160 115,847 158, 741133,104 (13)
15,206 12,750 11,085 9,295 37
19,225 16,120 22,001 18,448 (13)
4,986 4,181 5,032 4,219 (1)
1,754 1,471 3,877 3,251 (55)
68,977 57,837 201,801169,210 (66)
6,504 5,454 8,697 7,292 (25)
847,543 710,665 1,189,35897,275 (29)
2,617 2,194 3,924 3,290 (33)
242,617 203, 434 435, 721365, 352 (44)
45,043 37,769 52,063 43,655 (13)
184,010 154,292 292,730245,454  (37)
72,985 61,198 61,872 51,880 18
287,156 240, 780 388,338325,621 (26)
2,967 2,488 3,150 2,641 (6)
155,907 130,728 143,589120, 399 9
7.520 6,306 7,895 6,620 (5)
54,468 45,671 193,108161,921 (72)
6,641 5,568 14,181 11,8091 (53)
2,277 1,909 2,724 2,284 (16)
356 299 293 246 22
30,377 25,471 40,910 34,303 (26)
835 700 2,877 2,412 (71)
2,042 1,712 22,115 18,543 (91)
(5,041) (4,227) (36,489)(30,596) 86
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847,543 710,665 1,189,35897,275 (29)

19,410 16,275 21,228 17,800 (9)

145,268 121, 807 271, 434227, 597 (46)

2010 14 ( AGM)
20009 (5,041) (4,227)
(2,042) (1,712)
(2,999) (2,515)
40
UBS AG UBS
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( )
UBS
2009 UBS
2009 12 31
283 2914
/
2009 2008 12 31 24,427
« )
2009 2008 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31
3,005 3,930 (24)
(4,496) (12,678) 65
1 1,014 (718)
(476) (9, 466) 95
1
2008 360
2009 393 2009
265 2008 30 2008
490 72
2009 48 2008
2007 478
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1
2008
12 31 2009
12 31
1,556 (1,408) 196 (493) 1,405 1,256
1,078 (280) (100) (22) 134 810
157 (203) 0 (57) 145 42
94 (29) (1) 0 32 96
74 (205) 45 (3) 303 214
36 0 (15) (12) 0 9
1,259 (522) 2 (173) 458 1,024
4,254 (2,647) 127 (760) 2,477 3,451
1,530 1,174
2,724 2,277
! 2008 12 31 14,858
2007 12 31 2008 1 1 207 6,303 2,472 9,44115,567 33,990
1 86 15,911 (15) 15,982
MCN 16,223 16,223
0
0
(36, 489) (36, 489)
(6,5645, 564 0
(11,90102, 472) 14,373 0
2008 12 31 2009 1 1 293 26,536 0 2,877 0 29,706
30 3,783 3,813
MCN 33 58 91
0
0
(5,041) (5,041)
(2,0422,042 0
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100,000, 000

2009 12 31 2008 12 31 ()
42,898 1,368 7,429 1,300 477 5
1 21,741 12,321 3,699 2,418 488 410
47,289 31,862 50,223 37,083 (6) (14)
8,578 0 8,149 0 5
120,50645,551 69,500 40,801 73 12
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2 (2,999) 2,999 0
2009 12 31 356 27,378 0 835 0 28,5609
! »o10 14
2009 12 31
3,558,112, 78%5,811,28B85558, 112, 78%5,811,275
527,773,64652, 777,365
2008 12 31
2,932,580,5293, 258, 025 932,580, 5293, 258, 055
792,844,71179,284,471
2009 25 UBS 293,258,050
20009 15
20009 19 UBS MCN 20009
UBS 332,225,913
2008 27 10,370,000
98,698, 754
2008 23 760, 295, 181
20009 MCN 26
2009 12 31
29, 350 UBS 149, 994, 296
277,750,000 2008 UBS
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()
2008
2009 12 31 2008 12 31 12 31
139,319 286, 451 (51)
73,270 68,660 7
151 145 4
2,083 2,079 0
UBS AG VAT VAT
2009 12 31 2008 12
PRV N RV P RV N RV
187,506 174, 632 33,78B77,307370, 346 36,476
80,008 70,586 2,525202,357187,216 3,712
97,925 101,800 6,523222,178229,656 6,005
3,442 3,378 79 5,804 5,697 108
17,314 21,353 251 28,502 36,208 473
761 697 6 27,055 25,387 160
386,956 372, 447 43,178B8B63,203854,510 46, 934
317,979 317,979 661, 402661, 402
68,977 54,468 201,801193, 108
PRV NRV
()
2009 2008 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31
17,088 36, 452 (53)
1,810 2,738 (34)
18,898 39,190 (52)

205/395



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

Ooooodo
UBS
(
2009 2008 2008
12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS UBS 397 876 (55)
I T FI NMA 08/
2009 12 31 36,182 2008 12 31 40, 998
2009 2008 2007
12 31 12 31 12 31
11.63 7.19 7.99
DTC Cede & Co. 1 8.42 9.89 14.15
N. A., 3.21
3.07
! DTC Cede & Co.
a
1 c d e f
Kaspar Villigermnog 602,083 0 0 0 74, 488 0 676,571
2008
Peter Kurer 20009 666, 667 0 0 0 37,56189, 780794, 008
2008 1,333,333 0 0 0 58, 260174, 0417, 565, 647
Mar cel Ospel 20009
2008 666, 667 0 0 0 80, 75587, 023834, 445

Stephan Haeringer

20009
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2008 1,125,000 O 0 0 108, 84%¥95, 8012, 429, 648
Looo Kaspar Villiger 2009 12 31 Peter Kure
2008 Peter Kurer 2008 12 31
Ospel 2008 23 Stephan Haeringer
a 39
b.
c. 2009 2010 16. 30
22.20 | FRS
d. 2009 2010
e. —
f . 820,800
AHV ALYV
BV G
250, 000
150.000
245,000 401K
100, 000
a
1 3 4,5
Sergio
Marchionne M 2009/ 2828, 0000, 0000 250,% 00675, 0000051, 845
M M 2008/ 2829, 000, 0000 250,% 00775, 00000 76,228
Ernesto 2009/ 2010
Bertarell.i
M M 2008/ 2829, 000, 0000 0 525, 0000051, 596
Sally Bott C M 2009/ 2825, 0850, 0000 0 675,006B0 27,261
2
M M 2008/ 2062, 50066, 0000 0 237,5060 12, 280
Mi chel Dekhar 2009/ 2829, 0200, 0000 0 525,0060 21, 203
€ 2008/ 2009
Rai ner - Mar ¢ M 2009/ 28286, 000, 0000 0 525, 00000 40, 301
2
Frey M M 2008/ 20692, 5060, 0000 0 312,500 16, 158
Bruno GehrigM M 2009/ 2829, 000, 0000 0 525,0060 21, 203
2
M 2008/ 2068, 5000, 0000 0 262,5060 13,572
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Ann F.
M M 2009/ 2829, 02950, 0000 0 575,0060 23,222
Godbehere
2008/ 2009
Gabrielle
Kaufmann - 2009/2010
Kohl er
C M 2008/ 2829, 0PHO, 0000 0 575,0060 29, 731
Axel P. M 2009/ 2829, 000, 0000 0 525, 00000 40, 301
Lehmann
2008/ 2009
Rol f A. Meyer 2009/ 2010
2
M M 2008/ 2062, 5080, 0000 0 312,5060 16, 158
Hel mut Panke M M 2009/ 2829, 0800, 0000 0 625, 0060 25, 242
M M 2008/ 28259, 0800, 0000 0 625,0060 32,316
Wil lhiam Gg 2009/ 2828, 0800, 0000 0 625,0060 25, 242
Parrett
2 M 2008/ 2069, 5000, 0000 0 262,5060 13,572
David Sidwell C 2009/ 2829, 0000, 0000 0 725,0060 29, 281
M C 2008/ 2825, 0050, 0000 0 775, 0060 40,072
Peter Spuhler 2009/ 2010
2
2008/ 2069%,500 O 0 0 162, 50000 15, 945
Peter R. M 2009/ 28295, 0000, 0000 0 425,000B0 17,164
Voser c M 2008/ 2829, 0000, 0000 0 725,000 37,487
Lawrence A. 2009/ 2010
Wei nbach
2 M 2008/ 2068, 5000, 0000 0 262,5060 13,572
Joerg Woll e 2009/ 2010
C M 2008/ 28259, 0800, 0000 0 625, 0060 32,316
2009 6,425,000
2008 6,437,500
C M=
l2009 12 31 11 Mi chel Demar é Ann F. Godbehere A
15 Ernesto Bertarelli Gabrielle Kaufmann-Kohl er Joerg Wi
2008 12 31 11 David Sidwell 2008 23
Rol f A. Meyer Peter Spuhler Lawrence A. Weinbach 2008 10
Rainer-Marc Frey Bruno Gehrig William G. Parrett 2608 10
2008 10 2008 2009 8 50 50 UBS
100 UBS 2000 14.57
2010 10 UBS 15
12.38 2008 11. 38 virt-x
20009 10 UBS 15 9.67
° 100
6
2008 2009 500,000 300,000
200, 000
a
20009 7,895,579
2008 10,267,240
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a
b c c e f
Carsten Kengeter CEO
2009 669,092, 003, 467,00155, 8169349, 336 O 12,548,190, 312
Mar cel Rohner
20081, 500, 000 0 0 0 161, 76852,934814, 702
2009 12 31
1 20092,000,@5,5734,1?,;15%‘154696,233,9711551,6)&5,8706,562
2008 12 31
1 20087, 815, 943 0 0 0 457,6538317,385090, 911
20009
2 200092, 447, 884 443,097 0 0 215,150 71, 112, 276, 914
2008
2 20081,614,871 0 0 0 234,83858,423108, 132
1 20009 12 31 13 2008
c12 31 12 220009 :
Mar cel Rohner Wal ter H. Stidrzinger Raoul We i | J
Rory Tapner Marten Hoekstra 10 2008 : Pet
Mar co Suter Joe Scoaby 10 4,655,950
1,594,250
2008 2009 12 31
1 3
« ¥
Kaspar Villiger 2009 22,500 0.001 0 0.000
2008 - -
Sergi o Marchionne 2009 164,154 0.009 0 0.000
2008 87,926 0.005 0 0.000
Ernesto Bertarelli 2009 - -
2008 89,434 0.005 0 0.000
Sally Bott 2009 12,281 0.001 0 0.000
2008 1 0.000 0 0.000
Mi chel De mar é 2009 2,500 0.000 0 0.000

209/395



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooOoog
2008 - -
Rai ner - Marc Frey 2009 16, 158 0.001 0 0.000
2008 0 0.000 0 0.000
Bruno Gehrig 20009 16,572 0.001 0 0.000
2008 3,000 0.000 0 0.000
Ann F. Godbehere 2009 0 0.000 0 0.000
2008 - -
Gabrielle Kaufmann®Kohl e2009 - -
2008 18,713 0.001 0 0.000
Peter Kurér 2009 - -
2008 416,088 0.025 372,995 0.02¢PRi: 85, 256
xlvii:95,913
I vi 95, 913
I xi v: 95, 913
Axel P. Lehmann 2009 18,151 0.001 0 0.000
2008 - -
Hel mut Panke 2009 64,287 0.003 0 0.000
2008 31,971 0.002 0 0.000
William G. Parrett 2009 17,573 0.001 0 0.000
2008 4,000 0.000 0 0.000
David Sidwel!l 2009 40,073 0.002 0 0.000
2008 1 0.000 0 0.000
Peter R. Voser 2009 68,310 0.004 0 0.000
2008 30,823 0.002 0 0.000
Joerg Wolle? 20009 - ;
2008 41,509 0.002 0 0.000
1 2
3 31
20009
1
a
Georges Bl um Swiss Bank Cao2r0p®r ati on 92,399 92,399
2008 101,579 101,579
Franz Galliker Swi ss Bank 2@dr9por ati on 10,659 10,659
2008 69, 596 69, 596
Wal ter G. Frehner Swi ss Bamko9Cor porati on 25,371 25,371
2008 74,663 74,663
Hans (Liliane) Strasser SwWi0s0s9 Bank Corpora%®%,; nhs 9,758
2008 32,673 32,673
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Robert Studer Uni on Bank of0039witzerl and 18,751 18,751
2008 126,208 126, 208
Al berto Togni UBS 2009 320,136355,983 676, 119
2008 318,461427,949 746, 410
Philippe Alix de Weck Uni 2n0 OBank of 93,135 93,135
Switzerl and
2008 109,703 109,703
2 2009 0 18,293 18,293
2008 0 171,180 171,180
2009 320,136624,349 944, 485
2008 318,461, 113, 5511, 432,012
1 2
2008 2009 12 31
| ( %) ( %) ’
Oswald J. Grubel 20009 0 0.0004, 000, 0000. 20X x: 4,000,000
2008 - -
Mar cel Rohner 2009 - -
! 2008 711,366 0.0421, 055, 0430. 088xii 31,971
x i 213,140
X vii 277,082
I vi 319,710
I xi v: 213,140
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John Cryan 20009 235,9290.013 382,673 0.0R0Li: 21,362
iv: 20, 731
Vii: 20, 725
Xii: 5,454
X0 5,294
XVi: 5,292
X X i : 23,626
XX i ii: 23,620
XXVi: 23,612
XXVviii: 5,526
X X0 X: 5,524
X X X : 5,524
XXXxviiil7,072
x| 17,068
X ii: 17,063
X1 iv 14, 210
x| v 14,210
Xl vi: 14,207
i 5,330
i v: 5,328
I v 5,326
I xi : 17,762
I xii: 17,762
' xiii: 17,760
I xvi: 53,285
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2008 235,9290.014 382,673 0.0RBI: 21,362
iv: 20, 731
viio: 20,725
X i i 5,454
Xiii: 5,294
XVi: 5,292
X X i : 23,626
Xxiii: 23,620
XXVi: 23,612
xxviii: 5,526
X X1 X: 5,524
X X X! 5,524
XXXVviiil7,072
x 1 17,068
X iz 17,063
X1 iv: 14,210
X1 v: 14,210
Xl vi: 14,207
liii: 5,330
I i v 5,328
I v: 5,326
I xi: 17,762
Ixii: 17,762
I'xiii: 17,760
I xvi : 53,285
Mar kus U. Di et hel m 2009 112,2450.006 0 0.000
2008 112,2450.007 0 0.000
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John A. Fraser 20009 480, 4640.0271,088,7950. 08bii: 76,380

CEO Xi X: 127,884

X XV : 127, 884

xliii: 170,512

xlviii:202, 483

I vi: 213,140

I xiv: 170,512

2008 561,216 0.0351,144,8080. 068 56,013

Vi 76, 380

X i X 127, 884

X X V! 127,884

xIiii: 170,512

xIviii:202, 483

I vi: 213,140

I xi v: 170,512
Marten Hoekstra 2009 - -

cEo 2008 245,3970.015 684,168 0.041i: 8,679

Vi 8,421

i x: 8,421

X i 8,823

Xi Vv: 4,262

X V! 8,563

XViiio: 8,561

XXXxiii:42,628

xiii: 53,285

xlviii:53,285

I vi: 85, 256

I xi v: 154,931

Il xvii: 239,053
Jerker Johansson 2009 - -

CEO 2008 521,5440.031 753,410 0.0kBviii:7zas5, 990

I xi x: 7,420

Carsten Kengeter 2009 516,9090.028 905,000 0.0#499xIi : 905, 000
CEO 2008 - -

Ulrich Koérner 2009 0 0.000 0 0.000

2008 - -
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Philip J. Lofts 20009 179,2340.010 577,723 0.0B1LI 11,445
iv: 11,104
Vi 11, 098
X i i 1,240
Xiii 5,464
X Vi 1,199
X X i 9,985
X X0 i 9,980
X X Vi 9,974
XX Viii 1, 833
XX i X 1,830
X X X 1,830
Xxxxviii35,524
X | 35,524
x1ii 35,521
x| vii 117,090
I vi 117,227
I xiv 85, 256
I xvii 74,599
2008 186,4340.011 577,723 0.08BH#I 11, 445
i v: 11,104
Vi 11, 098
X i i 1,240
Xi i 5,464
X Vi 1,199
X X i 9,985
X X i i 9,980
X X Vi 9,974
XXViii 1,833
X X i X 1,830
X X X 1,830
Xxxxviii35,524
x| 35,5214
x1ii 35,521
X1 vii 117,090
I vi 117,227
I xiv 85, 256
I xvii 74,599
Robert J. McCann 2009 602, 4810.033 0 0.000
CEO 2008 - -
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Franco Morra UBS CROO09 153,8600.008 325,086 0.0hgi 43,911
I xiv: 66, 866
I xvii 114,309
I xxii 100,000
2008 - -
Wal ter H. Stiurzinger2009 - -
2008 296,886 0.018 372,995 0.02%2: 31,971
¢ x| i: 63, 942
x| vii: 85, 256
I vi 95,913
I xiv 95,913
Rory Tapner 4 20x%Eo0 - -
2008 827,8090.0491,379,5330.08pPIi 281,862
X i X 213,140
X X X i 213,140
X1 170,512
Xl vii 159, 855
I vi 170, 512
I xi v 170, 512
Raoul Wei l 2009 - -
2008 315,6980.019 432,409 0.026X 53,285
ceo Xl vii 102, 281
I vi 127,884
I xi v 148, 959
Al exander Wil mot-Sitawe09 286, 7670.016 353,807 0.0xbvi: 53,282
CEO X1 i x: 2,130
I 35,5214
i v: 35,524
I v: 35,521
I xiv 106,570
I xvii 85, 256
2008 304,6550.018 353,807 0.02hvVi 53,282
x i x: 2,130
i 35,524
i v: 35,524
I v: 35,521
I xiv 106,570
I xvii 85, 256
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Robert Wolf UBS 2009 785,6310.043 948,473 0.0B%xV: 287,739
CEO xliii: 213,140
x|l viii:127, 884
I vi: 106,570
I xi v: 106,570
' xvii: 106,570
2008 827,3070.049 948,473 0. 0BBV: 287,739
xliii: 213,140
x|l viii:127, 884
I vi: 106,570
I xi v: 106,570
' xvii: 106,570
Chi -Won Yoon 20@EO 367,5730.020 623,253 0.0B4 11,577
Vo 11,229
vViii: 11,227
X : 2,252
Xi v: 6, 446
XVii: 2,184
X Xii: 8,648
X Xiv: 8, 642
XXVii: 8, 635
XXXi Vv: 4,262
XXXV 3,374
XX XVi: 3,371
XxXxxvii: 3,371
XXXViii:6,200
X X Xi X: 4,262
x 1 6, 198
X iz 6, 195
X1 iv: 10,659
X1 v: 10,657
x| vi : 10, 654
i 21,316
Iiov: 21,314
I v: 21,311
I xi: 8,881
Ixii: 8,880
Ixiii: 8,880
| xXvi : 42,628
I xxii: 350,000
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2008 - -
Jiurg Zeltner 2009 16,502 0.001 205,470 O0.00Mi: 809
CEO i v 784
vViio: 784
x i 4,972
x| iv 7,106
X1 v 7,108
X1 vi 7,103
x| i x 93
[ 161
i 149
I 127
I 7,106
I i v 7,103
(Y 7,103
I vii 110
Iviii 242
i x 230
I x 221
I xi: 7,105
Ixii: 7,105
Ixiii: 7,103
I xv 223
I xvii: 42,628
' xxii: 90,000
2008 - -
1 2
3 31 20009
2008 2009 12 31
i 11,577 2002 2002 31 2012 31 1:1 USD 21. 24
i 8,679 2002 2002 31 2012 31 1:1 Uusb 21. 24
i 33,616 2002 2003 31 2012 31 1:1 CHF 36. 49
iv 32,619 2002 20014 31 2012 31 1:1 CHF 36.49
\ 11,229 2002 20014 31 2012 31 1:1 Uusb 21. 24
Vi 8,421 2002 20014 31 2012 31 1:1 UsSbD 21. 24
Vi 314,469 2002 2005 31 2012 31 1:1 CHF 36.49
Vi 87,607 2002 2005 31 2012 31 1:1 Uusb 21. 24
i X 8,421 2002 2005 31 2012 31 1:1 UsSbD 21. 24
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2,252 2002 2002 28 2012 28 1:1 Uusb 21.70
8,823 2002 2002 28 2012 28 1:1 usb 21.70
6, 694 2002 2003 28 2012 28 1:1 CHF 36. 65
i 10,758 2002 2004 28 2012 28 1:1 CHF 36. 65
10, 708 2002 2004 29 2012 28 1:1 usb 21.70
8,563 2002 2004 29 2012 28 1:1 Uusb 21.70
6, 491 2002 2005 28 2012 28 1:1 CHF 36. 65
i 2,184 2002 2005 28 2012 28 1:1 usb 21.70
i 8,561 2002 2005 28 2012 28 1:1 Uusb 21.70
394,309 2002 2005 28 2012 28 1:1 CHF 37.90
31,971 2002 2005 28 2012 12 2 1:1 CHF 37.90
33,611 2003 2004 2013 31 1:1 CHF 27.81
i 8,648 2003 2004 2013 31 1:1 USbD 20. 49
i 33,600 2003 2005 2013 31 1:1 CHF 27.81
iv 8,642 2003 2005 2013 31 1:1 UsSb 20. 49
415,623 2003 2006 31 2013 31 1:1 UusSb 22.53
i 33,586 2003 2006 2013 31 1:1 CHF 27.81
i 8, 635 2003 2006 2013 31 1:1 UsSb 20. 49
[ 7,359 2003 2004 2013 28 1:1 CHF 26. 39
X 7,354 2003 2005 2013 28 1:1 CHF 26. 39
7,354 2003 2006 2013 28 1:1 CHF 26. 39
i 213,140 2003 2006 31 2013 31 1:1 CHF 30.50
i 31,971 2003 2006 31 2013 31 1:1 CHF 30.50
(I 42,628 2003 2006 31 2013 31 1:1 Usb 22.583
i v 4,262 2003 2005 28 2013 28 1:1 UsSb 19.53
v 3,374 2003 2004 2013 28 1:1 Uusb 19. 53
Vi 3,371 2003 2005 2013 28 1:1 Usb 19.583
Vi 3,371 2003 2006 2013 28 1:1 UsSb 19.583
Vi 58,796 2004 2005 2014 27 1:1 CHF 44. 32
i X 4,262 2004 2006 27 2014 27 1:1 CHF 44.32
58, 790 2004 2006 2014 27 1:1 CHF 44.32
532,850 2004 2007 28 2014 27 1:1 CHF 48.69
i 63, 751 2004 2007 2014 27 1:1 CHF 44. 32
i 436, 937 2004 2007 2014 27 1:1 UsSb 38.13
i v 31,975 2005 2006 2015 28 1:1 CHF 47.58
31,970 2005 2007 2015 28 1:1 CHF 47.58
i 85, 246 2005 2008 2015 28 1:1 CHF 47.58
i 837,477 2005 2008 2015 28 1:1 CHF 52. 32
[ 383,652 2005 2008 2015 28 1:1 USD 44.81
i X 2,223 2005 2007 2015 1:1 CHF 47.89
161 2005 2007 2015 1:1 CHF 45. 97
149 2005 2007 2015 1:1 CHF 50. 47
127 2005 2007 12 2015 12 1:1 CHF 59.03
i 69, 276 2006 2007 2016 28 1:1 CHF 65. 97
69, 269 2006 2008 2016 28 1:1 CHF 65.97
69, 261 2006 2009 2016 28 1:1 CHF 65.97
1,376,036 2006 20009 2016 28 1:1 CHF 72.57
i 110 2006 2008 2016 1:1 CHF 65.91
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I viiii 242 2006 2008 2016 1:1 CHF 61. 814
I i x 230 2006 2008 2016 1:1 CHF 65. 76
I x 221 2006 2008 12 2016 12 1:1 CHF 67.63
I xi 33,748 2007 2008 2017 28 1:1 CHF 67.00
I x i i 33,747 2007 2009 2017 28 1:1 CHF 67.00
Ixi i 33,743 2007 2010 2017 28 1:1 CHF 67.00
I xi v 1,415,142 2007 2010 2017 28 1:1 CHF 73.67
I xv 223 2007 2009 2017 1:1 CHF 67.08
I xvi 95,913 2008 2011 2018 28 1:1 CHF 32.45
I xvii 662,415 2008 2011 2018 28 1:1 CHF 35.66
I xviidi 745,990 2008 2011 2018 1:1 CHF 36. 46
I xi x 7,420 2008 2011 2018 1:1 CHF 28.10
I x x 4,000,000 2009 2009 26 2014 25 1:1 CHF 10.10
I x xi 905, 000 2009 2012 2019 12 27 1:1 CHF 40.00
I x xii 540,000 2009 2012 2019 27 1:1 CHF 11. 35
2008 2009 12 31
a
1
Kaspar Villiger 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
Sergi o Marchionne 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
Ernesto Bertarelli 20009 - - -
2008 0 0 0
Sally Bott 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
Mi chel Demar é 2009 850, 000 0 850, 000
2008 0 0 0
Rai ner - Marc Frey 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
Bruno Gehrizg 2009 798,000 0 798,000
2008 798,000 0 798,000
Ann F. Godbehere 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
Gabrielle Kaufmann Kohler 2009 - - -
2008 0 0 0
Peter Kurr?® 2009 - - -
2008 1,261,000 0 1,261,000
Ax el P. Lehmann 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
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Hel mut Panke 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
WilliamG. Parfett 20009 1,260,731 0 1,260,731
2008 1,167,659 0 1,167,659
David Sidwell 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
Peter R. Voser 2009 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0
Joerg Wolle? 20009 ; . ;
2008 0 0 0
20009 2,908,731 0 2,908,731
2008 3,226,659 0 3,226,659
1 2
%0009
2008 2009 12 31
a
1 2
Jurg Zeltner CEO 2009 5,800,202 0 5,800,202
Mar kus U.Diethelm 2008 3,900,000 0 3,900,000
2009 15,356, 483 0 15,356, 483
4 2008 7,740,562 0 7,740,562
! 2 %000
2008
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Mote 1 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Significant accounting policies

The prindpal accounting policies applied in preparation of
these consolidated finandial statements are set out below:
These policies have been consistently apphed to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

1) Basis of accounting

LIES &G and subsidiarias (" UBS" or the "Group™) provide 2
broad range of financial senaces including adwisary services,
underwritng, financing, market making, asset management
and brokerage on a global kevel, and retail banking in Swit-
zerland. The Group was formed on 29 June 1998 when
Swiss Bank Corporation and Unicn Bank of Swatzerland
merged. The mesger was accounted for wsng the uniting of
interests methed of accounting.

The consalidated financal statemants of UBS (the “Finan-
cial Staterments“} are prepared in accordance with nterna-
ticnal Financial Reporting Standards (FRS), as issued by the
Internatianal Accounting Standands Board (ASE), and stated
in Swess franes (CHEY, the currency of Switzerland where UBS
AG is incorporated. On 4 March 2010, the Board of Directors
approved them for issue,

Disclosures. under IFRS 7 Fnancal instruments: Cisclo-
sures about the nature and extent of risks and capital disclo-
sures under 145 1 Fresentarion of Fnancial Statements have
been induded in the audited parts of the "Risk and treasury
mianagemant” section, Several IFRS 7 credit mek related dis-
closures are provcled in Mote 29 and several market risk
redatad disclosures are provided in Mote 272,

21 ksa of estimates in the preparation of

Financia! Statements

In prepaning the Fnendal Statements in confarmity with
IFRS, management is required to make estimates and as-
sumpfions that affect reported income, expenses, assats, li-
abilities and disclesune of contingent assets and liabilities,
Use of availabde information and appscation of pdgment are
inherert i the fermation of estimates. Actual results in the
future could differ from such estimates, and the differances
may be material to the Financial Statements.

3 Subsaciaries

The Financial Statements comprise thase of the parent com-
pary (UBS AG) and its subsidiaries, indudeng spedcal purpose
entrbies (SPEs), presented as a single economic entity. UBS con-
traks an entity if it has the powwer to govern the financial and

operating polices generally accompanying & sharehalding of
mare than one-half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries, induding
special purpose entities, that are directly ar indirectly controlled
by the Group ane consobdated from the date an which control
& transferrad 1o the Group. Subsidianes to ba divestad are con-
solidated up 1o the date of disposal (j.e. los of control).

Equity attributable to minority interasts is prasented in the
consclidated balance sheet within equity, separately from
equity attributable 1o LBS sharehalders, Net prafit atinbut-
abile o muncnly interests 15 shown separately in the mooms
statement.

When UBS acquires & subsidiary, the purchass method af
accalinting is used 1o account for the acguisiton of 8 subsid-
wary. The cost of acquisition is measured at the fas value of the
consideration given at the date of exchangs, together with
costs directly atinibutable to that acguisitton. The acguired
wdentifiable ssets or liabilites and cantingent liabilities ane
measred af fair value at the date of acqussition. Any excess
af the oest of acquisition ever the fair value of UBS' share of
the identifiable assets, lisbilities and contingent Eabities & re-
corded &= goodwill. If the cost of acquisition iz less than the
fair value of LESs share of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilites of the business acquined, the difference is
recegnized smmediately m the incoma statament.

The Group sponsars the formation of entities, which may
ar may not be directly or indirectly owned subsidiaries, for
the purpose of asset securitization transactons and strucs
tured debt issuance, and to accomplish certain marrow and
well defined objectives. These companies may acquire assets
directly or indirectly from UBS or its affiliztes. Some of thess
companies are bankruptoy-remote enfities whose assets ang
ot availabde to satisfy the claims of creditess of the Graup or
arw of 15 subsiciaries. UES also has employes benefit tnsts
that are used in connection with share-based payment ar-
rangements and deferred compensation schemes, Such
trusts and other special purpose entities ane consclidaned
in the Group's Fnancial Statements when the substance of
the relationshep betwesn the Group and the company indi-
cates that the company is controdled by the Group.

The follawing crcumstances may indicate a relationship
i whach, in substance. UBS controls and consequently cons
sehdates the SPE:

- the actwities of the SPE are being conducted on behalf of

UBS according 1o its specific business needs 5o that LIBS

obtains benefits from the SFE's operations;
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Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

— B35 has the deasion-making powers to abtain the major-
ity af the benefits of the activities of the SPE or, by sstting
up an “autopilat” mechanism, UBS has delegated these
decision making pawers;

— UBS has rights to obtain the majority of the banefits of
the SPE and therefore may be exposed ta risks incident 1o
the activities of the SPE; ar

= LIBS retains the majosity of the resdual or cwnership risks
related to the SPE or its assels in order 1o ablain benefits
from its activities.

LIBS continuoushy evaluates whether triggesing events re-
quise the reconsiceratian of the consobdation conclusions
made at inception of its invalverment with special purpose
entities, especially securitization wehides and collateralized
debt cbligations {CD0s}k. Triggering events generally include
items such as restructurings, the vasting of patential rights
ard acquisition, dspasal or expiration of interests. In these
circumstarces, special purpose entities may be consolidatad
depending on how the conditions hawve dhanged.

Intercompany transactions, balances and wnrealzed gains
or lasses on ransactions between e Growp CoMpandes are
eliminaned.

Consalidated finanaal statements are prepared using uni-
form accounting polices for like transactions and other
events i similar crcumstances,

Assets and liabdities of subsidianies are classified as “held
for sale”™ if their camying amount will be recoverad panc-
palty throwgh a sale transaction rather than through continu-
ing uze - e parts 19} and 28), Maor lines of business and
subsidiaries that were acquired exclusiely with the intent for
resale are presented as discontinued cperations in the state-
ment of comprehensive income in the period when the sale
aoourred or it becomes highly probable that a sale will ooccur
within 12 months — see part 28),

4) Asseiates and joently controfied entitias

Investrments in asociates m which LBS has a significant in-
fluerce are accounted for under the eguity method of ac-
counting, Sigrificant influence i normally evidenced whan
LB3 awns between 20% 1o 50% of a company’s voting
fights. Irvestments in ascsiates ane initially recorded at cast,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recog-
nize the Group's share of the investee's net profit or loss (in-
cluding net profit or loss recognized directly in equity) after
the date of acguisition.

Interasts in joantl contralled entities, in which UBS and ane
or mare third partes have joint control, are aceounted for un-
der the equity method. A jointly controlled entity 5 abject to
& contractual agreement between LBS and one or mare thind
parties, winch establshes joint controd over its ecanomic ac-
tivities. Interests in such entities are reflected under Irmvest-
ments in associates on the balance sheet, and the related dis-
closures are indhuded in the disdosures for asscoates. UBS
holds garfain intenests in joently controlled real estate entities.
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Imyestments in assodates and interests in jointly con-
trolled entities are dassified as “held for sale” if their carry-
ing armcunt will be recovered principally through & sale
transa<tion rather than through continuing use = see parts
19 aned 28).

S) Recognition and derecognitian of financial instruments
UBS recognizes finandal instruments on its balance sheet
when the Greup becormes a party to the contractual peavi-
sions af the nstrument.

Financial assers

UBS enters infe transactions whese it ransfers financial as-
sals recognized on its balance sheet but retains either all
risks and rewards of the transferred financial assets or a pee-
tian of them, If all or substantially all risks and rewards ars
retained, the transferred financial assets are nat derecog-
nized fram the balance sheet. Transfers of financal assets
with retention of all ar substantially all reks and rewards in-
cluge, for sxample, securities lending and repurchiase trans-
actions described i this Mote under parts 13) and 14), They
further include transactions where financal assets ase sold
10 a third party with a concurrent total rate of return swap
on the transferred assets to retain all thair risks and rewards.
These types of transactions are accounted for as secured
financing fransactions,

In transactions where substantially all of the risks and re-
wards of ewnership of a financial asset are nesther retained
nor fransfermed, UBS derecognizes the financial asset if con-
tral aver the asset is last. The rights and cbligations retained
in the transfer are recognized separately as assets and Ratili-
ties a5 appropeiate. In ransfers where contred ever the finan-
cial asset i retained, the Group continues fo recognize the
asset to the extent of s continuing involvement, deter-
mined by the extant to which it is exposed to changes in the
walue of the transfermed asset. Examples of such transactions
are transfers of financial assets invalving guarantees, writing
put options, acquiring call options, or specific types of swaps
linked to the performance of the asset,

Financia! Fabiiites
UBS remowes a financial kability from its balance sheet when
it is extinguished, ie. whan the cbligation specified in the
cantract is dischargad or cancelled or expires, YWhere an ex-
wsting financial liakility is exchanged for & pew one from the
sarme kender an substantially afferent terms, or the terms of
am existing lizhility are substantially modified, such an ex-
change or modification is freated as a derecognition of the
aoriganal lizbility and recognition of a new liabikty. The differ-
ence i the respective carmying amaunts is recagnized in
prefit er bass.

UBS acts as trustee and in other fiduciary capacities that
result in the holding ar placing of assets on behalf of indi-
viduals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institu-
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tions. These assats and income arising therefrom are excud-
&d fram LBSS financial statements, as they arz not assets of
UBS, provided the recognition critesia ane not satisfied.

&) Dretermination of fair value

The fair value principles applied when determining fasr valus
are considered significant accounting palicies, Fair value i
the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a lia-
bility setiled between krawledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. Details of the determination of fair
value of financial instruments, fair value hierarchy, valuation
technequies and mputs by products, day 1 profit or loss and
other related fair value disclosures are disclesed in Mate 27.

T3 Trading portfolio assets and liabdities

Trading partfolio assets consist of debt instruments (induwding
those in the form of securites, maney markel paper, raded
corporate and bank loans), equity mstruments (induding
those i the foom of securites), assets held under unit-linked
contracts and pracious metaks and other commadities owned
by the Group (“leng” pesitians), Trading pertfolio labdities
consist of abligations ta deliver finandal instiements such as
debt and equity instrurments which the Group has soid 1o
third partses but does not own ("short” positions). The trad-
ing portfalio includes non-derivative finandal instruments
{fincluding those with embedded derivatives) and commadi-
Ties. Fanancial instrurments whach are conssdered derivatives in
their entirety are generally presented on the balance sheet as
Positive and Megative replacement values, refer to part 15).
LIBSS trading porifolio assets and liabilities (refer to Mote 113
incdude proprietany positions, hedge positians and ceent busi-
ness-related positions (pravided the recognition criteria men-
tiored i part 5) ara satisfied).

The trading portfolio is carried at fair value. Gains and
lossas reabzed an dsposal or redemption and unrealized
gains and losses from changes in the fair value of trading
portfalis assets and lakalities are reported as Med tradling in-
corme. Interest and dividend income and expense on trading
portfolio assets or liabilitias are induded in dnterest and dig-
dend incame ar interest and dividena expenss,

An acqused non-derivatve financial asset or liakibty is
classified a1 acquisition as held for trading and presented in
the trading portfolio if it is (a) acquired or incumed principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;
or (o part of & portfalio of identified financal instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of shari-term profit-taking.

The Group uses setilement date accounting when record-
ing trading financial asset tranzactions. From the date the
purchase transaction is enterad inta (trade date), UBS recog-
nizas any unrealized profits and losses arsing from revaluing
that contract to fair valua in Aet trading income. The corre-
sponding receivable or payable is presented on the balance
dneat &= a Positive or Negatve replacement value, Whan the
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transaction is consummated (sattlemant date), a rasulting fi-
nancial asset is recognized on the balance sheet at the fair
vakue of the consideratson given of received plus of minus
the change in far vabue of the contract since the trade date.
Wihen the Group becomes partly 1o a sales contract of a fi-
nancial asset dassified in its trading portfolio, unrealized
profits and losses are no lenger recognized from the date the:
sales ransaction is enmered into {trade datel and it derecog-
nizas the assetl on the day of its ransfer (seitlement date).

Trading portfolic assets transferred to external parties
that do not qualify for derscognition (see part 5} are redas-
sified onLIB5"s balance sheet from Trading portfalio assets fo
Trading partfol assets pledged a5 collaters), if the transfer
ee has recaivad the right to sell or repledge them.

Follzwirg an amendment to LAS 39 in 2008 (refer to Mote
1b and Mote F0E), subsact 1o certain conditions being met,
financial assets may be reclassified from the “Hekd for trea-
ing” categary 1o the “Loans and receivables” category if the
firm has the iment and ability to hodd them for the foresea-
able futwre or until maturity. UBS applied this option in
faurth guarter 200& and first quarter 200% and redassified
several iMigusd financial assats Guch a8 puschased assel-
backed securities, incduding morgage-backed securites
(MBS, originated by third partes) to the category “loans
and receivables”, as a result of which these instruments to
be na longer fair valued through profit or loss but rather ac-
counted far at amortized cost less impaimmeant,

E) Financial assets and Rinancal liabdities designated at fair
value throwgh profit ar loss (“Fair Malue Optian )
A financial instrument may anly be designated at fair value
through prefit or loss at inception and this dessgnation can-
not subsequently be changed. Finandal assets (refer to Note
12) and financial Babilities {refer to Mote 19) designated at
fair value are presanted in separate lings on the face of the
balance sheet.
The canditions fer applysng the Tair value aption ane met
when
a) they are hybeid instrumnents which consist of a debt host
and an embedded derivative comgonent, or
bh they ase iterns that are part of a portfolio which is nisk
managed on a fair value basis and reparted to sensor
management on that basis, or

< the appication of the fair value option reduces or elimi-
nates an accounting mismatch that would othenase
arse.

Hybrid instruments which fall under criterion a) above in-
cluda i} bands and compound debt Babilities isswed, i) com-
pound debt Babilities — OTC, and i) hybrid financial assats
fram rewerse repurchase agreements, Bonds and compound
debt labilities issued and OTC generally include embedded
derivative components which, for example, refer to an
undarlying equity price, interest rate, commadites price ar
e,
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UBS has designated most of its ssued hybrid debt instru-
ments as Financial iakites designated ar fair valie through
profit o loss, These instruments indude predominanthy the
Tolkowing Categomes of underlyings:

— Credit-linked. bonds, notes Bnked 10 the pesformande (eou-
pon andfor redemption amownt) of single names {such as

& company or a country} or a basket of referance entibes,
= Equiti-iimked bonds, notes that are linked to & single

stack, a basket of stocks ar an equity index.

- Rates-iinked: bonds, notes linked to a reference mterest
rate, interest rate spread or feemula.

Besides hybrid instruments, the fair valug option is also
applied 1o cerain loans and loan comestrments which are
substantially hedged with credit derivatives. The application
of the fair value option ta these instruments redwces an ac-
counting mismatch, as kaans would have besn otherwise ac-
counted for at amorized cost or as finandial investments
avalable-forsale (refer to part 93, whereas the hedging
credit pratection is accounted for as a derivatwe mstrument
at fair value through profit or loss.

LIBS has also applied the fair value option 1o & hedge fund
investrient and structured reverse rapurchase agreerment
which are part of portfolos managed on a fair value basis.
Fair value changes related to financial instruments designat-
&d at fair vabue through profit or koss are recognized in der
trading ncovme,

Interest mcome and interest expense on fingncial assets
and liabilities designated at fair value threugh prefit er loss
are included in Interest income on financial assets designat-
ed at fair value or Inferest on financial liakslities designated
at fair value. Refer 1o Mote 3,

UBS applies the same recogrition and derecogrition prin-
ciples 1o finandal instrumends designated at fair value as 1o
finandial instruments held for trading {refer to parts 5} and 73

o) Financal insestments available 1(-|’ ale

Firaroal investment available-for-sale are non-derivative fi-
nandal assets that are not dassfied as held for trading, des-
ignatad at fair valuz through profit or loss, or loans and re-
ceivables, They are recognized on a settlement date basis.
Financial investments avallable-forsale include highly liguid
short term debt securites, strategic equity inwestments, cer-
tain Fvestments in real estate funds as well as instruments
that, in management’s opinsan, may b2 scid in response 1o
of in anticipation of needs for lkquidity or changes in nterest
rates, foreign exchange rates of equety prices. Anancial in-
vestroents availsble-forsale consist mainly of highly liquid
short term debt sacurities issued by government and govern-
ment-controlled institutions, generally with residual maturi-
ties of kess than three months, In addstion, certain equsty in-
strurnents, includng peivate equaty investments as well as
debt instruments and non-performing loans acguired in the
secondary market are dassified as finanoal investments
avallable-for-sale,
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Financial investments available-for-sale are initially racog-
nized at fair vakue induding direct transaction costs and ars
subsequently measured at far value, Unreakzed gains of
losses are reported in Bouity et of applicable income taxes,
until such irvestiments are seld, collected or atherwise dis-
posed of, or until any such rwestment is determined to be
impaired. On disposal of an investment, the accumulated
unrealized gain ar loss included in EquiTy is transferred 1o
Net profit for the perod and reported in Other mcome.
Gains and kosses on disposal are determined using the aver-
age cost method and ane included in the income statemeant.

Interest and dividend ircome an finandal investments

avallable-for-sale are induded in Mferest and dividend in-
came from finanaal investments available-for-sala.
UES assesses at each balance sheet date whether there are in-
dicators of impanment of an available-for-zale investment, An
available-for-salke mvestment is impaired when there is objectve
anidence that as & result of one or more events that coourred
after the inital recognition of the investment, the estimated
future cazh flows of the investmant have besn affected. For
aquity investments avalable-forsale, a significant or prolonged
clecling in Tair vabee below its onginal cost s considerad 1o be
abjectve evidence of impasment. For debl mwestments avail-
able-forsale, objective evidence of impairment includes for 2e-
ample a significant finandal difficulty of the issuer ar counter-
party, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
af probability that the bormower will enter benkrupicy or finan-
cial re-organizaton. Iif a financal investment avadable-for-sale
B determined to be impaired, the cemulative net unrealzed
lorss previously recognized in Fquity s included in et profit for
the penicod and reported as a deduction from Other income, To
the extent impairments of finandal inwestmants available-far-
sale are covared by fair value decreases of the current year-to-
date period, impairments are direcly recognized in the income
statement, To the axtent mpairmants relate to fair value de-
creases of previous penods, amounts are released from ather
comprehensve meame 1o the income statement and separate-
Iy presanted in the statemeant of comprehensive income.

After the recognition of empairment on a finandal invest-
ment available-far-sale, increases in fair valuz of equity in-
strurnents are reparted in Eguty and increases in fair vakue of
cebt instruments wp to aniginal cost ane recognized in Otfer
incovme, provided the fair value ncrease has been triggered
by & specific event {as defined by IFRS):

UBS applies the same recognition and derecognition prin-
ciples to financial assets available-for-salke a5 “Financhal instr-
ments designated at fair value® or “Helod-far-frading, except
that unrealized gains or losses between trade date and settle-
ment date recognized in Equity {refer to parts 5 and i

10) Loans and recersables

For an overview of financial assets and financial liabdities ac-
counted for as “Loans and receivables”, refer to the mea-
surement categories presentad in Nate 29,
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“Loans and recaivables” are non-derivative financial as-
215 with fied or determinable payments which are not
classified a5 held-for-trading, not designatad as at fair value
through PEL of awailable-for-sale and are not thase for
whiech the Group mey not recover substantially all of its
inisal net investment, ather than because of crednt dete-
ricaation,

“Loans and receivables™ include:

- ariginated loans where maney is provided directly to the
borrower, partidipation in a lean from another lender and
purchasad loans (certain purchased non-performing leans
are ako classified as financial investment available-for-
sale at inception) initially classfied as “loans and recei-
ables”;

- securities initially dassified as “Loans and receivables” due
to illiguid markets such as Auction Rate Securitias;

= reclassified secunties previously “Hela-for-trading” {(refer
T Note 29b; and

- reclasified loans such as leverage finance loans previous-
Iy “held-for-trading” (refer to Mote 250).

In fourth quarter 2008 and first guarter 2009, LE% re-
classified certain debt fnancal assets fram the category
“Helg-forrading ” 10 “Loans and receivabies”, mainky due
te illiguid markets for these irgtiurmeants frefer te Note 1b,
Mate 29k and Mote 9a and 9k} When a financial asset &
reclassified from “held-for-frading® to “loans and receiv-
aoles”, the financial asset is reclassified at its fair value on
the date of reclassification. Any gain o loss recognized in
the ncome statement belore reclassification is not reversed,
The fair value of a financial asset on the date of redassifica-
tion becomes its Cost basis or amortized Cost basis, & ap-
plicable,

Loans are recognized when cash & advanced 1o borrows-
ers. Thay are initially recorded at fair value, which is the cash
given ta ariginate or purchase the loan, plus any drect trans-
action <osts, and are subseguently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Interest on koans is included in Interest earned on loans
and advances and is recognized on an accrual bass. Fees
and direct costs relating fo loan origination, refinancing or
restructiing and 1o loan comnmitrrents are defered and
amortized to Interest earned on koans and advances over the
life of the loan using the strasght-line method which approx-
imates the effective interest rate method. Fees received for
commitments that are nat expected 10 result in 3 loan ane
included in Credit-refated fees and commissions ower the
commitment peried. Loan syndication fees whera UBS daes
not retain a portion of the syndicated loan are credited 1o
COMMIissian income,

Fenegotated bans

Subject to assessment on a case by case basis, UBS may ei-
ther restruciure a loan or take possession of collateral. Re-
structuring may invahve extanding the paymant arrangs-
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ments and agreeing to new loan conditions. Once the terms
have been renegotiated any impairment is measured wsing
the effective interest rate (EIR) a5 calculated before the mod-
ification of terms and the lean is nat considened as past due,
Management contmucusly reviews renegotiated laans to
ensure that all critenia are met and that future payments are
Bkaly to eccur, The loans continue to be subject o impair-
ment assessment, calculated using the loan's ariganal ER,

Commitments

Letters af credit, guarantess and similar instruments cam-
mit UBS to make payments on behalf of third partes under
specific droumstances. These instruments, as well as un-
drawn revocable credit facilites, carry cedit risk and ane
inchuded in the expesure ta credit risk table in Mote 29c,
with their gross maximum exposure 1o credit risk kess provi-
S1aN5.

11} Allewance and prowsion for credit [asses

An alowance or provision fior credit losses {refer to Mote OB}

& established if there is chjeciive evidance that the Group

will be unable to collect all armounts due on a daim accord-

ng to the anginal contractual terms or the equivalent value.

A “glaim® means a loan or receivable carried at amortized

cost, or a commitment such as a letter of credit, a guarantee,

3 commitment to extend credit or other credit products,
Cjective evidence of impai ment incluede:

- significant financial difficulty of the ssuer ar counterparty;
ar

- default or definquency in interest or principal payments;
ar

= probatslity that the borrower will enter bankruptoy or
financual re-organization.

An allowance for credit lesses is reportad a5 a reducton
of the carrying walue of a claim on the balance sheet, For an
aff-balance sheet item, such as a commitrmant, a prowssan
far credit koss is reported in Other Nabilities. Additions to al-
lowances and provisions for credit kosses are made through
Credit loss expense,

Allewances and provisions for credit losses are evaluated
4l a counterparty-specific level and collectively based an the
following prinaples:

Courtferparty-speciic; & daim is considersd impaired
when management detesmines that it s probabde that the
Graup will not be able to collect all amaunts due accardeng
ta the arigenal contractual terms eo the equivalent value.

Individual credit exposures are evaluated based on the
borrowers character, averall finandal condition, resounces
and paymant recard; the praspects for suoport from any fis
nandally respensile guarantess; and, where applicable, the
realizable value of any collateral.

The estimated recoverable amount is the present value,
using the kan's arginal affectrve interast rate, of expected

a7
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future cash flows, inchuding amounts that may result from
restructuring @r the liquidation of collateral, Impairmant is
measured and allowances for credit ksses are established for
the difference between the carrying amownt and the esti-
mated recoverable amount.

Upon impairment, the accrual of nterest income based
an the onginal terms of the daim is discontinued, but the
increase of the present value of impawed claims due to the
passage of time is reperted as Inferast income.

All impaired claims are generally reviewsad and analyzed
at least annually, Any subsequent changes 1o the amounts
and timing of the expected future cash flows compared with
the price estirates result in @ change i the allowance for
credit losses and are charged or <redited to Craail foss ex-
panse.

An allowance for impairment is reversed anly when the
credit quakty has improved 1o such an extent that there is
reasonable assurancs of tmely collection of princpal and in-
terest in accordance with the criginad contractual terms of
the claim or equivalent value.

A write-aff is made when all ar part of a daem is deemad
uncallactiole of foegiven, Write-offs ara charged agamst pee-
vicusly established allowances for credit kasses or dwectly 1o
Credit loss expense and reduce the prindpal ameount of 2
claim. Recoweries in part orin full of amounts prassoushy writ-
ten off ane oredited 1o Crealt loss expense. A restructuring of
a financial asset could result i the arigmal loan beirng derac-
ognized and a new lean being recogrzed. The new loan is
measurad at fair walue at initial recognition. Any allowance
taken against the original loan is removed by increasing
write=0ffs, The gross counterpanty exposure, however, may
remain unaffected, if the nghis existing prics to the restrue-
turing have not been legally waived.

A loan is classified as mon-performing when the payment
of interest, principal or fees i averdue by more than 90 days
ard there is no firm evidence that it will be made good by
later payments ar the bquidation of collateral, inschvency
procesdings have commenced against the firm, or obliga-
ticns have been restructured on concessicnany terms.

Cattecthely: Al loans far which no impasrment is denti-
fied on a counterparty-specific level are grouped mito sub-
portfolios with similar credit risk characteristics to collectively
assess whethar impairment exsts within a portfolio. Allow-
ances from collective assessment of impairment are recog-
nized as Credit ks expense and result in an offset 1o the
aggregated kan position. As the allowance cannot be allo-
cated to individual boans, the loans are not considerad to be
impaired and interast i accrued on each loan acoording 1o
its contractual terms.

Fechassifieg seconties: LIBS pariodically revises ifs estimat-
ed cash flows associated with the pertfelio of reclassified
sacurities backed by multiple assets. Adwerse revisions in
cash flows astimates related to credit avents are recognizad
in prafit or kass as credit 0ss expanses, ncreases in estmatad
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futura cash raceipts 25 2 result of mcreased recoverabdity ane
recogrized as an adjustment 1o the effective interest rate an
the kaan frarm the date of change.

12) Securitizaban structures s&t up by UBS

UBS securitizes warious finandal assets, which generally re-
sults in the sale of these assefs to specal purpose entifies,
which in tum issue secunities 1o inwestors, UBSS involvernent
in sacuritizatian struciures significantly declined in 2005 and
remaired low in 2009, UBS applies the policies set cut in
part 3] in determining whether the respective special pur-
pose entity must be conzolidated and those sat out in part 53
in determaning whether derecognition of transferred finan-
cial assets & apprapriate. The following stataments mainhy
apply to finandal asset transfers which are considared trus
sales to man-consohdated entitias.

Interests in the sscuritized financial assets may be re-
tained in the form of seniar or subondinated ranches,
intesest-caly strips or other residual interests {"retained
interests”). Retained interssts are primarily recorded in
Trading povtfalio assets and carried at fair value, Gains or
losses on securitization afe recognized in Met trading in-
cove, which is generally whien the derscognition cnteria
are satisfied. Typically, the Group seeks 1o edt 15 fisk in
retained interests shortly after dose of the securitizaton.
Synthetic secuntization structures fypically imvolve derva-
tive finanoal instruments for which the prindiples set out
in part 15 apply.

UBS acts as structumer and placement agent in warious
MBS and other ABS securitizations. In such capacity, LIBS
purchases collateral cn its own behalf or on behalf of cus-
torners durng the penod prior o securitizaton. UBS 1ypi-
cally sald the collateral into designated trusts at the dose of
the secuntization and underwrites the uHEl‘ings 1o inwestors,
2arning fees fior its placement and structuring senvices. Con-
sistent with the valuation of similar inventory, fair valwe of
retained tranches is initially and subsequently determinead
using market price guotations where available or internal
pricing models that utilize vanables such as yield curves, pre-
payment speeds, dafault rates, loss severity, interest rate val-
atilities arvd spreads, Where possible, assurmptions based on
observable transactions are used to determine the fair valus
of retained tranches, but for several of them, substantialby
n abservabde infarmation is available.

13) Securities barrewing and kending

Securities borrowing and securities lending transactions ane
generally entered into on a collateralized basis. In such trans-
actions, LES typically lends or Eorrows securities in exchangs
for sacurities or cash collateral. Additonally, UBS borrows
securities from its clients” custody accounts in exchange for
a fee. The majority of secumties lending and borrowing
agreements invalve shares, and the remaindsr typicalky in-
valve bands and notes. The fransactions ars conducted un-
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der standard agreements smploved by financial market par-
ticipants and are undertaken with courterparties subsect 1o
UBS%S narmnal credin risk cantrel processes. UBS monitors the
miagrket value of the securities received or delivered on a dai-
by bagis and regueasts of providas addstional collateral ar re-
turms or recalls surplus collateral in accondance with the un-
derlying agreements.

The securities which have been transfermed, whether in
berrawingflending transaction or as collateral, are not rec-
ognized on or derecognized from the balance sheet unless
the risks and rewards of ownership are also transferred, In
such transactions where LIES transfers cwned securities and
where the bosrower ks granted the rght to sell er repledge
thern, the securities are redassified on the balance sheet
fram Trading povtfolio assets to Tading portfolio assers
pledged a5 cotateral, Cash collateral recaived is recognized
with a comesponding abligation to return i1 (Cash collateral
on securities lent), Cash eollateral delivered is derecognized
with a corresponding recervable reflecting UBSYS right 1o re-
ceive it bacdk {Cash collateral on s=ourities barrowed). Securni-
ties received in & lending ar borrgwing transaction are dis-
closed as off-balance sheet tems if LUBS has the mght 1o
resell or repledge thern, with securities that LBS has actually
rescld or repledged ako disdosed separately (see Mote 24).
Additionally, the sale of securties received in & borrowing or
lending fransaction triggers the recognition of a frading lia-
bility {shoet saled,

Consderation exchanged i financng ransactions {.e.
interest received or paid) is recognized on an accrual basis
and recorded as Intersst income or Interest expensa,

14)] Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactiaons
Securities purchased under agreements 1o resal (Revarse ra-
purchase agreements} and securities sold wnder agreements
ta repurchase {(Repurchase agraements) arz generally traated
23 collateralized financing ransactans. Mearly all repuschase
and reverse repurchase agreaments inwvalve debt sstru-
ments, such as bonds, notes or money market paper. The
transacticns are conductad wunder standard agreements am-
plowed by financial market participants and are undertaken
with counterparties subject to UBSS nosmal credit sk con-
tral processes. LS monitors the market value of the seouri-
ties received or defivered on a daily basis and requests or
prowides additianal callateral ar returns or recalls surplus cal-
latesal in accordance with the underlying agrearments.

In a reverse repurchase agresment, the cash delivered is
derecognized and a corresponding receivable, induding ac-
cruad interest, & recorded in the balance shaet ling Revarse
repurchase agreements, recognizing LBS 'S right to recaive it
back. In a Repurchase agreament, the Cash receivad is reoog-
nizad and a carrespending abligation, includng acerued in-
terest, is recorded in the balance sheet line Repurchase
agresments. Securities receivad under reverss repurchase
agreements and securites delivered under repuschase agree-

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

meants are not recognized on or derecognized from the bal-
ance sheet, wnless the risks and rewards of ownership are
obtained or relngueshed, In repurchase agreerments whene
LIES transfers owned secunties and where the reogient is
granted the right to resell or repledge tham, the secunties
are reclassified in the balance sheet from Tading portfolo
assets to Trading portfolo assets pledged ac collateral Secu-
rities received in @ reverse repurchase agreement are dis-
closed as off-balance sheet items if LUB5 has the right to re-
sall or repledge them, with securities that UBS has actually
resold or repledged also disclosed separately (see Mota 24).
Additionally, the sale of securities received in reverse repur-
chase transactions triggers the recognition of a tradng Bakil-
ity (short =ala).

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and in-
terast incurred on repurchase agreements is recognized as
niterest inoome or interest expense over the life of each
Agrearment.

The Group offsets reverse repurchase agreements and re-
purchase agreements with the same counterparty, maturity,
currency and Central Sacurities Depasitory {C 500 for transac-
tions covesed by legally enforceabla master netting agerea-
ments when net ar smultaneows settlement s intended.

15) Derivative instruments and hedge accounting
Derivatives are initiglly recognized at fair value at the date
the derivative cantract is emered inta and ang subsequenthy
rermeasured to fair value. The resulting gam ar loss is recog-
nized in profit ar loss wnless the derivative is desgnated and
effactive as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing
of the recagnation in grofit or koss depends on the natuna of
the hedge relatianship.

Derivative instruments are reported on the balance sheat
as Positive replacement values ar Megative replacement wval-
ues {awcent for futures, 100% daily-margined axchangs
traded ootions and London Clearing House (LCH) interest
rate swaps), Where the Group enters into desivatives far
trading purposes, gains and losses are recognized in et
tradirmg income. Credit losses incurred on ower-the-counter
TOTL) derivatives are alsa reparied in NeT trading income.

Futures and LCH Interest rate swaps with dady masgning
and 100% daily margined exchange traded oplicns ame trans-
acted and measured at fair value. They do not have a replace-
ment value & the varigtion margin, expressing the curmulative
market moverments sach day is settled daily an a cath basis,
Ay ungaid vanation margin frepresents & recevable or pavable
with fed amount and settlernent date and is presenied on
the balance sheat under Due from banks and loans or Duwe o
barks and customers. The daily cash settlernent (i.e. change in
market vahue) & booked 10 Met rading incomme.

Hedge scoounting
The Group also uses deriwative instruments as part of its as-
sat and liability managemant activities 1o manage exposures

265
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to interast rate, fareign currency and credit risks, mcluding
exposuras anising from farecast transactions, The Group ap-
plies either fair value or cash flow hedge accounting whan
transactions mest the spedfied criteria to abtain hedge ac-
Lounling treatment.

At the time a financial instrument is designated as a
hedge, the Group formally documents the refationship be-
tweaen the hedgeng smstrumentis ard hedged itemis), indud-
ing the risk management abgectives and strategy in under-
taking the hedge transaction, together with the methods
that will b= usad to assess the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship, Accordingly, the Group assesses, both at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing bass, whether
the hedging derivatives have baen “highly effective™ m off-
setting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged
iterms, UBS regards a hedge as haghly effective if the folbow-
ing oteria are met & &t incepton of the hedge and
threwughaut its life, the hadge is axpected ta be highly effec-
tive in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flowes attributable to the hadged risk, and b) actual results of
the hedge are within a range of 80% 1o 125%:. In the case
of hedging a forecast transaction, the transaction must have
a high protability of ocowring and must present an expasure
to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect the
reported net profit or loss, The Growp discontinues hedge
accounting when it determines that 2 desivative Is not, or
has ceased 10 be, highly effective as a hedge; when the de-
rivative expares or is sald, terminated or exerdsed; when the
hedged item maturas, is sold or repaid; or when a forecast
transaction s ne longer deemed highly probakle,

Hedge ineffectiveness represents the amount By which
the changes in the fair value of the hedging derivative differ
from changes in the fair value of the hedged item or the
amaunt by which changes in the present value of cash flows
af the hedging dervative differ from changes (or expectad
changes) in the present value of cash flows of the hedged
e, Such inaffectveness is recarded in current pericd sarm-
ings in et trading Income.

Fair value hedges

For qualifying fair valiue hedges, the change in fair value of
the hedging derative is recognized in the income state-
menit. Those changes in fair walue of the hedged item that
are attributable 1o the risks hedged with the derivative in-
strurnent ase reflected in an adpstrment o the Carmying walue
of the hedged itern, whach is also recognized in the incame
statement. The fair value change of the hedged item in a
portfolio hedge af interest rate risks & reported separately
from the hedged portfolic in Cther assets ar Qher fabilfnies
a5 aporopvate. I the hedge relationship = terminated for
reasons other than the dereceaniton of the haedged item,
the differenca between the camying value of the hedged
item at that paint and the valwe atwhich it waould have been
carmed had the hedge rever existed (the “unamortized fair
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walue adjustment™) is, in the caze of interest-beaning instru-
ments, amartized 1o the income statement owver the remain-
ing tesm of the anginal hedge, while for ran-nterest-oeas-
ing instruments that amount is immediately recognized in
earnings. I the hedged itern is derecognized, a.g. due 1o saks
or repayment, the unamartized fair value adjustment is rec-
ognized immediately in profit or loss,

Cash flow heages

A fair value gain or loss associated with the effective portion
of a derivative designated as a cash flow hedge is recognized
initially in Eqeity When the cash flows that the derivative &
hedging materialize, resulting in income or expense, then
the associated gain or lass on the hedaing derivative is amul-
taneously transferred from Eguity to the comespending in-
come o expense line itam.

If & cash flow hedge for a forecast transaction 15 deemed 1o
be no longer effectve, o if the hedge relaticnshap 15 termi-
nated, the cumulatee gaen or loss on the hedging dermative
previously reported in Equily remains there until the commit-
ted or farecast transaction cocurs o & na longer expected 1o
aceur, at whach paint it s transfemed to prafin or ks,

Hedges of net investmenis in fareign operstions

Hedges of net irvestments in foreign operations ane ac-
counted far simdarly to cash flow hedges, Gains or losses an
the hedging instrument relating 1o the effective portian of
the hedge are recognized directly in Bquity (and presented in
the statement of equity and statement of comprehensive in-
come wnder Fareign currency translation], while any gains ar
boszes melating to the ineffective partion are recognized in
the income statement. On disposal of the foreign operation,
the cumulative valua of any such gains or losses recognized
directly in Eguity is redassified 1o the income statement.

Econarmic fedlges which do not quaity for hedge sccounTing

Derivative instruments which are transacted 2 economic
hedges but do not qualify for hedge accounting are treated
in the same way as denvative mstrumeants usad for trading
purpases, i2. realized and wnreakzed gains and losses ars
recagrized o Net frading noome except that, i certain cas-
e, the forward poants an shart duration foreign exchanges
contracts are reported in Mat interest income. Refer to MNote
23 for more information an "econamic hedges®.

Embecded denvarives

A derivative may be embedded in a "hest contract”. Such
combanations are known as hybrid instruments and arise
predominantly fram the issuance of certain struciured debt
instruments. If the host contract ks not camed at fair value
with charrges in fasr value reperted in the inceme statement,
the embedded denmvative is generally reguired to be sepa-
rated from the host confract and accounted for as a stand-
alone derivative instrument at fair wakue through profit or
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loss if the aconomic characteristics and risks of tha embead-
ded dermative are not closely related 1o the economic dhar-
acteristics and risks of the hest contract, and the embedded
dervative actually meets the definitan of a derivative. Bifur-
cated embedded derivatives are presented an the same bal-
ance sheat line as the host contract, and are shown in Note
2% in the “Held for frading” category, reflecting the mea-
surement and recognition panciples apphed,

Typically, UB5 applies the fair value option ta hybeid in-
struments (see part &), in which case bifurcation of an em-
beddad derivative component is nat required,

16) Loan comeamatrments

Lean comrmitrments are defined amouns (unutilized credit

lines ar undrawn portions of credit lines) against which ous-

tamers can borrow mianey at defined terms and conditions.,

Loan commitments that can be cancelled by LBS at any
tirme fwithout gwing a reasan) accarding 190 thes genearal
terms and conditions are neither recognized on-balance
shigat nor off-kalance shaet. Upon a loan draw down by the
cownterparty, the amaunt of the loan is accounted for as
“Leares ang receivables™ (refer 1o part 10),

Irrevacable loan commitmenits {where UB3 has no right 1o
withdraw the loan commatment once communicated to the
beneficiary or that is revocable only due 1o automatic cancel-
lation wpon the detenoration in a borower's creditworthi-
ness) are classified mto the folowng categories:

- Dervative Isan cammifments Jean commiments that
can be settled net in cash or by debvering or ssuing an-
ather financial instrument) or if thera is evidence that LIBS
i seling simdar kaans resulting from its loan commit-
mients befose er shortly after eriginatian drefer 1o part 15).

- Loan cormmitments designated at fir value through prof-
it and kass "Fair valve aption”) (refer 1o part &),

- Below marker loan commigments. Below market |oan
commitments are recognized at far value and subse-
quenthy maasured at the higher of the initially recognized
liability at fair value |ess cemulative amartization and &
prowEsion (refer to part 265, LIBS uses tham anly in specific
stuations (e.g, restructuning, inschencyl.

- Dther igan commitments. Other lean cammitments are
no recorded in the balarce sheet. However, a provisson is
recognized if it is probable that a loss has been incurred
and & reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made refar 1o part 26).

17) Cash and cash eguivalents

For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months'
maturity fram the date of acquisiton incuding cash and
nern-restricted  balances with central banks, treasury bills,
balances included in Duwe from banks, as well 35 money mar-
ket paper incleded in Trading partfolie assets and Financial
invastrments avallable-for-sale.
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18) Physical commaodities

Phwsical commodities (predous metak, base metals, energy
ared other commcdities) bebd by LUBS a5 a result of its brakes
trader activities are gcoownted for at fair value less costs o
sall and recognized within the Tading pertfola, Changas in
fair value less costs to sall are recorded in Met trading inoome.

19 Property and equiprment
Freperty and equipment includes own-used propertsss, in-
vestment properties, leasehold improvements, [T, software
and communication and other machines and equipment.
With the exception of invastment propertias, Froperty
andd eguiprment is carried at cost, bess accumulated deprecia-
tion and accumulated impairmeant kassas, and is periodscally
reviewed for impairment. The useful life of property and
aguipment is estimated on the basis of the aconomic utiliza-
tion of the asset.

Classification far own-used property

Own-used proparty is defined as property held by the Group
far use in the supply of services ar for admnistrative pur-
poses, whereas investrment propery 5 defined a5 praperty
hield o earm rental income and/Sor for capital appredation. If
a property of the Group indudes a portion that i= own-used
and anaother portion that is held to earn rental income ar far
capital appredation, the classificaton 5 based on whether ar
mot these porticons can be sold separately. If the poricns of
the property can be sold separately, they are separately ac-
counted for as own-used property and inwestment proparty.
If the portions cannaot be sold separately, the whale property
& classified a5 awn-used property unless the portion used by
thie Group is mines. The dassificatson of property is reviewed
an a regular bass 1o account for magar changes in it usage.

Leasehold improvernents

Leasehobd improvements are swestments made 1o oustam-
ze buildings and officas aocupied under aperatng loase
contracts to make them suitable for the intended purpose.
The prasent value of estimatad rainstatemant costs to bring
a leased property inte its origingl condition at the end of the
bease, if required, is capitalized as part of the total leasehald
mprovements costs. Al the same time, a corresponding lia-
bility is recognized to reflect the cbligation incurred. Rein-
statement costs are recognized in profit and koss through
degreciation of the capstalized leasehold snorovernents over
their estmated usefid lives.

Software

Software development costs ane capitalized when they meet
certain crteria relating 1o identifiability, it is probable that
future econermc benefits will flow 1o the enterprse, and the
cost can be measured reliably. Internally developed software
maeting these oriteria and purchasad software are dassified
withan IT, software and communication.

&N
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Fraperty held for s3le

Nor-current praperty farmerly own-used or leased ta third
parties under an operating bease and equpment the Graup
has decided 1o sell and for which sale within 12 manths is
highly probable are dassified as non-osfent assets bald for
sale and recorded in Other assets. Upon dassification as held
for sale, they are no longer depreciated and are camied at
the kower of book value or net realizable vahue, Foredosed
properties and other properiies dassified as current assets
ara induded in Properties hedd for sale and recorded in Other
assets. They are carried at the lower of book value and net
realizable value,

Investment properly

Inwestment property is carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognized in the income statement in the period
of change. LBS emplays internal real estate experts 1o deter-
mine e Fair valee of rFvestment praperty by applying rec-
ognized valuatan techniques. In cases whene prces of re-
cent markst fransactions of comparable propertie: are
avallzble, fair valus & determined by reference fo these
transactions,

Estimated useful life of property and equipment
Froperty and equipment is deprediated om a straight-iine ba-
55 over ifs estimated usefud life as follows:

Propertes, excluding land Mgt ercerding S0 years
Leasehald improvements Fesidual lease e,

bet et mecpedineg 10 pears
Crther machines and equspment gt excesding 10 years
IT, softwane an d communication Mot exceeding 5 years

20} Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
ayer the fair valug of the Growgs share of net entifiable
assets af the acquered entity at the date of acguisition.
Goodwill is not amortized; it is tested yearly for impairment,
and, additionally, whan 2 reasonable indication of impair-
ment exists, The impairment tast is conducted at the seg-
ment level a5 reparted = Mote 2a. The segment has bean
determined as the cash-generating unit for impasrment test-
ing purposes as this is the level at which the performance of
investments is revievwed and assessed by management, Refer
1o Note 16 for details.

Intangible assets comprse separately ientifiakde intangi-
ble iterns arising fram business combenations and certain pur-
chased trademarks and =mdar iterrs. Intangible assets are
recognized at cost. The cost of an intangible assat aoguired in
2 business cambination is its fair value at the date of acqussi-
tion. Intangible assets wath a definite useful life are amaortized
using the straight-line methed over their estimated wsaful
econcmic bfe, generally not exceeding 20 years. Intangible
assets with an ndefinite useful Iife are not amertized. Gener-
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ally, 28 identified intangibla assats of UBS have 2 definite usa-
ful life. At each balance sheet date, intangible assats are re-
wiewied for indscations of impairrnent o changes in estimated
futume benefits, I such indicatans exist, the intangible assets
are analyZed 1o ases whether ther carying ameunt is Tully
recoverable. An impairment koss is recognized if the camying
amount exceeds the recoverable amouwnt,

Intangible assets are classified into two categories: &) in-
frastructure, and b} customes relationships, contractual
rights and other. Infrastructure consists of an intangible asset
recognized in connection with the acquisition of PaineWWeb-
ber Group, Inc, Customer relationshios, cantractual rights
and other incudes mainly intanglble assets for client rela-
tianshaps, non-compete agreements, favorable contracts,
proprietary software, trademarks and trade names acquired
in businass combinatians.

2 1) o TaRes

Incoame tax payable an profits is recogruzed as an expense
bazad on the applicable tax laws in each jursdiction in the
period in which profits arise, The tax effects of income tax
hoszes avallable for casry forward ase recognized as a de-
ferred tax assat if it is prabable that future taxable profit will
be available against which those losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax Babilities are recagnized for temporany dif-
ferances betwesan the carrying amounts of assets and Babili-
ties in the balance sheet and their amaunts as measured for
tax purposes, which will result in taxable ameunts in futune
periods. Defarred tax assets are recognized for temporany
differences that will result in deductible amaunts n fuiue
periods, but only to the extent it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available against which these diffes-
erces can be utikzed.

Deferred tax assets and Eabilities are measwrad at the tax
rates that are expacted to apply in the periad in which the
asset will be realized or the liability will be setthed based on
enacted rates.

Tax assets and liabilities of the same type {ourrent or de-
ferred) are affset when they arss from the same tax report-
ing group, they relate ta the same tax autharity, the legal
right to offset exists, and they are intended to be sextled net
ar realzed simultaneausly.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income fax
benefit or expensa excent for current and deferred taxes rec-
agiuzed [ upon the acquisition of & subsidiang, i) for unseal-
ized gains ar lesses on financal investmients avalable-for-
sale, fior changes in fair value of dervative instruments
designated a5 cash flow hedges, and for certain fareign our-
rency translations of foresgn operations, (i) for cerain tax
benefits on defermed compensation awards, and gyl for gains
and losses an the sale of treasury shares. Deferred taxes rec-
ognized in a business combanation (itemn (i} are considerad
when determining goadwill. ltems (i, i) and {0 are re-
corded in Net income recognzed diractly e eguity.
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12) Debt issued

Mewngy Market paper

Meiey market paper ssued is initally measwred at fair value,
which i5 the consideraton recaived, net of ransactian casts
incurred. Subseguent measurement is at amortized cost, us-
ing the effective nterest rate method to amortize cost at
inception 1o the redemnption value aver the life of the debt.

Debt without embedded denvative

lsswad debt instruments without embedded derivatives are
accownted for at amortzed cost, Howeser, it is the Group's
pelicy 1o apply fair value hedge accounting to its fised-rate
debt instruments when the interest rate nsk is managed on
amark-to-market basis. When fair value hedge accounting is
applied to fixed-rate debt instruments, the cammying values of
debt issued are adjusted for changes in fair value related 1o
the hedged exposure rather than carried al amartized oost
— refer to part 15} for further discussion.

[rebr with embedded denvatives (related to LIES AG shares)
Dbt irstrurnents ssued with embedded dervatives that are -
latedd to LIBS AG shares {e.g. mandatosy comertible natesh ane
separated into a iability and an equity component at issue date
if the demative is settled by LIBS recenving or delivering a fixed
number of ifs own shares in exchange for & fised amount of
cash or anather fingncal asset. When a hybrid debt instrurment
& issued, a portion of the net proceeds s allcated 1o the debit
component based on its fair value. The determination of fair
value is gererally based on quoted market prices for LIBS debi
instruments with comparabde terms. The debt companent is
subsequenitly measuned atamartized cost or at fairvalue through
profit or loss, if the fair walue option & apphad. The rermaining
amount of the net proceeds & allkecated to the equity compo-
nent and reported in Share premvum. Subsequent changes in
fair vahse of the separated equity component & ol RO0G-
nized. However, if the hybrid debt mstrument o the embedded
derivative related 1o UBS AG shares is t0 be cash settled ar if it
contains a cash or net share satlement aliernative, then the sep-
arated derivative is accountad for a5 a freestanding derivative,
with chamees in fas value recorded in Net tracing fcome unkss
the entire hybrid debt instrurment & desgnated at fair value
throwgh profit or koss (7 Fair Value Cpticn ™} — refer to part 2).

Dbt with envbecded dervaties

fread refated r LS AG shares)

Debi instruments issued with embedded derivatives that are
refated to non-UBS AG equity instruments, foreign ex-
change, interest rate, oredit instruments or indices are con-
sddered structured diebt instruments. UBS has designated
miast af its structured debdt instrurnents at fair value threugh
profit or loss " Fair Value Option™) — sae part 8). If such in-
struments hawe not been designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the embedded derivative is separated from the

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

hiost contract and accounted for s 2 standalone derivative if
the criteria for separation are met, The host contract is sub-
sequently measused at amantized cost. The fair value aption
5 nat applied ta certain hylbrid instruments whsch contain
bifurcatable embedded dermatives wath references to for-
eign exchange rates and precious metal prices and which are
nat hedged by derivative instruments. These hybrids are still
subject to bfurcation of the embedded derivative.

Bonds issued by UBS held as a result of market making
activities or deliberate purchases in the market are treated as
redemption of debt. A gain or loss on redemgtion is recorded
depending on whether the repurchase price of the bond 5
beeoer or highes than its carrying value. & subseguent sale of
awn bonds in the market is treated a5 a reissuance of detit.

Interest expense on debt instruments is included in Inter-
ast an debt issued. Refer to Note 19 for further details on
delt issued,

23) Pest-employment benefits

UES sponsors & number of post-employment benafit plans
far its emplayees warldwide, which include defined benefit
ane defined contribution plans, and other post-retirenment
benefits such as medical and life insurance benefits,

Defined benefit plans

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an emplovee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on ane o mere factars such as age, pears of ser-
vice and compensation.

The defined benefit liability recognized in the balance
shaat s the present value of the defi ned oldigation at the bal-
ance sheet date less the fair vabue of the plan assets at the
balance sheat date, tagether wath adjustments far any unrec-
ognized actuarial gains and losses and unrecognized past ser-
wice cost, If the defined benefit liakslity is negative {i.e. a de-
fined benefit asseth meaunemeant of the assetis limited to the
lerwoar af the defined berefit asset arnd the tatal of any cumu-
latwee unrecognized net actuarial losses ples unrecegnized
past service cost plus the present value of economic benefits
awailable in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
i future contributions to the plan, LBS apolies the projected
unit oredit method 1o determine the present value of its de-
fined benefit cblgation and the related curment sanice cost
and, where applicable, past service cost, These amounts ane
cakeulated annually by independent actuaries, The predipal
actuarial assumgtions used are set aut in Note 30,

UBS recogruzes a portion of iis aciuanal gains and losses
as mncome or expensa if the et cumulative unrecognized ac-
tuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting
penad e outsice the comdar defined a5 the graater of;

&l 10%: of e present walue af the defined benefi obligation a1 that
date (betore deducting the fair value of plan assetsh; and

by 109 of the far vale of ary plan assets at that date.
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The unrecognized actuarial gains and losses exceeding
the greater of these two values are regognized in the income
statement over the expected average remainmng working
lives af the emphoyees participating in the plans.

UBS recogrizes curtailments an it defined benelit plans
when the reductions in expected future senvice and in the
defined benefit obfgation are 10% or more. Reductions in
expected future service and in the defined benefit abligation
of between 5% and 10% are recognized if deemed materi-
al, and reductions of less than 5% are generally not recog-
nized.

Drefired contrbution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
UBS pays fixed contributions into & separate entity. UES has
ne legal or constnsctive abligation to pay further contribu-
tigns if the plan does not hosd sufficient assets o pay em-
plewess the banefits relating 1o armplayes sarace in the cur-
rent and prior penods. UBSS coninbutkans are expensad
when the employess have rendered services in exchange for
such contributions; thes i generally in the year of contribu-
tien. Prepald contributions are recognized as an asset 1o the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future pay-
ments & available.

Other post-retirement benefits

LIB3 gho provides post-retinement medcal and life insurance
benefiis to retwees in the LS and the UK. The expected costs
of these benefits are recognized over the peniod of employ-
ment using the same accounting methodalogy used for the
defined benefit plans.

24} Equity participation and other compensation plans

Equity participation plans

LIB3 has established several equity partipation plans in the
form af share plans, aption plans and share-setiled stack ap-
prediation right {348} plans. UBS's equity participation plans
ara mandatary, discreticnany ar woluntary plans, UBS recog-
nizes the fair value of share, option and SAR awards, deter-
mined at the date of grant, as compensation expanse ower
the pericd that the employes is required to pravide active
sarvices in order to earmn the award.

Flans containing woluntary tenmination non-compete pro-
wissans (e, good leaver dauses) and na vesting condstions are
corsidered vested at the grant date because no future serece
is required . Compensaton expense is fully recognized on the
grant date or is recognized in a pericd pror to the grant date
if the bank can substantiate that the award i attributable o
past senvice and the amouwnt of the award can be reasonably
and reliably estmated. The awards remain forfeitable until the
legad vesting date if certain conditions are ot met. Forfeture
ewvents cccurning after the grant date do not result in a reversal
of compensation expanse because the relatad services have

v
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been received. Forfeiture avents ocourring befors tha grant
dlate result in the reversal of compensaton sxpense,

Flars containing vesting conditions have either a tiered
westeng sireciure, which vest in increments over that penod
ar a eliff vesting structse, which vest at the end of the pa-
riod. Such plans may contain provisions that shorten the re-
quired service period due o retirement eligibility, In such in-
stances, LIBS recognizes compensation expense over the
sharter of the legal vestng period and the penod from grant
to the retirement eligibility date of the employes. Forfeitre
of thesa awards during the service period resudts in a reversal
af compeniation expense,

Tre fair walue of a share is determined as the average of
the hegh and low UBS share price at the date of grant ad-
justed, where applicable, for an employes's non-entitlement
to dividends during the vesting pericd, any post-vesting sale
ard hedge restrictions, and nen-vesting conditions, The fair
walue of an option and a SAR is determined by means of a
Borte Carfto simulation which takes inta account the spe-
cific termsz and conditions under which the options and SARs
are granted,

Eqjuity settled awards are classified as aquity instruments,
Thee faar value of an equaty-settled award is not remeasured
subsaquent to the grant date, unless an award is modified
such that its fair value immediately after modification ex-
ceads its fair value immediately prior to modsfication, Any
incriease in fair value resultng from @ modification s recog-
nized as compensation expense, either aver the remairing
sanvice period or immediately for vestad awards.

Cash settled awards are dassified as liabikties and remaa-
sured 1o fawr vabue a1 each balance sheet date a5 long as the
award is autstanding. Decreases in fasr value reduce campen-
safion expense, and no compensation expense, on 3 cumu-
lative basis, is recognized for awards that expire worthless or
Farmain unesencised,

Other compensalion pians

UBS has established other fized and variable deferred cash
compensation plans, the value of which i not linked to
UBS% own eguity, UBS'S defermed cash compensation plans
are mandatony or discreticnany plans.

Thie grant date faw vakue of fixed deferred cash awards =
recognized as compensation expense over the service peri-
ad, which is the period the employee i obligated to work in
arder to become entithed to the award,

Warighle deferred cash compensatian s generally awarded
in the form af afternative invastment vehicles (AIVs) The
grant date fair vakue for AlVs is based on the fair value of the
underlying assets {l.e. meney market funds, LUBS and man-
UBS mwitual funds and other LIRS sporsaned funds) on grant
date and is subsequently marked-1e-market at each reporting
date untdl the award is distributed. Forferture of these awards
results in the reversal of expensa. Refer to Mote 31 for further
detais on equity partiopation and other compensation plans,
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15) Amouwnts due under unit-linked investment contracts
LIBSs financial Babilities fram wnit-linked contracts are pre-
sentedd a5 Other Nabiinies (refer to Mate 200 on the balance
sheet. These contracts allow investon 1o invest m a poal of
assets through investment units issued by a IUBS subsidiary.
The wnit holders receive all rewards and bear all risks associ-
ated with the reference asset pood, The financial liability rep-
resents thie amaunt duwe to wait halders and is equal ta the
fair value of the referance assatl peal.

Aszats held under unit-linked investment contract are
presented as trading portfolio assets.

26 Provisions

Fravisions are recognized when UBS has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is prob-
able that an outflow af rescurces will b required to sattle
the chligation and the amount <an be reliably estimated,
Pravisions. are reflected under Other labilities an the balance
shest. Refer to Note 21.

The mapority of UBSS provisions relate to operational
risks, incleding litgation and restructuning <asts, When &
prowEsson is recognized, its armount needs 1o be estimated a8
the exact amount of the obligation 15 generally urknown.
The estimate is based on all available information and re-
flects the amaunt that has the highest probability of being
paid. LES revises exsting prowssions up of down as soan as it
i5 able to quantify the amounts more acourately.

271 Equity, treasury shares and contracts an LUBS shares

UES AG shanes held

UBS &G shares held by the Group are classified in Fquity a5
Treasury shares and accounted for at cost. Treasury shares
are deducted from total sharehelders' equity until thay are
cancelled or reissued, The difference betwesn the proceads
from sales of Treasury shares and their weighted average
cost net af tax, iT any) is repested as Share premiurn,

Confracts with gross phisical settiesment

fexcent physically seffled wiitten pul oplions amd

farwvard share purchase conltractsh

Contracts that requare gross physical settlement in UBS AG
shares are classified in Equity as Share premium {provided 2
fixed amount of shares are exchanged against a fixed
amalnt of cash) and accounted for at cost. They are added
ta ar degucted from equity until setthement of such con-
tracts. Upon settlement of such contracts, the difference ba-
tween the proceeds received and their cost {net of tax, if
ariyl are reporied as Share premium.

Transaction cost related o share issuance of equity
Instriments

Incremental costs directly attributable to the isue of new
shases of contracts wath physical settlement (classified as eg-
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uity instruments) are shown in eguity as “transaction cost
related to share issuance” and are a deduction af equity, net
of tax, from the peoceeds,

Conlract with pat cash setilerment o net cash setllement
option

Contracts on UBS AG shares that requers net cash setile-
ment, of provide the counterparty or UBS with a settlement
aptian which includes a chaice of settling net in cash ane
classified a5 trading instruments, with changes in fair value
reported in the income statement as “net trading incomsa”,
axcept for written put options and forward share purchase
coniracts.

Physically settied written put aptians and forward share
purchase contracts

Phwsscally satthed writhen put options and fonward shase pur-
chase contracts, including contracts whese physical settle-
marit 15 a settlement alternatwe, result in the recognition of
3 financial liabdity. At incaption of the contract, the present
wahue of the obligation to purchase own shares in exchangs
far cash is transferred aut of Equity and recognized a2 a lia-
bility. The liability 15 subsequently acoreted, using the effec-
tive interest rate method, over the life of the contract to the
nominal purchase obligation by recognizing interest ex-
perse. Lipon settlement of the coniract, the liabdity is derec-
ognized, and the amaunt of equity cnginally recognized as a
ability = recassfied within Sgwity o Treasury shares. The
premium received for writing put cotions is recognized di-
ractly in Share prenvium,

Miriorily interests

het profit and Equity are presented indhuding mincrity intar-
ests. Met prafit is split into Met profit attributable 1o LBS
sharehalders and Net profit atinibutaiie o oy e
ests, Equity &5 split inta Eguity attribatable to UES sharehold-
ars and Equity attributalble 1o maniorty interests,

Trust prefemed sscunties issued

LUES has issued trust preferred secusities through consolidat-
ed preferred funding trusts which hold debt ssued by LIBS,
LUBS &G has fully and unconditanally guaranteed all of thess
sacurities. LIBS's oblgations under these guarantees are sub-
ordinated to the prior payment in full of the depesit liabilities
af UBS ard all ather Babilities of UBS. The trust prefermed
secuities represent equity instruments which are held by
third parties and treated as minarity interasts in UB5% con-
sobdated financial statements. The fill dividend payment
obligation on these trust preferred securities ssued is reclas-
sified fram Eguity 1o a corresponding liakelity once a coupon
payment becames mandatory, i.e. when it & triggered by a
contractually determined event. In the income statement the
full dividend payment s reclassified from Net profit attribat-
able 1o LIES shareholderss 1o NeT profit attributable to minoe-
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ity interasts at that ime. UBS bonds held by preferrad fund-
ing trusts are eliminated in conscldation,

28} Discontinued operaticns and non-ourment assets hitd

for sale

UBS classifies individual mon-current nen-financial assets and
disposal groups as held for sale if such assets or dsposal
groups are avadable for immediate sale i their present con-
ditson subject 1o terms that are wsual and custermary for sales
of such assats or disposal groups, management is committad
to & plan to sell such assets and is activaly lcoking for a buy-
&1, the amsets are Deing actively marketed at 2 reasonable
sales price in relaton to thelr fair valwe, the sale is expected
to be completed within cne year, and their sale & considened
highly probable. These assets (and liabdities in the case of
disposal groups) are measured at the lower of their camying
amaunt and fas value bess oosts o sell and presented in Q-
er azsets ang Other fabililies (see Nates 17 and 200 Metting
of assats and labilites is not permitied.

LIBS presents discontinued operations in a separate bne in
the income statement if an entity ar a companent af an entity
has been dspoied of o 15 dassified a5 held for sale and a)
represents a separate major line of busines or geographecal
area of operations, b} is part of a sngle ooordinated plan 1o
dispose of a separate mgor line of busines or geographacal
area of operations, or o} is a subsdiary acguired exchusively
withs & viewy 10 resale (g, Certaen private squity investments),
Net profit from disconbinued eperations indudes the net tatal
of operating profit and loss before tax from operations, in-
cluding net gain or loss on sake befare tax ar measurement 1o
far value less costs 10 sell and discantinued operatians tax
expensa. & compenent of an entity comprises operations and
carshy flows that can be dearly gstinguished, aperationally and
for finandal reporting purpeses, from the rest of UBSS opera-
tions and cash flows. I an entity or & companent of an entity
i classified & a discontrued operation, LBS restates price
periods in the mcome staterment. Refer 1o Mete 27 for details.

25} Leasing

LIES enters inta lease contracts, predominantly of premises
and equipsment, a5 2 lessar and a kessee. The terms and condi-
tions of these contracts are assessed and the leases are dassi-
fied as operating keases or finance leases acconding to their
economic substance, When making such an assessment, the
Group focuses an the following aspects: ab transfer of cwner-
ship af the asset 1o the kessee at the end of the kease term bl
emstence of a bargain purchase cption held by the lesses; £
whether the lease term i for the major part of the economic
life of the asset; d} whether the presant vakue of the minimum
lease payments i substantially egual to the far value of the
leased asset at inception of the lease term; and &) whether the
asset is of a spedalized nature that only the lessee can use
without major modifications being made. I ane or more of
the conditions are met, the lease is generally classified as a
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finance lezse, whils the non-eastence of such conditions nor-
mally leads to & dassification as an operating lease,

Lease contracts dassified as operating leases whese UBS &
the lessee are disclosed in Mote 25, These contracts include
man-cancellable kang-term leases of affice Buildings in most
UBS locations. Lease contracts classified as operating |eases
where LIBS is the lessar, and finance lease contracts whese
UES is the lessor or the lessee, ane not material. Contractual
arrangernents which are nat corsidered leasas in their entirety
lbut which indude lease elements are not matenal to UBS.

UES recognizes a provision for a lease contract of office
space if the unavoidable costs of a confract exceed the bena-
fits 1o be receiwed under i, which requires that a lease contract
& considered onerous in its entirety. A provision far anercus
lzase contracts often includes significant vacant rental space.

30 Feg income

UBS eams fee incarme from a diverse range of services it pro-
wides 1o its custormers. Fee income can be divided into two
broad categeories: income earnad from services that are pro-
wided ower a certain peried of time, for which customers are
generally Billed on an annual or semi-anmual basis, and in-
come earned from providing ransaction-type services. Fees
earned from servicas that are provided over a certain period
of tame are recognized ratably over the service pericd. Fees
earmed from providing transaction-fype sensces are racog-
nized when the service has been completed, Perfarmance-
linked fees or fee componenis are recognized when the rec-
ognition: criteriz are fulfilled. Loan commitment fees on
lending arrangements whese the initial expectation is that
the kaan will be drawn down at some point are defarmed wn-
til the lean is drawn down, and then recognized as an ad-
justrrient to the effective viald over the life of the loan.

The following fee income is predominantly earned from
services that are providad over a period of time: investment
fund fees, fidudary fees, custodian fiees, portfolia and ather
management and advisory fees, insurancerelated feas,
credit-related fees and commissions recetved up-front. Fees
predominantly earned from providing transaction-type ser-
wices indude underariting fees, corporate finance fees and
brokerage fees.

31) Foreign currency translation

Transachons dencminated in foreign currency are franslated
wita the functional currency of the reparting unit at the spot
exchange rate on the date of the transaction. A1 the balance
sheet date, all assets and kakdlities denominated in feraign cur-
rency except non-manetary items afe translated using the dios-
ing axchange rate. Mon-manetary items measured in terms of
Fistancal cast ane translated at the exchange rate at the date
of the transactan. Resulting feraign exchange differences are
recognized i Met frading iwoome. excapt for non-monetany
financial imvestments avadable-for-sale which are recorded di-
ractly in Fquity until the asset is sold or becomes impaired,
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Upan consolidation, assets and lizbilites of foreign oper-
ations are translated into Swiss francs (CHF) — LIRSS presen-
tation curmency - at the dodng exchange rate at the balance
shiegt date, and income and expense mems are rarskated at
the average rate for the perod. Differencas resulting froem
the use of different exchange rates are recognized directly in
Foreign currency translafion within Equite Upon disposal of
fareign aperations the related foreign currency transation
impact previcusly deferred in equety 5 reclassified o Other
incoume.

32) Earnings per share (EF5)

Basic eamnings per share are caloulated by dividing the net
profit ar loss for the pericd attributable to ordinary share-
helders by the weighted average number of erdinary shares
outstanding during the pesiad.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated wsing the samse
migthod as for base EPS and adgusting the net profit or boss
far the period attributable to cedinary shareholders and the
weighted average numksr of ordinary shares outstanding to
reflect the potential dilution that could ooour if cotions, war-
rants, corwertible delbit secunites or othes contracts 1o issue
ordinary shares were corverted or exercised into ordinary
sharas.

33) Segment reparting

In 2005, LBS's busiresses, e wealth management and
Swiss banking business, assel managerment and investment
banking were crganized on a worldwide basss into four busi-
ness divisions and the Carporate Center, taken into consid-
eratian the economic characteristics of the businesses. The
four business dwisions, also knewn as the operating seg-
ments or reportable segments, wera Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank, Wiealth Management Amernicas, Global Aszet
Management and Inwestment Bank, In the internal managa-
et repsart 1o the Group Executive Board (GEE) or the chief
operating deasan maker, the finandal infermaton about
the four reportable segments and Corporate Center was
saparately presanted, This intermnal managemant view was
the basis for the external segment reporting . Carparate Cen-
ter predesmanantly incudes certain costs relating 1o Group
functions and elimination iterns and it 15 not considered an
operating segment under IFRS 8. The costs of shared service
functions like risk management and control, finance, lagal
and compliance, marketing and communications, human fe-
sources, information techralogy infrastructure and service
centres are charged out to the business divisions based on
internal acoounting palicies,

EDINETOOOO
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UBS% internal accounting policies determine the revanues
and expenses direcily attributable to each business devision,
Initernal charges and transfer prcing adjustments ane reflect-
ed in the business divisan performances.

Aewenue-sharing agreements are used to allocate axter-
nal customer revenues ta business divisions on & reasonable
basis. Due fo the present arrangement of revenue-sharing
agreements, the total intersegment revenwes far UBS are im-
material.

The costs of shared sarvices and control functions man-
aged by Corporate Center are allocated to the direct cost
bnes of personred expanses, general and adminstrative @x-
penses and depredation in the respective business divisson
mcome statements, based on mternally determined alloca-
tion keys.

Net interest income is allocated 1o the business dwisions
based on their balance sheet positions. Assets and lakbili-
ties of the business divisions are funded through arnd imest-
ed with the central treasury department, with the net mas-
gin reflactad in the rasults of each business dwision, To
complete the allocatian, Comporate Center transfers interest
meome earned from managing LBSS consolidated equity
back o the reportable segments based on the average at-
tributed equity.

Commissions are credited 1o the business division based
an the comesponding customer relationship. Revenue-shar-
g agreements are used for the allocatian of customer re-
enues where saveral business divisions are involved i the
value-creation chain.

In line with the internal managemeant reporting, segment
assets are reparted without intercompany Dalances or on 4
third-party wiew bass. Refer 1o Mote Za “Segment repart-
ing". For the purpose of segment reporting under IFRS 8, the
nan-cument assets consist of imestment in assocates and
paint wentures, goodwill, other intangible assets as well as
plan, property ard eguipment.

34) Metting

LIBS nats assats and liabilities in its balance sheat if it has 3
legaly enfarceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and imtends either ta settle on a net basis, ar 1a realize the
asset and settle the liability simultanecushy. Netted positions
mcude positive @nd negative replacement values of OTC in-
tesest rate swaps transacted with Londan Cleaning House,
The positians are netted by currency and across matunties,
Furthesmare, amounts incuded in Logns and Due 10 £us-
tomers related to UBS' Prime Brokerage Business hawve baen
netted, where possible,

&7
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b} Changes in actounting policies, comparability and other adpustments

Restatemaents made to the finanasl staterments 2006

UBS has restated its 2008 financial staterments ta carmect
identified accownting errors related to the 2008 financal
statements. These ermors ware not matenial 1o the annual or
quarterly 2008 financal statements, but related cormedlions
wiould have been matenal te first guarter 2009 financal
statements. On 21 hay 2009, UBS re-filed its US Form 20-F
for the year 2008, which induded the restated 2008 finan-
cial statements, The restatement comprizes theee items in
excess of CHF 100 milkon as follows:

Thie fair value of auction rate securites purchase commit-
ments at 31 December 2008, which are recognized as mega-
tive replacement valees on LIBS%S balance shest, was in-
cregsed by CHF 112 million, resulting in a comesponding
charge 1o net trading incarme.

For certain assets reclassified from “Helg-far-frading* 1o
“Loans and recelables” in fourth quarter 2008, racognition
af interest ncome based on the effective interast rate meth-
o wias reduced by CHF 180 million. Other assets were re-
duced accardingly as of 31 December 2008,

The partiad disposals of an imvestment in & consolidated
investiment fund in 2008 gave rise to the realization of the
redated foreign currency franslation less deferred in share-
hodders' equaty. This agyustment reduced ather income for
the year 2008 by CHF 152 milion but did not have a net
impact on UBSS equity. In addition to the abovementionsd
iterms, a number of misstatements individually below CHF 85
millicn were adjusted, The aggregate net effect of these
itemns an net profit attnbutable to UBS sharehedders was an
increase of net profit attributable to sharsholders of CHF 79
millizn.

The tatal net impact of all restated itemns on the 2008 ra-
sults was @ reduction of net profit and net profit atmbutakble
to LBS shareholders of CHF 405 milkan, a reduction of eg-
uity and equity attributable to UBS sharehaolders of CHF 269
millicn, and & reduction of basic and diluted eamnings per
shase by CHF 0,15 and CHF 0014 respectvely. There was no
effect on income tax expense.

Effective 2009

145 ) frevized) Presentation af Financlal Statements
Effective 1 January 2009, the revised International Account-
ing itandard {45} 1 affected the presentation of owner
changes in equity and of comprehensive income, LIBS con-
tinued 1o present cwner changas in equity in the “statement
of changes in equity”, but detailed information relating 1o
nen-owner changes in equity, such as foreign exchange
translation, cash flow hedges and finandal investments
avalzble-for-sale, were presented in the " Statement of com-
prehensive income”,

T8

Whin englermnenting these amendments effective 1 Janu-
ary 2003, L85 also adjusted the format of its “statement of
changss in equity” and replaced the "statement of recog-
nized incame and expense” in the financial statements of
previous years with a “statement of comprehensive in-
come” . Prefemed secunites isswed by consolidated trusts ane
reporied as “equity atiributable to minesity interests”, as
they are equaty instrusments held by third parties. As these
securities make up the largest part of LBS's equity attribui-
absbe o mirarnity interests, UBS discloses movement informa-
tian i a separate table.

LUBS alsa re-assessed its accounting freatment of dwi-
dends from trust preferred securities. In line with the dassifi-
cation of trust preferred securifies as equaty instruments,
UBS recognizes liakilities for the full dvidend payment ooli-
gation once a coupon payment becomes mandatary, e,
when it is triggered by a contractually determined event. In
the income statemant, the same amownt i reclassified from
met profit attributable 1o UBS sharehalders 1o net profit at-
tribstable to minoety interests,

MAS 1 frevised) Presentation of Finarcial Staterments, and
M5 32 [revied) Financial Instruments; Presentation

Thee 1A5E issued a fusther amendment to 145 1 and an
amendment 1o 145 32 regarding puttable financal instru-
ments and obligations arsing on liguidation. The 145 32
amendment clarifies under which cirosmstances puttable fi-
nancial instruments and cbligations arising on lquidatian
have 1o be treated a5 equety instnemeants,

The amendment s limited in scope and & restricted 1o
the accounting for swch instruments under WAS 1, [AS 32,
1A% 39 and IFRS 7, The amendment to 145 1 requires acdi-
tional infarmaticn about puttable financial instruments
ared obligations arising on liguedations which have 1o be
treated as equity mstrurments. UBS adaplad the amesd-
menits on 1 January 200%. The adoption of the amendments
did not have a significant impact an LBSS Financial State-
ments.

IFRS 8 Operating Segmenits

Effective as of 1 January 2009, UBS adopted IFRS 8 Operat-
ing Segeents which replaced 145 14 Segment Reporting,
Under the reguirernents of the new standard, UBS's external
segrmental reportang & now based on the internal manage-
ment reparting to the Growp Executive Board (or the “chief
operating decision maker ), which makes decisions on the
alkacation of resources and assesses the perfermance of the
repartable segmients.

In acoordance with the new UBS structure anmounced in
February 2000, UBS disclosed fouwr reportable segments.
These seqments are the business divisions —\Wealth Manage-
ment & Swiss Bank, Waealth Management Americas, Glabal
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Aszat hanagement and Investment Bank. Whila the Corpa-
rate Center doss not meet the requirements af an operating
segEment, It is also shown separately, Segrent information
fram prear pericds in Note 2a has been restated to conform
ta the reguirements of this new standard. In addition, gead-
will and intangible assets presented in Note 16 have also
been reallocated in order to reflect the revised segment ra-
povting structure.

As UBSYS reportable segment operations are mainly finan-
cial, the total interest income and expense for 2l reportable
sagments are presanted on a net basis, Based on the present
arrangement of revenue-sharing agreements, the tatal intes-
segment revenues for UBS are immaterial. Apart from that,
the segment assets are disclosad withaut the intercampany
balances and this basis & in [ne with the internal manage-
mient repasting. For more details on the basis onowhich the
segment mformation is prepared and reconciled to the
amaunts presentad in UESS incarme statemant and balanze
shiest, refer to Mote 2a.

IFRS 7 (revised) Financial Instnuments, Disclosures

This standard was revised i March 2009 when the kterma-
tional Accounting Standards Board {A38) published the
amendment *Improving Disdoswres about Finanaal Instru-
ments”, Effective 1 January 2004, the amendment reguires
enhanced disclosures about fair vabue measurements and li-
quidity risk.

The enhanced fair value measurement disclosure require-
ments indude: a fair walue hierarchy (i.e. categorization of all
financial Fsinements inta levels 1, 2 and 3 basad on the rele-
vart definitions); significant fransfers between level 1 and level
& meconcliation of level 3 instrumess at the begenning of the
penad ta the endeng balance (level 2 movement 1ablel level 3
prafit ar loss far positions still hedd at balance sheat dats; and
sansitivity information for the tofal posibon of leval 3 instne-
rreents and the basis for the calculation of sud information.

Thie amerded liquidity nek disclosure reguirements largely
confirm the previous rules for providing maturity informa-
tion for mon-derivative financial Eabilitizs, but amend the
rules for providing maturity infarmatian for dervative finan-
Cial Nabilites,

feassessment of Embedded Denvatives

The Intemational Rnancial Aeporting Interpretaticns Com-
riittee OFRECY issued in March 2009 the supplerment Embied-
ded Derwatives: Amendments to IFRIC 9 and 185 39, This
guidance amends FRIC 9 Reassessmeni of Embedded De-
rivatives, and |45 39 Finanacial instruments: Recognition and
Measuremant, The amendments clarify that on reclassifica-
tion of a financial asset aut of the “Held for traging™ catego-
ry, all ermbedded derivatives have 10 be assessed and, if nec-
essary, separately accownted for in the finandal statements.
Trhe application of this guidance did not matenally impact
LES% financial stataments.

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

IFRIC 15 Agresments for the Construction of Real Estate
FFRIC 15 was issued on 3 Juby 2008 and is effective for annual
perieds begenning on oF aftes 1 January 2009, IFRKC 15 pra-
widdes guidance on the accounterg for agreements for the con-
strectan of real estate where antities enter inls agieements
with buyers befare constnuction hes been completed and the
timing of revenue recagnition, The apolication of this gusdance
did nat matenally impact LIBSS financial statements.

IFRIC 16 Hedges of 3 Met Investment in & Foreign Operation
IFRIC 16 was issued on 1 Ociober 2008 and became effec-
tive an 1 January 2003, IFRIC 16 provides guidance in iden-
tifying the forelgn ourrency risks that gualify as a hedged msk
n the hedge of a net ivestment in a foreign operation;
where, within a group, hedging instruments that are hadges
af & net irvestment in a foreign cperation can be held to
qualify for hedge accounting, and how an entity should de-
termune the amaunts to be reclassified fram equity to profit
ar lass for both the hedgeng instrument and the hedged
item. The impact of this interpretation on UBSs finandal
statements was immaterial,

A5 24 Related Party Disclosures

In Mowembear 20045, the LASE amended |AS 24 Related Farly
Disckasures with latest possible effective date 1 January 2011,
UES has early adopied the revised requirements in ifs annual
financial statements 2009, The revised standand amends the
definition of related parties, in particular the relatonship be-
tween UBS and assodated companies of UBS's key manage-
ment persannel or thesr dose family members. Transactions
between LIBS and associated companses of LIBS key managa-
ment personnel cver which LES key managernent personnel
does nat have contral or joint contral are no kangar cansid-
ered related party transactions. Due to the application of the
revsed guidance, related party transactions disclosed in
Mane 32e of the annual financial staterments 2008 have baeen
significantly reguced. Balances and rmovements of [oans to
related parties have been reduced by CHF &62 million at
31 Decernber 2008 and CHF 530 million at 31 Decamber
2007; and fees received for services provided by LIES hawe
been reducad by CHE 11 millsan in 2008 and CHF 10 milkon
w2007

Aligcation of Shared Seniices Costs i Segment Chsclosures

Frar 2009 onwards, IT and Group Off-shorng costs man-
aged by the Corporate Center ane allocated 1o the direct cost
knes persannel expenses, general and adminsirative expens-
a5, and depreaation, in the respective business division in-
come statements, based on appropeiate intermally detar-
mened allacation keys. In the Corporate Center income
staternent, costs allecated 1o the business divisions are de-
ducted from the respective cost lines. In previous reports,
these costs were presented as an expense on the line

“Services (to)/from other business divicions” within each
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Impact on income statement lines

For the comparative 1 2-manth perad in 2008, the follewing allocations wera made:

Wwealih Wealth
Wenagement & hMasagemest Imrsestment Corpormte
CHF milien Swaiis Denk. Amprica Bank. Centey
Persnnnel eapames 225 BS 300 (633}
Garer fed sdminBirative e e 25 121 431 a0G)
Depreciation o property snd eguipment 163 & : 6 455)
Servicess 8]/ som oty betisess dhasions 1719 [267] 1621 [SMGH 1,957

business division and an offsetting corresponding amaunt
on that lime i the Corporate Center. The new presentation
format provides greater transparency by allocating shased
sarvice costs to direct cost lines in divisional income state-
ments, Comparative periods have been adjusted.

Graup results and business divsion performance befare tax
in preveous pericds wiere not impacted oy this poboy change,

Lirit-linked frvestment Contracts

In fourth quarter 2009, UBS decided to present Wealth Man-
agernent & Swiss Bankings obligations under unit-linked in-
vestment contracts under Sther Jabilities in ordes to align
the treatment with similar contracts issued by Global Asset
Management, In the past, the respective oblgations of
‘Wealth Management & Swiss Banking have been reported
under Coe to customens, LIBS has retrospectively applied this
change in presentation. The change in presentation resulted
in the following effects on the balance sheet for 1 January
2008 and 31 December 2008; a decrease of Due o cusiom-
&% and & comespanding increase in amounts due under Oh-
er labilites on the balance sheet (unit-linked investrment
contracts) of CHF 11,787 milion and CHF 2,033 millian, re-
spectively. The change in presentation did not impact UBSs
total liabilities, mcome statements ar earmings per share for
these perads,

Effective in 2008 and earlier

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment:
Vesting Conditions and Cancellatians
On 1 January 2008, UBS adopted an armendment to IFRS 2
Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
and fully restated the two comparative prics years, The
amended standard clarifies the definition of vesting condi-
tions and the accounting treatment of cancellations. Under
the amended standard, UBS is required to distinguish be-
tweeen vesting conditions (such as service and performance
conditions) and non-vesting conditions,

Thie amerded standard no kanger considess vesting on-
ditons to indude certain non-compete pravisions.

The impact of this change is that UBS compensation
awards are axpensed ower the panod that the employee is
requirad 1o provide active sensces in arder ta earn the awand,

280

Fost-vesting sale and hedge restnctions and non-vesting
conditions ane consadened when determéning grant date fair
walue. The effect of the restatement on the opening balance
sheat at 1 lanuary 2006 was as follows: reduction of re-
tained earmings by approximately CHF 2.3 billion, increase of
share premium by approsimatety CHF 2.3 Bilkon, increase of
labilitses Ginduding deferred tax liabdities) by approximataly
CHF 0.5 bdlion, and increase of deferred tax assets by ap-
proamately CHE 05 billion. Met profit attributable to UBS
sharehalders dedlined by CHF 863 million in 2007 and by
CHF 730 milkon in 2006, Additional compensation expenses
aof CHF 797 mullion and CHF 516 millicn was recegnized in
2007 and 2006, respectively. These additional compensation
sxpenses indude awards granted in 2008 for the perfor-
mance year 2007, The impact of the restatement on total
equity as of 31 December 2007 was a decrease of CHF 366
mllion. Retaned earnings at 31 Decemnber 2007 decreased
by approxemately CHF 3.9 billion, share preméum increased
by approximately CHF 3.5 bilkon, lizbilites jncluding de-
ferred tax liabilites) increased oy approxinmately CHEF 0.6 bil-
lion and deferred 1ax assets increasad by approwmately CHF
02 bilkon. The restatement decreased basic and dduted
eamings per share for the year anded 31 December 2007 by
CHF 0.40 each and for the year ended 31 December 2006 by
CHF 033 and CHF .31, respectively. In order to provide
comparative infarmation, these armownts alsa reflect the ret-
rospective adjustments to shares outstanding in 2007 due to
the capital increase and the share dividend paid in 2008,
The additional compensation experse is atiributable ta the
acceleration of experses related 1o share-based awards as
wiell a5 for certan alternative investment wehicle awards and
deferred cash compensation awards which oontain non-com-
pete provisions and sale and hedge restrictions that no langsr
cjualify a5 westing conditions under the amended standard.

Reclassifications of Francial Assets

The International Accounting Standards Board published an
amendment ta International Accounting Standard 39 {145 39
Financial instrumeants: Recogniion and Measiuremsent) cn 13
Oetaber 2008, under wiich eligible financial assets, subject 1o
certain conditions being met, may be reclassified out of the
“Hikd for trading” category if the firm had the intent and abil-
ity to haold them for the fareseeabde future or until matusity.
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Although the amendmeant could have baen applied retro-
spectively from 1 July 2008, LUBS deaded at the end of Octo-
b 2008 to apply the armendment with effect fram 1 Octe-
bier 2008 following an assessment of the implications on its
financial statements. Refer 1o Note 250 for further details on
reclassification of finandal assets.
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Changes fo segment reporting

LIES has continuoushy reduced its private equity business in
Industrial Holdirgs cves the last thies years, The busness no
langer includes consalidated mdustnal private equity invest-
merils, Starteg first guarter 2008, UBS peesentad the ra-
maining activities from this business, mainly financial imest-
ments available-for-sale, under Corporate Center,

i) International Financial Reporting Standands and Interpretations to be adopted in 2000 and later

Ettective in 2010

Improvements To (FRS 2009

The International Accounting Standards Board ssued
amerdments 1o twelve IFRS standards as part of its annual
improvemeants project in April 2009, The adoption of the
amendments could result in accounting changes for presen-
taticn, recognition of FMeasurement purgases. The IMonee-
mienits to IFRS 2009 wall be adopted by UES as of 1 January
2010, UBS does not expect these amendments to have a
significant impact on LES' financial statements.

Amengments fo A5 39 Bnancal instruments; Recogritan
ard Measurernent — Eligible Hedged items

The amendment to 1A% 3% was issued in July 2008. The
amendments provide additional guidance on the designa-
tion of a hedged item. The amendment clarifies how the
existing principles undedying hedge accounting sheald be
applied in two particular siteatons: a) 4 one-sided risk in 4
hedged item and b} inflation in a finandal hedged item. The
amandments to |45 39 will be adopted by LBS as of 1 Janu-
ary 2010, UBS does not expect the amendments 1o have 2
sgnificant impact on LESS finanzial statermernts.

IFRS 2 Business Conmmbunations and AS 27 Consaiidated amnd

Separate financal Sfatements

In famuany 2008, the |ASE issued a revised Standard of IFRS 3

Business Combinations and amendments to 145 27 Consali-

dated and Separate Financial Staterments. The most signifi-

cant changes under revised IFRS 3 are as fallows:

= Contingent consideration will be recognized at fair value
a5 part of the consderation transferred at the acquesition
date. Currently contingent consideration is only recog-
nized once it meets the probability and reliably measwr-
able criteria.

= Mon-controling interests in an acques wall eithar be
measurad at fair value or as the nen-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the fair value of net identifiable
assets of the entity acquired. The option is availabée on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

— Transaction costs incurred by the aoguirer will no longer
be part of the acquisition cost but will have 1o be ex-
pensed as incurred,

The revised IFRS 3 and 145 27 are effective for annual pe-
riods beginning on 1 January 2010 and have to b= apolied
praspectively from the date of adoption, Business combina-
tians consummated prior 1o that date will not be impacted.

The armendrents to S 27 drcluding the conseguential
amendments to A5 213 require the effects (inchuding foresgn
axchange translation) of all transactions with non-control-
Eng interests to be recorded in equity if there is no change in
contral. The standards also specify the accounting when
contral is lost: any remaning interest in the antity is remea-
sured to fair value, and a gain ar less (incduding foreign ex-
change ftranslation) is recognized in profit or loss. The
amendmants 1o 145 21 further darify that no deferred for-
eign currency translation gains and kosses ane 1o be released
upon a partial repayment of share capital af a subsdiany
without & loss of contral. The A4S 21 amendments are effec-
tive on 1 January 2010 and have to be applied prospectively
fram the date of adoption.

Effective wm 2011 and later, if not adapted easly

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

In Movember 2009, the 1ASE ssued IFRS 9 Anancial instru-
ments, which indudes revised guidance on the dassifica-
ticn and measurement of fmancal assets. The pubkcation
af IFRS 9 represents the completion of the first past of a
multi-stage project to replace 1AS 39 Anancial nsiumernts:
recognition and messurament. Under the revised guidance,
3 financial asset is 1o be accounted for at amortized cost
anly if it is held within & business model whose obpective is
to hiodd assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the centractual terms of the financal asset give rise an
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and mterest on the principal amount cutstanding.
Mon-traded equity instruments may be accounted for at
fair walue through eguity, but the subsequent release of
amaunts booked directly to eguity into the income state-
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Mote 20 Other liabilities

ChF miion
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Hite NNz 1308

Tatal cthar liabil ities

33,985 ek

1 I nciudes thisdpa my intesest of consobdatnd bmid

pataeeships of CHF 1.5 billlon {2003 OHF 3.1 bilion) and Rasiithes {iorashet of aplepe coneret (m pas dCH 2.5 H1im | 208

CHF 1.5 Bilion|. Comingaat paryments |nef present valee 25 of 31 December 3008 O4F 1.4 bilion) i the aoquistion of Factial 10 DEwe fal [y drecopi 7ed i DOGde tose sale d W5 Pao

tual in Sepiember 2009

Mote 21 Provisions and litigation

ChHF miion

Tatal Told
Utigatioe"  Reswucienng Other® 31708 g’
118 183 856 7,737 1,716

5 {13 14 il {1351 i3}

Balance at the end of the year

105 A58 E 1,311 2727

+ e hadkics paowsdoons For Mniganion vesuliing from shousty sk and Diarmaden

procasing riks 3 Inchuks. Bsgation resa 1ing Mo kel Rabilny 08 omplancs ke, 3 1 003 Glatsd Waath
Maagervert B Bisivess Barking mck 3 proviskon of CHF 1,454 mdion (LED 1,363 milbent bof the eapectee coats.of the (epuichas & of 3 IO 1o seairities | 454 § laleg V. 101 0ak heprta

008, et the provaion wa s peatialby applied for wperhaes of S35, an ameent of CHF 963 milion (USD 906 nilion ], sochidi ng W66 @R vackid B8t o Megahve ql et ol wes, | b add tioa, &

pavion ol CHF 9117 redliem (USD 730 mi o was mad i connesion sith USS's US cross-bordér Casd = Inchades iineabament Cots fol ks hold
o 31 Desckrebed J00F (CHF 167 maillion on 30 Decimider D061, o ans Fof CRevous ase (o GeTs, pardiions Tor enpioess berefies (Rand of Db wiisd s @ dsbtdi &l Dease ) ad ol inem

Litigatsan
The LBS Groups cperates m a lagal and regulatary environ-
ment that exposes it to significant litigation nsks. As a result,
LIBS is imealved in varicus disputes and legal procesdings, in-
cluding litigaticn, arbitration, and regulatary and criminal in-
vistigations, Such Cases are subject 1o many uncertainties,
and their outcame & aften aefficult to peedict, including the
impact on operations or on the financial statements, particu-
laty in the earlier stages of acase. In certain circumstances, o
awald the expense and distraction of legal proceadings, LIBS
may. based on & cost-benefit analyss, enter inte a settlement
even though UBS denies any wrengdoing. The Group makes
provisions. for casas browght against it when, in the opinkon of
management after seeking legal advice, it is probable that 2
liziility exists, and the amount can e reasanably estimated,
Certain petentially significant legal preceedings as of
31 December 2009 are described below:
a} Mumicipal Bonds: In Novermnber 2006, UBS and others re-
ceived subpoenas from the LS Depariment of Justice, An-

which amaertidoe CHF 168 milkzn

titrust Divsian, and the LS Securitees and Exchange Cam-
mzsion (SEC) seekmig mformaton relating 1o the
imvestment of proceeds of municipal bond issuances and
associated derivative transactions. Both inwestigations ans
angaing, and U85 & cooperating. In addition, various
state Attorneys General have ssued subpoenas seekeng
similar infermatian. In the SEC investigatian, on 4 Febru-
ary 2008, IUBS received a “Wells notice" advising that the
SEC staff is considering recommending that the SEC bring
a ol action against LBS AG in connection with the
bidang of varous financal instruments assodated with
municspal securities. The discussions with the SEC are an-
going.

by Auction Rate Securities; LIBS was the subject of an SEC
investigation and state regulatory actons relating 1o the
marketing and sale of auction rate sacurities [ARSS) 1o
clients, and to U85S role and participation in ARS auc-
tigns and underwriting of ARSs, UBES was also named in
several putative class actions and individual civil suits and
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Financial mfonmation
Netes to the consalidated financial statements

Note 21 Provisions and litigation (continued)

arbitrations. The regulatory actions and irvestigations
and the <ivil proceedings folkowed the disnsgtion in the
markets for these secunities and related auction fadures
since mid-February 2008, At the end of 2008 UBS en-
tered into settlements with the SEC, the New York Attor-
ney General (NYAG) and the Massachusetts Securities Di-
vision wheseby UBS agreed 1o offer to buy back ARSs
from eligible customers within certain time periods, the
last of which begins on 30 June 2014, and to pay penal-
ties af LED 150 mdlion USD 75 million 1o the MyaG, LSD
75 milkon 1o the other states). LESS seithement i largely
in lime with similar industry regulatary settiements, UBS is
continuing to finalize agreements with other state regu-
lators. The SEC continues 1o investigate ndividuals affili-
atedd with LBS wiho traded in ARSs or wiva had responsi-
bility for disclasures.

US Cross-Border: UBS AG has been the sulbjest of a num-
ber of govarnmental inquiries and imvestigations relsting
o its cross-border private banking senvices fo LS private
clients during the wears 2000-2007, On 18 February
2009, UBS AG announced that it had entered into a De-
ferred Prosecuticn Agreement (DP&} with the US Depart-
mient of Justice Tax Division ST and the Linited States
Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Flonda, and
& Cansent Order with the SEC relating 1o these investiga-
tions. As part of the seithement agreements UBS agresd
ta, among other things, (i) pay a total of USD 780 milicn
to the United States, {5} complate the exit of the LIS oross-
border business out of non-5EC registered entities, and
{uly implerment and maintain an effective proaram of in-
ternal controls with respact to compliance with its obliga-
tions under the Qualified Intermediary (Q Agresment
with the U3 bnternal Raverwe Senice (RS), as well as a
revisedd legal and compliance governance structure in or-
der ta strengthen independent legal and cempliance con-
trols. Pursuant to the OPA, the D agreed that any fur-
ther prosecution of LIBS will be deferred for a periad of at
least 18 months, subject 1o extensicn under certain or-
curnstances such as UBS needing mare time to complete
the implementation of the exit of it5 LS cross-bonder busi-
ness. If UBS satisfies all of its obligations under tha DR,
the DOU will refrain permanently from pursuing charges
against LBS relating to the investigation of s LIS orass-
border busness. As part of the resaluton of an SEC dasm
that LUBS acted as an unregulated broker dealer and in-
vestment adwisor in connection with its US cross-border
business, LIBS consented to a setlement that provides,
amang ather things, that: §f LBS will pay LSD 200 mdlion
to the SEC {ncluded in the USD 780 milkan payment de-
seribed abova); and (i) UBS will complete its exit of the LIS
cross-border busingss and will be permanently enjoined
from viclating cartain SEC registration reguinements,
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Thie agreerments with the 000 and SEC did not resoblie the
"lohn Doe™ summons which the RS serded on UBS in
July 200E. In this regard, on 19 February 2009, the Ciil
Tax Divisson of the DOJ filed a cvil petition for enfarce-
ment of this summans in the LS Federal District Coart for
the Southern District of Florida, through which it sought
an order directing UBS te praduce infarmation bacated in
Switzerland regarding US dients who have mamntained
accounts with UBS in Switzerland without providing a
Farm W3,

On 19 August 2009, UBS executed a settlement agree-
ment with the [R5 and the DOJ, to resode the “lohn
Doe” semmons litigation (UBS-US Settlement Aagree-
ment), At the same time, the Lnited States and Switzer-
land entered into & separate but related agreement
Swmss-LIS Agreerment). Amang olhes things, these agree-
ments provide that: (i} UBS and the IRS would promgpthy
file a stipulation dismissing the "John Do summans en-
forcerment acticn then pending in federal court in RMiams,
which oceurmed the same day; (i} the RS waould submst a
request for information regasding accounts of LS dients
maintained at UB% in Switzerland, on the basis that such
clients appear to have committed tax fraud or the Bke
within the meaning of the existing 1996 Swiss-US Double
Taxation Treaty, to the Swiss Federal Tax Adminstratan
(SFTA), which it did on 31 Awugust 2009; (i) UBS would
send a notice to US accountholders that appear to b=
within the scope of the treaty request and produce 1o the
SFTA infarmation an the corresponding accounts both in
accordance with a specified schedule, which UES has
done in compliance with an order ssued by the SFTA an
1 September 200%; and (v LIBS and the IRS would agres
1o amend LIBSS O Agreement, wheneupon the [R5 would
withdrawe the previausly disclosed QI Motsse of Default
dated 15 May 2008, Tha UBS-US Settlement Agrearnent
does not call for any monetary payment by LBS.
Because LIBS has complied with all of its abligations zat
farth inthe UBS-LS Settlement Agreerment reguired 1o ke
completed by 31 Dedember 2009, the IRS has withdrawn
the summens with prejudsce as to all accounts not cow-
erad by the freaty requast.

Subject to UBSS compliance with its further natificatian
and inforrmation processing ablgations set forth in the
LUBS-LI5 Settlement Agreement, the IRS will withdraw the
" lohn Doe® summans with prejudice as to the remaining
acgounts — ie, those subject 1o the treaty reguest — no
later tham 24 August 2010 vpon the actual or antcipated
delivery to the RS of information ralating 1o accounts
covered by the treaty request that does not differ signifi-
cantly from the expected results. Alternatively, the sum-
mans will ba withdrawn with prejudice as to the remain-
ing acooents if &t any time on o after 1 January 2010 the
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Note 21 Provisions and litigation (continued)

IRS has receled infermation fram any seurce relating to
at least 10,000 acoownts of US persons maintaned at
LIBS in Switzerland.

COn 21 lanuary 2010, the Swiss Federal Administrative
Court ruled that the SFTA did not have a proper legal ba-
55 ta grant the IRS request for information with respect 1o
accounts of US persons who had failked 1o report substan-
tial amounts of mcome over an extended period, but had
not engaged in fraudulent activity within the meaning of
Swiss law. The decsion does not invalidate the LIES-US
Settlement Agreement or the Swiss-LS Agreerment and it
does not affect the treaty reguest 1o the extent it s di-
rected at accounts i redation to which such fraudulent
activity occurred. Following consultations with the LIS
Governmaent about measunes to-ensure the further imple-
mertation of the SwissUS Settlament Agreerment, the
Swiss Government decided on 24 February 2010 that it
will zeek to amend the Swiss-US Agreemeant and submit it
to Fadiament for approval,

LIBS conteugs, asin the past, ta fulfill all of its obbgations
under the settlements, induding, among ather things,
the exit of the S cross-border busness out of non-SEC
registered enfities and the provision af relevant account
information 1o the SFTA under the freaty procass,

) Inquenes Regarding Mon-LIS Cross-Border Businesses: Fol-
lowing the dedesure of the LIS aross-border matter and
the settlemants with the DOJ and the SEC, tax and reguia-
tary authorities in a number of countries have requestad
information relatng ta the cross-bosder wealth manage-
ment sarvices pravided by UBS and other finandal institu-
tions. In particular, the revanue sarvices of Canada, the LK
and Australia have served requests upon, or made inquiries
af, UBES and ather Swiss and non-Swiss finandal institu-
tions proseding cross-bonder wiealth management services
for imfarmatan relating 1o such services that is located in
their respectve jurisdictions. BS is cooperating with these
requests strictly within the limits of financial privacy obliga-
Thans under wiss and cther apolicable laws. 05 premature
1o spacidate on the suteome of any such irguines,

&} Matters Related to the Credit Crisis: UBS 15 respanding 1o
a number of governmental inquiries and imvestigations,
and i invelved in a number of Iitigations, arbitrations and
dispurtes, related to the credit crisis and i particular maon-
gage-related securities and other structured transactions
and derivatives. These matters concern, amaong other
things, UBS's valuations, accounting dassifications, di-
closures, writedowns, and contractual obbgations, as wall
a5 its role & underwriter in secunities offerings for other
isswers. In particular, UBS has cammunicated with and has
responded to inguaries by ANMA, its home country con-
solidated regulatar, as well as the 5EC, the Fnandial In-
dustry Regulatory Autharity and the United States Allos-
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s Office for the Eastern Dustrict of New York, regardsng
some of these issues and others, including the reke of in-
ternal contral unils, governance and processes anind
risk contral and valuation of mortgage-related instru-
ments, compliance with public disclosure rules, and the
business rationales for the launching and the reintegra-
tion of Dillor Read Capstal Management. FINMA candud-
ad its inwestigation in October 2008.

Claimes Related to LBS Discoswre: A putative consolidated
class action has been filed against UBS and a number of
current and farmer directors and senior officers in the
Southarrs District af Mew Yark alleging securities fraud in
connection with the firm's disdosures relating to its losses
in the subnrime martgage markets, its lossas and pasitions
N aucton rate securties, and its LS aoss-border business,
Deferdants have moved 1o dismess the complaint foe lack
of junsdection and for failure to state a <lam. UBS and a
rumbar of senior officers and directors have alsa been
sued in a putative consolidatad class action brought an
behalf of holders of UBS Emnploves Retirerment Incoams Se-
curity Act (ERISA) retirement plans in which thene wene
purchases of UBS stodk. UBS has moved to dismiss the
EREA complaint for failure to state a claim,

ar Madoff: In relation o the Madoff investment frawd, LUBS,

UBS {Luxembourgs 54 and certain ather LIES subsidiares
have bean subject 1o inguiries by a number of regulatess,
incuding ANKA. and the Lusembourg Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier [C55F), Thase inguiries
concernad twa third-pary funds established under Lux-
embourg law substantally all assets af which were with
Bernard L. Madoff Investrment Securities LLC (BMIS), as
well as certain funds established under offshare jurisdic-
tigns with aither direct ar indirect sxposurs 1o BMIS,
Theesie fundts now face severa losses. The last reparted net
asset value of the two Luxembourg funds befare the rev-
alation of the Madoff schems was approximately USD
1.7 killion in the aggregate, The documentation estab-
lishing both funds identifies UBS entities in vanaus robes
including custedian, administrator, manager, distnbutar
ard promoter, and indscates that LBS emplovess serve as
board members. On 25 February 2009, the C55F issued a
commumniqué with respect 1o the lasger of the twa funds,
stating that UBS {Luxernboung: 54 had failed to comply
with its due diligence responsibilties as custodian bank.
The C55F erdered UBS (Luxembourg) 54 fo review its in-
frastructure and procedures relating to its supervisory
obligations & custodian bank, but did not ander it to
compensate invastors, On 25 May 2009, LB {Luxem-
baurg) 54 submitted a comprehensive final repert to the
C55F, which resulted in the C55F publishing a new com-
muniqué saying that UES duxembourg) 54 has provided
avidence demonstrating that it has the infrastruciure and
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Mote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

A derivative 15 3 financial mstrument, the value of which is
derived fram the value of ancther {"underdying™) finanoal
instrmerl, an index or some other vanable. Typically the
underlying is a share, commoedity or bond price, an index
value or an exchange or interest rate,

The magonity of derivative contracts are negotiated as 1o
amount [*netional "}, tenar, price and haw the trade is ta be
sattled in the future betwesn UBS and its counterparties,
which may be other professionals or customers {owar-the-
counter {OTC) contracis),

OTC contracts are usually raded under an International
Swaps and Dervatives Assocation SDAY master trading
agreement (MTA) between UBA and its counterparties. Oth-
er derivative contracts ane standardized in ferms of their
amaunts and settlement dates and are bought and sold on
orgaruzed awchanges {exchange-traded contracts (ETDY.
With ETDs, the exchange also acts as a central counterparty.
Trie notional amount of a derivative is genearally the quartity
af the underlying instrument an which the derivative can-
tract is based and & the basis upen which changes in the
value of the contract are measured. It provicdkes an indecation
of the underlying volume of business transacted by the
Group but does not provide necessarily any measure of nisk,

Derivatwe mstruments are carried at fair value drefer fo
Wote 27 for fair value measurement of derivatwe estrue
mients), shown n the balance sheet as Separate fotals of
Fositive replacement values (assets) and Negative replace-
ment values labilies), except for futures, 100% dadly mar-
gined exchange traded optans and interest rate swaps with
the Landan Clearing hause (LCH) with dady margining,
whech are presented on the balance sheet as Dwe from
hangs, Loans and Due fo banks and customers.

Fositive replacement values represant the cost to the
Group of replacing all transactions with & fair value in the
Graup's favor, assurning transactions could be replaced in-
stantaneously. Megative replacement walues represent the
cost to the Group’s cownterparties of replacing all their trans-
actions with the Group with a fair value in thesr favor, Fosi-
e and Megative replacement values on differant transac-
tions are only netted if the transactions are with the same
cownterparty with a legally enforceable right to set off. Posi-
tive and Negative replacement vallies are dencmenated in
the same currency, and the cath flows are intended o be
settled on a net bass. Changes in replacement values of de-
rivative instruments are recognized in the income statemant
unless they meet the criteria for certain hedge accounting
relationships, as explained in Mote 1a) 15) Denvative instns-
ments and hedge acaauniing.

Types of derivative instrumeants
The Group uses the following derivative financial nstru-
menits for both trading and hadging purpases,
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Farwands and futures are contractual obligatons to buy
ar sell finanaal instrurments or commodites on a future date
at & specifiad price. Forward contracts are tailor-made agraa-
ments that are transacted between counterpartiss on the
OTC market, whereas futures are standardized coniracts
transacted on regulated exchanges.

Swaps are transactions in which twe parties exchange
cash flows on a specified notional amount for & predeter-
maned period, Most swaps are traded OTC. The majar fypes
of swap fransactions undertaken by the Group are as fol-
L=10"

— Imerest rate swap contracts generally emtail the contrac-
tual exchange of fixed-rate and floating-rate interest pay-
mants in & sngle cumency, based on a notional ameount
and a reference interest rate, e.q. LIBOR.

- Cross-currency swaps imvolve the exchange of interest
payments based on twa different currency prindpal bal-
ances and reference intarest rates and generally ako en-
tad exchange of principal amounts at the start andfar
end of the contract.

- Credit default swaps (COSs) are the most comman farm
of a credit derivative, under which the party buying pro-
tection makes cne or mare payments to the party salling
pratectson in exchange for an undestaking by the saller to
make a payrment to the buyer follawang a credit event (as
defined in the contract) with respect to a thind-party cred-
it entity {as defined in the contract). Settlement following
a credit avent may be a net cash amawnt or cash in return
for physical debvery of one ar mose obligations of the
credit enity and is made regardless of whether the pro-
tection buyar has actually suffered a loss. After a credit
avent and settlement, the confract is terminated, An
elabaration of credit derwatives is induded in a separate
sectian below.

- Tetal rate of return swaps give the total return receiver
axposure to all of the cash flows and economic benefits
and risks of an underlying asset, without having ta own
the assel, in exchange for a senes of payments, often
based on a reference interest rate, &.g. LIBOR. The tatal
return payer has an equal and opposite position.

- Metal swaps (precioss metal swaps and base metal
swapskinvotve the purchase and sale of specific metals, &
precious matal swap invalves the purchase and sale of a
speafied metal with fised notonal amownt and fixed
price but different setlement dates. A base metal swap s
the simultanecus purchase and sale of a specified metal
with same settlerment dates but different pricing terms.
Ciptions and warrants are contraciual agreaments under

which, typically, the seller {writer) grants the purchaser the

right, but not the obligation, ether to buy (call option) ar to

sell (put option) by or at a set date, a specified guantity of a

financial instrument or commadity a1 a predetermined price,
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MNote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting {continued)

The purchaser pays a premiem 1o the seller for this right.
Cpticns insalving mare complex payment structures ane also
transacted. Oplions may be taded OTC o on a regulatad
exchange and may be traded in the form of a security
{warrant).

Credil dervativas

UBS% credit derivative portfolio consists of oredit default
swaps, total return swaps and options and warrants. As of
31 December 2009, the total notional value of protection
bought was CHF 1,288 billion (CHF 56 billlen and CHF 23
billkon Positive replacenent valves and Negative replace-
ment valses, respectively) and the total notional value of
protection sold was CHF 1,187 bilkan (CHF 23 bilkon and
CHF 47 billion Fositive replacement values and Negatie re-
placernant vales, raspectivelyl in 2009 LB credit deriva-
tives are usually traded as OTC contracts. During 2009 a
number of initiatives were lsunched n both the US and
Euraps to establish centralized dearing salutions far OTC
C05 contracts sexchange cleared denvatives), with the asn
of reducing counterparty risk. UBS, alang with other dealer
members, has baen an active participant in these initiatives.

A significant portsan of LIBSS credit derivatives are traded
under an (S04 MTA between LIBS and its counterparty. LBS's
05 trades are also documented wsing industry standard
forms of docsmentation published by ISD& or equivalent
terms documented in & bespoke {.e. tallored) agreement.
Thase forms and agreements use standardized terms that
form the basis for market conventions related ta the typaes of
credit events that would rigger perfermance e, payment)
under a COA.

The types of credit events that would require UES to per-
form under a CDS contract are subject 1o agreement be-
tween the parties at the time of the transacton. Haoweer,
naarly all transactions are traded using credit avents that ae
applicable under certain market conwentions based on the
type of reference antity to which the transaction relates,
Applicable credit events by market conventions include
“bankruptey”, “fallure to pay”, "restructuning", “abligation
acceleration” and “repudiationmoratarivm®.

RECOUWSE DIoVIEIonS

LBS uses standardized agreements and farms as the basis
for ns credit derwative contracts. Those agresments and
forms do not contain recourse provisions that would enabde
LIBS to recover from thind parties any amounts paid aut by
LIBS {.e, this is the case where a credit event accurs and LIBS
is requeired to make payment under a CO5)

Econowmic hedges and strategy

LIBS actively utilizes CDS to economically hedge specific coun-
terparty cradit risks in i1s banking bock loans portfiolio (nclud-

30

=g lean cornmitrnents) with the aim of reducing concentra-
tions = edividuad names, sectors or speafic portfalios. In
addition, UBS actwely utilizes CO5 to economicalty hedge spe-
cific counterparty credit risks in its OTC denvative portfolios.

LIBS &5 an active dealer in foed sncome instruments and
D5 and redated products with respect 10 a large number of
securities issuers. The primary purpose of these activities s
for the benefit of UBSs chents {markat making} and to a
lesser extent creating new credit expesures faken for UBSS
Ty tradding purposes ipropriatany rading).

Market making actwity cansists ef buying and selling sin-
gle-name C05, mdax CO5, [san COS and related referenced
cash instruments to facilitate dient trading activity. Froprie-
tary trading conssts of trading in single-name CDS, index
<05 and loan CRS 1o capitalize on pricng discepancies be-
tween variows credit instrurments (bands, kaans and equities)
aorass investment grade, high-yeeld and emengang markets.

As 3 general matter, risk to the relevant issuers anising
from fixed income instruments, COS and related products
are reviewed and nsk-rmanaged on a net exposise basis (e,
takong into accawnt all expasures 1o a particular issuer aris-
ing from fized income instruments, C0S and related prod-
ucts) across market making and proprietary trading activi-
ties,
UBS% strateqy with respect ta CO% trading was the re-
duction in scope and swale of the fem's strectured credit,
proprietary oredit and asset seouritization {ncluding syn-
thetic securitization) activities during 2009 and 2008

Contingent features of derivatve labilities

Based on LB credit ratings as of 31 December 2008, ad-
ditional collateral or termination payments pursuant to bi-
lateral agreements with certain counterparties of approxi-
matehy CHF 1.2 billion and CHF 2.8 billion would have been
recquired in the event of a one-natch and twa-netch reduc-
tion, respectively, in UBSS long-term credit ratings. In eval-
uating UBSS liquidity requirements, LUBS considers addi-
tional collateral or fermination payments that would be
reguired in the event of a reductan in UBSS long-tarm
credit ratings.

Derivatives transacted for frading purposes

htost of the Graup's derivative tramsactians relate fo sales
ardd trading activities, sales actwities indude the structuning
and marketing of derivative preducts to astomers ta en-
able them to take, transfer, modify or reduce current or ex-
pected risks, Trading activities induds market making, pasi-
tioning and arbitrage activites. Market making involves
queting bid and offer prices to ather markel participanis
with tha intention of generating revenues basad on spread
and volume. Positioning means managing market risk posi-
tigns with the expectation of profiting from favorable move-
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Mote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

menits 0 prices, rates or indices, Arbetrage actwities imvalve
ientifying and profiting frem prce differentials between
the same product in different markets of the same ecenorm-
ic factor in different products.

Derivatives transacied for hedging purpases

The Group enters into derivatve transactions for the pus-
poses of hedging assets, liabdities, forecast transactions,
cash flows and credit exposures. The accounting treatment
af hedge transactions varies acooeding to the natue of the
instrument hedged and whether the hedge qualifies as such
far accountng purposes.

Derivative transactions may qualify as hedges for acoount-
ing purpases. Thess are described under the corresponding
headings in this note, The Grouwp's acccuntng polices for
derivatives designated and accounted for as hegging smstru-
mienits are explaired in Note 1a) 15 Denvative nstruments
and hedge sccounting, where terms uzad in the following
sactions ang explained,

The Group has also entesed into interest rate swaps and
ather interest rate derivatives {e.g. futures) for day-to-day
economec interest rate risk management purposes, but with-

aut applving hedge accounting,
Falr value hedges of interest rate risk
CHF millien

ks {kosses) on hedgesd fens atimibusshl 1 the hedged sk
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{continued)

The Groug has also used eguity futeres, cptions and, to a
lesser extent, swaps for econamically hegaging in a variety of
equities tradng slralegees 1o offset underlying equity and
equity volatility exposure.

The Group has alsa entered inte CD5's that provide eco-
momic hedges for credit risk exposures (refer 1o the credit
desivatives section).

Fair value changes of derivatives that are part of econom-
ic relationships, but do not gualify for hedge accounting
treatment, are booked to Mef trading income,

Fasr value hedges

The Group's fair value hedges principally consist of interast
rate swaps that are used o protect against changes in the
fadr valpe of fixed-rate instruments (e.g, long-term-fised rate
deil iswses) due to movernants in market mterest rates. The
fair values of outstanding interest rate derivatives designated
as fair value hedges were CHE 526 millicn and CHF 71 mil-
Bon Rosifive replacement vales and Megative replacement
varluies, respectively, at 21 Decernber 2009 and a CHF 883 mil-
Ban net Positive replacement values at 31 December 2008,

For the year anded
A0 310208 o
...... RN T -
151 (7961 (1

Mt gains/ilosses) rmpresanting Ineffective portions of fair value hedges

Fair value hedges of portfolic interest rate risk

Thie Group alss applies far value hedge accountng of part-
falic interest rate risk. The change in fairvalue of the hedged
iterms is recorded separately from the hedged item and iz
incuded in Qther assets on the balance sheet, The fair value
of derivatives dessgnated for this hadge methed at 31 De-
cember 2009 was CHF 956 millien Megalive remacement

Fair value hedge of portfolio of interest rate risk?

varlue, 31 December 2008 was & CHF TE5 millicn net NMega-
tive replacarnent value.

Curing 2008, UBS expanded the use of Fair Value hedge
accounting for portfolio interest rate risk to include othar
Swiss motgage loan portfolios, In 2009 no further scops
SXDANSON Was made,

For the year ended
EHF milien 311108 31,1208 01207
‘Gains{losses) on hedging instuments {4} [Edad) 3
(ﬁn:.ﬂbﬂuﬂunhl@dhﬂmhﬂh h:1h|h|d-pdnsl: ........................................ o s o
Met gains/{lesses) representing ineffective partions of fair value hedges (37} 44 0]
1 Herdge effedivenes b ckoubssd on 2 comelatte bess
i

279/395

&
2
;
o
&
g
£

oOoOooodn



Financial nformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

MNote 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting {continued)

Cash flow hedlges of forecasted fransactions

The Group 5 exposed 1o variability in futwee interest cash
flawes an ran-tiading assets and liakslities that bear mterest
at variable rates or are expected to b= refunded or reinvestad
in the future, The amaunts and timing of fufure cash flaws,
representing both prncipal and interest flows, ane projectad
for each pertfeko of financial assets and Babilities, based on
contractual terms and other relevant factors induding esti-

Forecasted cash flows

mates of prepayrents and defaults, The agoregate principal
balanices and interest cash flows across @ portfolios aver
time ferm the bass for wentifying the non-trading interest
rate risk of the Group, which is hedged with nterest rate
swaps, the maximum maturity of which is 19 yaars.

The schedule of fonecasted principal balances an whech
the expecied interest cash flows arise as of 31 Decernber
2004 5 shown below.

CHE ballion < 1 year -3 years 3-5 pears S—10prars over 10 years
Lamh inflowes (assets) 205 a52 Pl 141 i
St o B e W .
et cash flows 138 Pal] 108 53 8

Gains and losses on tha effective portions of derivatives
designated & cash flow hadges of forecasted transactions
are initially recorded in Equity as Net incame reoogniged
directly i equity and are transferred 1o current perod
earnings when the forecasted cash flows affect nat profit
or loss. The gains and losses on ineffective portions of
such derivatives are recognized immediately in tha income
statement. & CHF 183 million loss, a CHF 108 million loss
and a CHF 443 million gain was recegnized in 2009, 2003
and 2007, respectively. due to hedge ineffectivenass.

As of 31 Decernber 2008, the fair values of outstanding
derivatwes designated a5 cash flow hedges of forecasted
transactions were CHF 5,180 milion and CHF 2,736 mdlion
Faositive replacernant vaiues and Negative repacement val
wes, respectively, and as of 31 December 2008 the amount
wias CHF 2,539 million net Fosiffve replacement values,

At the end of 2009 and 2008, gains of CHF 46 millian
and CHF 88 rmillien assooated with de-designated inter-
est rate swaps were deferred in Equity. They will be re-
maoved from Equity when the previously hedged faore-
casted cash flows have an impact on net prefit ar lass, ar
when the forecasted cash flows are na longer expectad
to oocur. Amounts reclassified from Equity to Net inter-
est income of de-designated swaps were CHF 40 million
net gain in 2002, CHF 49 millian net gain in 2008 and
CHF 79 milllian net gain in 2007,

In 2008, dus to reductions in the volumea of short-term
financial instruments, same of the forecasted cash flows
previcusly induded in the hedge relationships were detar-
mined to no lorger be expected to accur.

Hedges of net investments in fareign operations

The Group apples hedge accounting for cestain consali-
dated net investments in USD=dencmunated operations, At
31 December 2008 the fair values of the financal liabilities
{predominantly structured products issued by UBS} designat-
ed a5 hedging instruments in net ineestment hedges was
CHF 2.5 billion. Gains or kosses on the ranslation of these
hedging instruments are transferred directly to Equity to
offset any gains or losses on translation of the net mvest-
ments in the subsidiares, whidh are also recognized in
Equity. N ineffectiveness from hedges of net investments in
foreign operatians was recogrzed in the income statements
during 2009,

Contractual maturties of derwatives designated as hedging
nstruments in hedge accounting relaticnships

The contractual maturties of defivatves desgnated as
hedging instrements in hedge accownting relatianships ane
considered “essential” for an understanding of the timing
of their cash flows.

Derivatives designated in hedge acocunting relationships (undiscounted cash flows)

Duewithis  [uebetwess  Dus betwesn Do bebwesn Do afte
Tmosst  Tand I monthe 2asd 12menths  1and 5 wars Lywan Total
o
o
Tokal 31.12.09 0 1] 101 [1} 1} 3 1

1 I ke AR a8 105 SeTind. The Gable Indudes a1l cash inflows and curliows of Inieiest @be swaps with Fanthe and MAgaihe ron/aooTont ses.
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Mote 26 Capital increases and mandatory convertible notes

June 2009 share capital increase

©n 25 June 2009, UBS increased its share capital by issuing
253,258 050 new registered shares with & par value of CHF
0.10 each, The shares were placed with & small number of
large instituticnal investors at a price of CHF 13.00 per share.
Net proceeds from the capital increase were CHF 2.8 billicn.
The shares were issued upon decsion by the Board of Di-
rectors out of authorized capital which had been approved
at te annual general meeting of sharehalders on 15 April
2009,

Conversion of the mandatory convertible notes
(MICNs) issued to the Swiss Confederation

On 19 August 2009, the Swiss Confederation anncuncad
the conversion of its UBS CHF & killion mandatory comvert-

Mote 27 Fair value of financial instruments

a) Valuation principles

Fair value i5 the amount for which an asset could be ex-
thanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing partias in an arm’s length transaction. Financial in-
strsments classified as held for trading or designated at fair
value thraugh profit or loss and financial assats classified as
available for sale are recognized in the financial statements
at fair value. All darivatives are measured at fair value.

Fair values are determined fram quated prices in active
markets for identical financial assets or finanoial liabikties
where thess are available. Fair value of a financial asset or
financial lizkility in an active market is the current bid or of-
fer pnce times the number of units of the instrument held,
Where a trading portfalia contains Bath financial assets and
financial lakbilities with offsttng market nsks, fair value is
determined by valuing the gress leng and shert positions at
current mid-market prices, with an adjustment at portfolio
level to the net open long or shart position to amend the
valuation ta bid or offer as appropriate,

Where the market Tar a financial instrument is nat active,
fair value & established using a valuation technique or pric-
ing model, These valuation techniques and modek: invalve a
degree of estimation, the extent of which depends on the

EAL

ible notes (MOMNS) Upan conversion on 25 Auwgust 2009,
UBS issued 332,225,913 new shares with a neminal value of
CHF 0.10 each from exsting conditional capital. The liakality
and the Megative replacerment walue reconded an the bal-
ance sheet for the principal amount and the emb=edded de-
rivative component of the MCNS were redassified 1o eguity.
Thee corwersian of the BCMS resulted in an overall increase in
equity of CHF 5,713 million for 2009, reflecting an increase
in share capital of CHF 33 million and an increass in share
premium of CHF &85 malion, Priar 1o the conversion of the
MCMs, the embedded dermvalive camponent was re-maa-
sured 1o fair value resulting in a gain of CHF 331 millien for
2004, In addition, the Swiss Confedaration waived its right
to receive future coupan payments an the converted MCNs
for & cash amount of aporoximately CHF 1.8 Eillion, The
impact an UBSY income staterment resultng frorm this waiver
was not material.

instrument’s compleaty and the avalability of market-based
data. Waluation adjustments may be made to allow for ad-
diticnal factars including madel risks, liquidity risk and credit
risk. Based on the estabished fair value and model gover-
nance polices and related contrals ard procedures appled,
the management believes that these valuation adjustments
are nacessary and appropriate to fairly state the walues of
financial instruments carried at fair valwe on the balance
sheet.

Whien entering inta a transaction where madel mputs ane
not market observable, the finandal instrement is indtialhy
recognized &t the transaction price, which is generally the
best indicator of fair value, This may differ from the value
abtained from the valuation model ("Deferred day 1 prafit
or less™). The timing of the recognition in profit and loss of
this inatial difference in fair vabue depends an the individual
facts and circumstances of each transaction but is never later
than when the market data become coservable,

Pricing medels and valuation technigues
The most frequently applied pricing models and valuation
techniques nclude discounted cash flow models, relative
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Mote 27 Fair value ef financial instruments (continued)

a) Valuation prindples (continued)

value medals and optan pricing models. Discounted cash
flowes determine the walue by estimating the expected future
cash flows from assets or liabilities dscounted ta their pres-
ent value. Relative value models determene the value Dased
on the market prices of similar assets ar liakalities. Option
pricing models are complex present value models, such as
binomial options pricing models.

LIBS uses widely ragognized valuation models for deter-
minirg fair values of finamncial instruments of lewer complesx-
ity. such as interest rate and cusrency swaps. FOr more £om-
plex mstruments, UBS uses internally dewveloped models,
which are usually basad on valuation methods and tech-
niques generally recognized as standard within the indusiny
Such valuation models are used primarily to vabue derivatves
transacted in the over-the-counter (0TC) market, unlisted
equity and debt securities {including those with embedded
derivatives), and ather fair valusd debt nstruments for which
markets were iliquid = 2009, Market-obsenable assump-
tions and inguts are wed where available, and derived from
simalar assafs in smalar and active markets, from recent
transacticn prices for comparable items ar from other ab-
sarvable market data. Little, if any, weight is placed on frans-
action prices when cakzulating the fair walue if there is no
active market and the transactions are not arderly {iL.e. dis-
tressed or forced). For positions where cbservable referance
data are not availzble for some ar all parameters, UBS cali-
brates the non-market-chsenvable inputs wsed in it valua-
tier meodels based on a combeanation af judgment, histarical
experience and knowledge of current market conditions. As-
sumptions and inpuis usad in valuation techniques and
madels incluede benchmark interast ratas, credit spreads and
other premea wsed in estmatng dscount rates, bond and
equity prices, squity index prices, foresgn exchange rates and
volatikties and correlations.

Thie autput of & madel is always an estimate or approsi-
miation of & value that cannot be detenmaned with cer
tainty, amd valuation technigues ermployed may not fully
reflect all factors relevant 1o the pasitions UBS holds. Yalu-
ations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, o bring
the fair value derived from the model fowards the appra-
priate bdfoffer price and cover close out costs, credit
exposure and model uncertainty. The values derived from
applying these technigues are significantly affected by the
choice of valuation model and the underlying assumptions
made concerning factors such as the amounts and timing
of future cash flows, discount rates, walatility and credit
risk. Accrued interest is recognized as part of the far value
of finandal instruments accounted for at far value. Lock-
up pericds for equity investments are considered when
determaning fair value.
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Interast rate cunves

LIBS uses vanous interest rate curves for valuing its financial
mstruments. Rnandal lizbilities designated at fair value are
measured using UBS%S senicr debt curve. Financal assets
designated at fair value are valued consistent with the curve
usad for the particular business. Uncollateralized credit
expasure is resened thraugh normal credit rating and re-
sanang methods. For the valuation of dervatve instraments,
LBS generally employs a LIBORA flat cumve. If the derivatives
are only partially collateralized, or uncollateralized, the credit
exposure is adjusted throegh a credit valuation adjustment
(CWA) or a debet valuation adjustment {DVAY For the valua-
tian of owernight interest-rate swaps, the overnsght interest-
rate swap curve is appled.

Counterparty credit risk in the waluation of OTC denvative
instruments, denvatives embedded in funded assets
designated at fair value and derhatives embeddied in tRaded
deb! instruments

In order to arrive at fair value, credit vakuation adjustmants
(T are necessany to reflect the credit risk of the counter-
party inherent in over-the-counter {OTC) denvatives trans-
actions, denvatives embedded i funded assets desgnated
at fair vabue and derivatives embedded in raded dabt instru-
meents. This amount represents the estimated market valus
of pratection required to hedge against credit risk from
counterparties in these instruments, CYA depends on ox-
pected future exposures, default prebability and recovery
rate. The calculation takes into acoount whether collateral or
netting arrangements or break clauses are in place. The most
significant compenent of the overall CVA s the partion ne-
lated 1o monaling oredit pratectian, decussad further below,

LBS's owr credit fsk in the valuations of dervative financal
latulities (Negative replacernant vallas)

In 2009, the Graup revised s methodalegy far estematng
debit valuation adjustments (DWAY te incarporate own Sredit
in the valuation of derivatives, predominantly to align it with
the CWA methodology described above, Under the previous
aporoach, the Libor flat valuation of uncollateralized deriva-
tivie Babilities after consideration of any netting agreement
was revalued using LBSS senior debt curve. The difference
between the valuation at Libor flat and the valuation at the
senior debt curve provided the |ife-to-date DYA, and the
change in the life-to-date DA between pericds provided
the cwn credit gain or lass in each period. Under the new
approach, the Graup apphes a methedolegy consistent with
that used to calculate Cwie The calculation takes into ac-
count negative expectad expasure profiles for the derivative
portfolic, collaterals, nettng agreements, expected fulure

£l
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Mote 27 Fair value ef financial instruments (continued)

a) Valuation prindples (continued)

The year-lo-date amaunts represent the poftion of the
change in fair value of the finandal liabilities dessgnated at
fair value that is related to own credit. The Ife-to-date
amaunt reflects the gain related 1o awn credst. by which the
fair vabue of finandal liabilities designated at fair value has
changed since inception. Included in these amounts s the
qguantification of changes in fair value attributable to chang-
&5 in LIB%'s credit spread dunng the periods, In addition, the
total cwn credit changes indude the credit effect of "wolume
changes”, e, the oredit effect of penod changes in fair val-
ues attributable to factors other than credit spreads, such as
redemgptions, effects from time decay, changss in the value
of referenced instruments issued by third parties, or, = the
case of the life-to-date amownt, changes in the foreign ax-
change ratas,

Changes o the valuation of derative financal nstuments
and finarcial instruments designated st i value

In 2009, UBS reviewed (5 approach ta calculating and
beaking own credit of derivative liabilites and financial
liabalites designated at fair value. The fallowing paragraph
describes the impacts of the changes on LIBSs 2009 re-
sults and balance sheet as of the transition date 1 January
2008,

UBSs 2009 net profit and net trading income ncreased
by CHF 143 millian, made up of a charge of CHF 222 million
ta the Corporate Center and 2 CHF 365 milkan credit 1o the
Imvestrment Bank, The net impact on the Investment Bank
compeises a credit of CHF 823 millsan related 1o own credit
and a debit of CHF 458 milkon to the fixed income, ocurren-
cies and commesdities business, financial fabiities designat-
ed at fair value decreased by CHF 1,080 millicn, Fnanclal
assets designa ted af fir value increased by CHE 198 million,
MNegative replscerment valwes increased by CHF 1,119 mil-
lion, and Positive replacement vales decreased by CHF 16
millige,

Reffection af market fiquidity nsk i

tair value determina ficns

Fair value estimates incarparate the effects of market liguid-
ity risk in the rebevant markets, Market liguidity risk is the risk
that a loss is mowred in neutralizing the exposures within &
positian or pertfelo by either liguidating the positon or
establishing an offsetting pasition. A liguidity adjustment is
therefore made o provide agains: the expected cost of cow-
ering apen market risk positions within a portfalic or posi-
tiers. Bid/ Offer adpustments are taken where a net cpen risk
position is retained and the madel on which it is valued is
calibrated to mid market. Valuations based on maodels in-
corparate liguidity or risk premiums either implicitly (2.9. by
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cahbrating 1o market preces that mees porate such premeurms)
ar explicthy.

Reffection of maodel uncertaindy in fair walve determinalions
Uncertainties asedated with the wse of model-based valua-
tions are predominantly addressed through the use of modal
reserves, Thesa reserees reflect the amounts that LIBS esti-
mates are appropriate 1o deduct from the valuations pro-
duced directly by the models 1o reflect uncertainties in the
relevant modelng assumptans and inputs wed. In arrving
at thesa estimates, LU2S considers the range of market prac-
tice and how it beleves ather market participants would
asses5 these unceraintes. Model reserves are periodically ne-
assessed in Bght of infarmation frarm market transactions,
pricing utilities, and other relevant sources.

Wallation processas

UBSS fair valise and model govermance strecture includes
numerous contrals and procedural safeguards that are in-
tended to maximize the quakty of fair vakue measuremants
reparted in the financial statements, New products nesd (o
be reviewed and approved by all stakeholders relevant to msk
and financial control. Respansibibty for the angoing mea-
suwrement of financial instrurments ai fair value resides with
the business but is independently validated by risk and finan-
cigl cantral functions. In carndng out their valuation raspan-
sikmlities, the businesses are required to consider the avail-
abality and gquality of available extarnal market mformaton
and to provide justification and rationade for their fair value
estimates, independent price verification of financial instru-
ments measured at fair vakue is undertaken by the product
contral function which & independant from the risk takeng
businesses. The objective of the ingependent prica vesfica-
tion process & to independently cormoborate the business’
astimates of fair value against avadable market infarmation,
By benchmarking the business' fair value estmates with ab-
sarvable market prices or other indepandent sources, the de-
gree of valuation uncertainty embedded in these measura-
ments can be assessed and managed as required in the
governance framewaork. A critical aspect of the independent
price verfication process i3 evaluation of the appropristeness
of modeling approaches and input assumgtions which yield
fair value estimates derived from valuation models. An inde-
pendent madel review group raviesws UBS's valuation modals
an a reqular basis or if specific triggers acour and approves
them for valuing specific products. As a result of the valua-
tian centrals employed, valuation adjustmenis may be made
to the business” estimate of fair value 1o either align with
independent market information or financal accounting
standards,

31

289/395

5
g
-]
5
E
5
&
]
g
i

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(Eos852)
Oooooood

290/395




EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(Eos852)
Oooooood

291/395




Financial nformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Note 27 Fair value of financal instruments (continued)

k) Falr value hierarchy (continued)

Matenal ;_hdr'g:e-_- in leval 3 ifstnements

A5 of 31 December 2009, finandal instruments measurad

with waluation technigues using sgnificant non-market

observable inputs (lewel 3) mainky indluded the follewing

instruments:

— structured rates and credit trades, including bespoke
collateralized debt abbgations (COOs),

- instruments Bnked to the US residential and LS commer-
cial real estate markets,

- non-Us reference-linked netes, and

— equity-linked notes issued by LIBE.

Trading parifolie assets

Trading portfalic assets transferred inta and outl of bkevel 3
amaunted 1o CHF 12.5 bilkan and CHF 7.1 bilkan, respec-
tively. On 2 net basis, aporogmataly CHE 2 ballion of transfers
inta level 3 were related to certain non-LIS reference-linksd
notes held in Asia as peice determining factors for these
instruments, such as prices of the underlying asset-backad
sacurities, induding residential and commercial real-estate
securities, became unobservable, Other oredit pasitions
{largety puttable bonds) of approximataly CHF 2 billion were
transfiermed into level 3 snce the embedded options could
net be prios tested. In addition. leverage finance instru-
menits, asset-backed securities and other instruments of ap-
proximately CHF 1 billion in total, were transfarred inta level
3 dlue 1o prices becoming uncbservable. Transfers out of lay-
&l 3, en a net basis, lasgely comprised structured rates and
credit trades of approximately CHF 1 bdlion, since liqusdity
had returned to the underlying markets, as well as corporate
bonds of appraximately CHF 1 billion, far which ndepan-
dent pricing sowsces became abservable,

Level 3 tradeng assets purchasaed in 2009 largely include
leverage finance products of approximately CHF 2 bilion
and ather cradit instruments of approsimately CHE 1 illion.

D 1o sales and settlements, bevel 3 instruments de-
creased by approximately CHF 12 Bllion, The fellowing in-
strurnents were affected: structured rates and <redit trades
by approximately CHF 1 billion, bespoke CDOs by approsi-
mately CHF I billion, instruments linked to the LS sub-
prime residantial and LS commercial real estate markets by
appragirmately CHF 3 kllion, mstruments bnked to the ran-
US real estate market by approximately CHF 2 billion, and
leverage finance instruments, reference-linked notes, man-
regl estate asset-backed securities, and other credit instru-
ments by approximately CHE 1 billien for each of these
categeries.
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Denvative instruments

Met replacement values transferred into and out of level 3
amounted to approwmately CHE 3 billion and approsmatehy
CHF 1 bllion, respectively, Transfers nto level 3 struments
mcluded Fesifive replacement values of CHF 26 billion and neg-
ative replacement values of CHF 23 billion. Transfers out of kev-
&l 3 instrumenis inchuded Positive replscement values of CHF
20 bdlion and negative raplacement values of CHF 19 billion.

Tramsfers inte level 3 of replacernent walues mainly inchud-
ed bespoke CDOs, whase comrelation was not observable
through models or throwgh reference data, single-name coe-
porate credit default swaps (CDS), for which credit curves
wiere niol available from pricng sources, and hame eguity
boans €055 and other instruments linked 1o the LS residen-
tial real estate market, wihose recovery values became unab-
sarvable due to the dliguidity of the underlying posttions. In
addition, cartain structured rates and credit trades whase
loan and credit curves weere unabsenvable have been trans-
ferred to bevel 3.

Transfers of replacement valuas out of level 3 consisted
mainly of structured rates and credit trades, for which inde-
pendent pricing sourcas te.g. reliable guofes from pricong
seraces) became available, and other credit instrements for
which racevery rates and cradit spreads ceuld be observed in
the markeat.

Financia) fabilities designated at fair valve

Level 3 financial liabdities desigrated at fair value reclassified
inte level 3 in 2002 of CHF 8 billson predorminarnthy related to
hybrid finandal liabilites, including equity-linked notes is-
suad by LIBS, and funded cradit derivatives. The main driver
far the reclassification was the lack of market data for un-
derlyirg credit default swap curves.

Lewvel 3 sensitivity information

Finanoial instruments camied af fawr value an LBSS balance
sheet include a subset of mstruments for whech fair value 5
measured in fll ar in part wsing valuation techreques based
aon asswmptions that are not supported by market obsery-
able prices or rates.

These may be uncertainty sbout a valuation, resulting
from the chaice of the valuation technique or model wsed,
the assumptions embedded in those models, the extent to
which inputs are not market observable, or as a result of
other elements affecting the valuation technique ar maodel.

ALZ Decermber 2009, UBS performed a sensitivity analy-
si5 1o assess the range of reasonably possible alternative val-
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Mote 27 Fair value ef financial instruments (continued)

b Fair value hiesarchy (continued)

uations for level 3 matiuments. In whdertaking this analysis,
LBS evaluated these mstruments oy classifying them o
low, madium and high categories of valuation uncestainiy
based on the assessment of instrument level charactenistics
ard available market infarmation. Instrument level charac-
teristics include the model from which the valuation was de-
rived, the degree of mpact on far value by unobservable
parameters, resardes and valuation adpstments, Market in-
farmation includes any data that suppors the classification
such as reference to similar instruments and abservable pa-

A of 31 December J0F, CHF bilien
b,
mmm fimctucing those pladec! ar codlateral)
ot replecam et vakver
Firarcial lisbilities
..... i ; s it at i it
.Mgum raplacemnant waLss

ol
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rameater infarmation. Based an the valuation uncertainly as-
signed to an instrement, the market walue was adjusted up-
ward and dowrmward and summed across the level 3 financial
assets and liabilities to armive at the estimated range of rea-
senably possible altermative valuatsans, as shenam in the table
belowe: Favorabde valuation changes for assets would be off-
sat 1o a significant degree by unfaverable changes in liabili-
ties and vice versa as a conwstent use of differant assump-
tlans and estemates would prevent a simuktaneous favorable
ar unfavarable valuation change of assets and liabilites.

1 Iachedes kel B sttty For rarcial instruments. scooarled B of Lai vl ve g ugh profit or ke

o) Vahuation techniques by product and market risk sensitivity

This section includes a description of the valuation of certain
sgnificant product categories and related valuation tech-
niques and madels. In addtion, sensitivity infarmation for
certain significant instrument categonies that ase excluded
frem Management Value-at-Risk as disclesad in the Risk and
treasury managemant section of this report is provided.

Creclit valuation adiustments an manoling Cregit profection
LUBS prewausly entered imla negative basis trades with
mancdines, whereby they provided credit default swap pro-
tection against UBS-held underbyiings, induding residential
martgage-backed sequrities collateralized debt ablgations
RMBS 00, transactions with collateralized loan obligation
{CLOG and asset-packed securities collateralized debt coliga-
tions (ABS COOY Since the start of the financial crisis, the
credit valuation adjustments (O} relating to these mono-
lime expaasures have been a source of valuation undertainty,
given market illsquidity and the terms of these exposures ral-
ative 1o ather menaline-related instruments.

CWA amounts related to monoline credit protection are
based on a2 methedaolegy that uses credit default swap (CDS)
spreads an the monalines a5 a key input in determining an
implied level af expected loss. Where a menolneg has no ab-
sanvable CDS spread, 3 judgment is made on the most com-
parable monadine or combanation of manolines and the cor-
responding spreads are used instead, For RMEBS CDO, CMBS

CDO, and CLO asset categories, cash flow projections are
usad in conjunciion with current fair values of the underlying
assets to provide estimates of expected futune exdposune |e-
els. Fer other asset categonies, future expasure is based on
CUMMent expasure.

To assess the sensitivity of the monaline CWa caloulation 1o
alternative assumgptions, the impact of a 108 increase in man-
alire credit default swap spreacs (2., from 2,000 Dasis points
o 2,200 Basis paints far a speafic monoline) was considared,
At 21 Decembper 2009, such an inoreass would have resulted
in an increass in the monaoline credit valuation adpstment of
approwmately S0 77 million (CHE 80 million; 31 Decembar
2008: LED 206 millices ar CHE 2240 millian), The sanstiity of
thie manaline credit valuation adgustment 1o a decrease af ons
percentage poant in the monoline recovery rate assumptions
{e.g. from 20% 1o 19% for a specific monclne, conditional on
default cecurning) s estimated 1o result in an increase of
apprcmately USD 26 million {CHF 27 milan) in the O
{31 Decernber 2008: LSD 58 miban o CHF 62 million). The
sensitivity 1o recovery rates is substantialty Bnear.

Instruments fimked fo U5 reskdential real estate market

As of 31 Dacember 2009, instrements linked 1o the US resi-
denitial real estate market {e.g., U5 RMES COO) are prasent-
ed as Positive or Negative replscerment valies, or frading
partfalic assets, The Group apples a fundamental model,
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) Valuation techniques by product and market risk sensitivity (continued)

based on contractieal cash flews of the waderlypng bords
due to the absence of liguidity, and therefare pricing infor-
mation, The coniractual cash flows are adjusted for the ex-
pected rate of underlyireg defaults, Lasses in the underiying
marigage pocts are derived from the development of de-
fault and prepayment curves o which loss severity and inter-
&5t curves are applied. The projected lifetime losses are ad-
ditionally calibrated to ABX market indices. The default
adjusted momgage bond cash flews are then aggregated
acrass all band pasitions in the OO, to armve at the owerall
expected cash flows from the mortgage pool, used for the
discounting process, The princples of this madel ane appliad
10 both cash and synthetic instruments.

Commulments (o S0guwire auchon rale secunties (ARSsH
Following the settlement agreements reached regarding
AR5, LES has fair valued its commitment 1o repurchase eli-
gike ARS from customers at par. The commitment is treatad
a5 a dermative and far valued through profit ar loss. The
value of the derivative has three main variables: {1} forward
fair market value of the ARS underlying the remaining out-
standing commitments, {2} cient put behavior, and {3} fora-
casted issuer edemptions at par. The madel 1o value the
commitment consders the cash flows of the trusts them-
salves, and where the predicted cash flows are expacted 1o
create a surplus, the trust is assumed to redeem at par, ba-
cause its choices of allamnative actans, primarily 1o issue
new lsans or redearn, are sevarely restricted. UBS assumes
that all dients will put their eligible ARS badk to UBS at par
on the first eligible day pursuant 1o the agreement with the
L% authoritas. The discount rates in this model embed risk
premiums that are calibrated 1o otserved market trans-
actions. LUBS estmates that a S0% inorease or decrease in
the risk premiums would result in a loss of approximately
LISD 287 million (CHF 2597 mdlion} or gain of approximately
Us0 303 millicn (CHF 314 mallionk. As of 21 December 2008
2 similar model was appled, however, at the beginning of
2009 revisions were made 1o better reflect aswmptions
gbout when the dients are expacted to exerose their put
aptians.

U5 reference-finked notes (LS AL

The US reference-linked notes (U35 ALNs) consist of a saries of
transactions whereby LUBS purchased credit protection, pre-
dominanily in note farm, on a noticnal poritfalio of feed in-
come assens. The referenced assels are comprsed of LSO
Asset-Racked Secunfies [(AB3sh (primarily commercial mart-
gage-backed securities and sub-prime residential mortgage-
backed securites) and/or corporate bonds and loans across
all rating categonies, The credit protecton embsadied in the
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ALMs= is fair valued using a market standard approach to the
valuation of portfolio credit protection (Gaussian copula),
This approach effectvely i intended to simulate comralated
defaults within the portfalio, where the expected losses and
defaults of the individual assets are closely linkead 1o the ab-
semved market pricas {spread bevels) of those assets. Key as-
sumptions of the maodel nclude comrelations and recovery
rates. UBS applies fair value adjustiments related 1o patential
unecertainty in each of these parameters, which are anly par-
Iy observable. In additan, UBS applies fair value adjustments
for uncertainties assodated with the use of chserved spread
levels a5 the primary inpats, These far value adjustments are
cabculated by appiying shocks 1o the melevant parametens
arwd revalusng the eredit protection. These shocks for cormela-
tion, recovery and spreads are set to various kevels depend-
ing on the asset type and £ or ragion and may vary over fims
depending an the best judgment of the rebevant trading and
contral personned, Comelation and recovery shacks ane gen-
eralky in the reasonalbly posable rarge of 5 to 15 percentage
paoints. Spread shocks wary more widely and depend on
whether the underlying protection is funded or unfunded to
reflect cash or synthetic basis effects. As of 31 Decernber
2009, the fair value of the US RLM credit protection {pre-
reserve) 5 approcimately USD 1,502 million {CHF 1,555 mil-
lion; 31 December 2008: USD 3,284 million aor CHF 3,502
million}. The fair value adjustments calkoulated by applying
the shocks described above are approdmately LUSG 71 mil-
lion {CHF 74 millien; 31 Decermber 2008: LSO 293 million ar
CHF 219 million} 2= of 31 December 2009, This adjustment
may also be considered a measurement of sansitivity,

Nor-LUS reference-inked notes (Nor-US RLNS)

The same valuation medel and the same aporoach 19 cakiy-
lation of fair value adjustments are applied to the non-US
refarencedinked note (non-US RLN) credit protection as to
the LS BLN credst protection descnibed above, except that
the spread s shocked by 10% for European corpordale
names. As of 31 December 2009, the fair value of the nan-
LS ALM credit protection is approximately S0 1,155 milkan
{CHF 1,196 mallion; 371 Decernber 2008; LS 1,971 milkan
af CHF 2102 mdlion). The fair value adjustrents (up and
down) calowlated by applying the shocks described above
are approximately USD 105 million {CHF 109 mdlion; 31 De-
cember 2008; LSD 155 million or CHF 165 million). This
adjustrnent may also be consdered a measusermnent of sen-
sitivity.

Option to acquire equity of the SMNE StabFund
Under IFRS, LIBSS opton to purchase the SMB StabFund's
aquity is recognized on the balance sheet as a desivative at
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Mote 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans

a) Flans offered

LBS has established several equily participaton and ather
compensation plans to further align the interests of execu-
tives, managers and staff with the interests of shareholders,
The plans are offered 1o eligible employees in approximately
50 ceuniries and are designed to mest the complex legal,
tax and regulatory requirements of each country in which
they are offerad. UBSs compensation plans are mandatory,
discretionary ar voluntary, The explanaticns balow provide 2
general description of the terms of the mest significant plans
offared, however speafic plan rules may vary by country. Re-
fer to Mote 1a} 24) for a description of the accounting pelicy
refated to eguity participation and other compensation
plans.

Mdrlﬂdl"le share-based compensation plans
Equity Chwnarship Flan {EOF): Certain employees receve a
portian of their annual perfarmance-related compensation,
which exceeds 3 certain threshedd, in the foem of an EOF
award of UBS shares, noticnal UBS shares, ar of alternative
imvestment vehicles (&0s) instead of cash, on a mandatory
basss. The awards granted in UBS shares or notional UBS
shares are settled by delivering LIS shares, except in coun-
tries where this is not perrtied for legal reasons, fwards
granied in the farm af A1Ys are seithed in cash. The majarity
of EOF awards continue 1o be granted in UBS shares and
notianal LB shares, EOF awards generally vest in ane-third
increments over a three-year vestng pericd. These awards
are generally forfeitable wpon voluntary termenation of em-
plowment with LBS. Compensation expense for thase awards
iz generally recognized over the shorter of the legal vesting
period and the penod from grant ta the date the employee
satisfies certain retinement elgibibty requirerments. Compen-
salian expense is raceanized in the performance year if the
employse meets these retirement eligibility requrements at
the date of grant.

Punng 2002, LUBS only granted EQP awards 1o certain
employees for which it had & contractual commitrent.

Dunng 2008, UBS granted to certain emgployees ECFP
awards with a nine-month westing pericd. Compensation ax-
pense for these awards was fully recognized in 2007,

Serear Executive Equity Cwnership Plan (SEEOP): Senior
exgculives receive a portion of their performance-related
compensation inUBS shares ar netional UBS shares instead
of cash, on a mandatory basis. The awards granted in UBS
shares or notional LIBS shares are settled by defvering LIBS
shases, SEEOF awards generally vest in ane-fifth increments
aver a five-year vesting period. These awards are forfeitable
if certain conditions are not met. Compensation expensa far

1 SaeT] ETRAITYRES B1% R 3 SO TGN T 1BEH% 3 CIE [onTHonT. [ wahio 2 hich
5 basaed 0 Oh vahi of indkorhang inmeari o Snds, rathed oha RENE vales of LI ESS aqilny

all SEEQP aweards s recagnized dursyg the perfarmance year,
which is generally the period prior to the grant date.
During 2009, LBS only granted SEEOP awands o certain
empoyiees for which it had a contractual commitment.
During 2008, UBS granted to certain employees SEECP
awards with a nine-month vesting pericd. Compensation ex-
pense for thesa awards was fully recognized in 2007

Mandatory deferred cash cornpensation plans

Conditional Varable Compensation Plan (CVCP): CVCP was
a one-time forward looking compensation plan under which
awards were granted to cerfain employees an a mandatany
bass in the second quarter of 2009, Under this plan, LBS
awarded a contmigent rght 19 recaive cash payments at
vesting subject 1o forfeiture provissans. These awards arg
generally forfeitable upon termination of employment with
UBS and additionally require profitability and recapitaliza-
tion performance hurdes 1o ke met in ofder for the awards
nat o forfeit. The mwards west in one-thard increments aver
a three-year vesting pericd. Compensation expense = rec-
ognized over the sharter of the vesting penod and the pe-
riad from the senice inception date to the retirement eligi-
bility date of the employes. Mo further grants will be made
under this plan.

WL Partner Plus Plan: Wealth Management Americas
spansars a compulsory defamed cash compensation plan far
salected eligible emplayees in the LS, Under this plan, LBS
awards amounts based on a predefined formula during the
performance year. Partcipanits are also alknwed to volurtasily
contribute additional amounts earned during the year into
the plan up 12 a percentage of LRSS contnbutions. The
amounts awarded eam an above-markel rate of interest
durirg the initial four-year period and a market rate of inter-
ast thereafter. Partner Plus awards vest in 20% increments &
ta 10 years after the grant date, The UBS contnbutions and
all wniterest gamed are forfeitable in certain droumstances.
Compensation expense 15 recognized over the sharter of the
vesteng pericd and the period from the performance year to
the date that the employee is eligible to leawe UBS and retain
their award.

Cath Balarce Plan (CEF): This plan applies ta mermbears of
the Group Executive Board and allows far a maximum pay-
out of 0% of an executive’s variable cash incentive at the
beqinning of the following year (subject to an additional
cash-cap). & minimum of 40% of an executive’s cash incen-
tivie awarded for 2009 is deferred and paid out duing the
te subsequent years subject ta forfeiture, e the entire
cash incentive is paid out ower a three-year period. The for-
festure provisions allow for unwested awards 1o be raduced
dncluding ta nil) in certain events incduding terminatian far
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Note 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

a) Flans offered (contimeed)

cause, certain financal lsses, behawar that centributes sub-
stantially to a material restatement of financal results ar 1o
harm ta LBS's reputation, breaches of legal or requlatory re-
quisgments ar of nskicampliance pokcies. and & number of
other events. Compensation expense is recognized in the
perfcrmance year, which is generally the year prior 1o the
grant date.

Discreticnary share-pased compensation plans

Key Employee Stock Apprecaton Rghts Flan (KESAF) and
Kay Employee Stock Option Plan (KESOFP): Key and high po-
tential empfoyees may be granted dscrationary shara-settlad
Stock Appreciation Rights (54Rs) or LIBS opticns with & strike
price not less than the farr market value af a LIBS share on
the date the SAR or opton is granted. In cartain cases, an
aption ar A8 may be granted at a higher strike price. & 54R
gives employess the night to receive such numbser of LBS
shases equal to the vakue of any appreciation in the market
price af a LE5 shase between the grant date and the exercise
date. One option gives the right to aoguire one registerad
LIBS share at the aption’s strike price.

KESAF and KESOP awards are setfled by delwering LIBS
shases, excent in countres where this i5 not permetted for
legal reasans. Oplions granted prior to 2008 generally vest
in one-third increments ower a three-year vesting period and
generally expire ten years from the grant date, SARs' and
optans granted from 2008 anwards vest in full fallowing a
three-year vesting perad and generally expare ten years from
the grant date. These awards ara generally forfeitable wpon
termination of employment with UBS. Compensation ex-
pense i recognized ower the sharter of the legal vesting pe-
rizd and the penad from grant 1o the retirerment eligibility
date af the employas.

Senior Executwve Stock Apprecation Rights Plan {SESAF)
and Semdor Exacutive Stock Option Flan (SESOF): seniar ax-
ecutives may be granted discretionary SARs or LES options
with a strike price set at 110% of the fair market value of 2
LB3 share an the date the SAR or option & granted. A SAR
gives employess the night to receive such number of UBS
shares equal to the value of any appreciation over 110% of
the market price of 3 UBS shase between grant date and the
exercise date. One optian gives the right 1o acquire one reg-
istered LIBS shase at the option’s strike price. SESAP and SES-
0P awards are settled by delivering UBS shares. These awards
west in full following a three-year vesting period and gener-
ally expire ten wears from the grant date. These awards are
forfetable if certain candstions are nat mel. Compensation
expense for all SESAP and SESOF awards is recognized dur-

The T, grints. s invdes KESAP waie i J00H,

34l

ing the pesfarrmance yeas, which is gererally the pericd poior
to the grant date. During 2009, UBS only granted SESGP
awards to certain emplovees for which it had a contractual
cammitrment.

‘Woluntary share-based compensation plans

Equity Plus Plan (Equity Flusk: This valuntany plan gives elgi-
ble employess the oppariunity ta purchase LIBS shares at fair
market value and genesally receive at no additional cost Two
UBS options for each share purchased, up to a maxsmum an-
nual limit. Share purchases can be made annually frem bo-
nus compansation and / or guarterly based on regular de-
ductans fraom salary, Shares purchased under Equity Plus ane
restricted frarm sale far te years from the time of purchase.
The options have a strike price equal to the fair market valus
of a UBS shara on the date the option is granted, a two-year
westing penod and genarally expire ten years from the date
of grant. The optans are forfeitable in certain droumstances
ared are settled by delivering UBS shares, except in countries
where this = not permitted for legal reasons. Compenzation
expense related to the LBS options is recognized awer the
sharter of the legal vestng peried and the penod from grant
1o the retirement eligibility date of the emplayes,

LIBS satisfies share delvery obligations under its aptan-
baszed and SAR-based participation plans either by purchas-
ing UEBS shares in the market or through the issuance of new
shares. For UBS'S option-based plans, shares held in treasuny
ar newly issued shares are delivered te the emphoyee against
raceipt of the strike prica at exercse. Under its SAR-based
plans, UBS dogs not receive payment of a strike price at ex-
arcisa but rather delivers to the employse shares held in frea-
sy ar newdy isswed shares equal 1o the difference between
the market value of a UBS share at exercrse and the strike
price. As of 31 December 2009, UBS was holding approsi-
mataly 277 millicen shares in treasury and an additional 150
mullior unissued shares in conditianal share capital, which
are available and can be used for future employae aptan
arvd SAR exercses. The shares avadable cover all vested i.e.
exarasable} employee options and SARs.

Other plans

Executive Capital Accurmulatian Plar (ECAPY: UBS sponsors a
woluntary deferred compensation plan for selacted eligible
emplayees, Lnder this plan, participants are allowed 1o no-
tianalky iveest 2 portion of their cash bonus in money manket
funds, UBS and nan=LIBS mutual furds and other UBS spon-
sered funds. Mo additional company match is granted, the
awards are genarally not forfeitable and are settled in cash.
This pan does nat result in compensation expenss for UBS,
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Mote 31 Equity participation and other compensation plans (continued)

b} Effect on income statement

Mandatary, discretionacy and voluntary share-based
compensation plans

The total share-based compensation expense, including
amaunts for AlYs granted under EGF recognized for the
years ended 31 Decernber 2009, 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2007 was CHF 213 million, negative CHF
94 millson and CHF 3,173 million, respectively. For the years
ended 31 Decemnber 2009, 31 December 2008 and 31 De-
cermnber 2007, the compensation expense recognized for
shase-based payments was primarily related to equity-settled
plans. At 31 December 2009, total compensation expense
refatad ta non-vasted mandatony, dscretianary and wokun-
tany share-based awasds, including amounts for AlVs ssued
urider ECP grarted in 2009 and pravious years which will be
recognized as an expense in the income statement from
2010 and later & CHF 832 millian. This amaunt is expected
ta be recognized in Personnel expensas over a weightad
average penod of 3.6 years,

€] UES share awrands

Payiments to padticpants of cash-settled shara-based
plans, mcluding amounts for AlVs granted under ECE far
the years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2007 were CHF 83 milkon, CHF 50 mélion and
CHF 42 millian, respectivaly. The total carrying amaunt of
the liability related to these cash-settled plans amounted to
CHF 206 million as of 31 Decembar 2005,

Mandatery deferred cash cornpensation plans

The total deferred cash compensation expense, related to
CBP and CVCP {as desonibed in previous section)), recognized
far the year ended 31 December 2009 was CHF 63 malion,
At 31 Decernber 2009, total compensaton expense related
ta CVCP awards granted in 2009 whizh will be recognized
3s an expense in the income statement from 2010 and later
E CHF 570 million. This amount is expectad to be recognized
in Persannel expenses over a weighted average period of
1.8 yars.

Mewements in shares granted under the equity particpation plans described in Note 31a) are as follows:

Ll wﬂ-ﬂ

Humber of w:u'gr::g Mumber of “::E:: Humbsr of A

shares grant date st grant date shares gant dase

31208 fair value CHF ILI20E  fair valee CHF IAzZ0T  fsirvalus CHF

Forfitshle, 1 the baginning of fe yeer 64,736,935 H ] 59,102,580 L] 55,141,102 38

e o p— - e "

e A i e

Fokehed duing he eir e . e 3% o B araba -

Forfuitshle, i the end of e yeer 65 BEE 626 ] B4, 736,935 53 59, K0z, 580 ]
Ry r g e e e

UBS measuras compensation expense basad on the average
miarket price of the L85 share on the grant date &5 quoted
an the S0 Swiss Exchange less a discount for post-vesting
sale and hedge restrictsons and non-vesting canditions, in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment lesting Con-
ditions amd Canceliatons, The grant date far value of no-
fional UBS shares withaut dividend enttlements alsa in-
cludes & dedwction far the present value of future expected
dividends ta be pasd between grant date and distnbution.
The fair value of the share awards subject to post-vesting
sale and hedge restrictions is discounied based upon the
duration aof the post-vasting restrictan and is referenced 1o
the cost af purchasing an at-the-money plain vanilla Eure-
pean put cotion for the tarm of the transfer restriction. The

weighted average discount far share awards grantad in
2002 is approamately 31.7% of the market price of the
LUBS share. Discounts for non-vesting conditions ane based
an the probability that the non-vesting conditans will be
achieved and the award will become exerdsabla. The fair
value of share-based awards granted price fo 2 008 was not
discounted for post-westing sale and hedge restrictions, as
there was no detncton between vesting and non-vestng
conditions until the IASE amended IFRS 2 Share-based Pay-
ment: Westing Congitions and Cancefiations. The markeat
value of shares legally wested was CHF 346 million, CHF
1,285 million, and CHF 1,737 millian far the years ended
31 December 2009, 31 December 2008, and 31 Decembear
2007, respactively.
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Mote 38 Reorganizations and disposals
Sale of UBS Pactual

On 18 Seplember 2008, UBS compheted the sale of its Bra-
zilian financial services business, UBS Pactual, to BTG Invest-
menis, LB The sale consideration consisied of a combina-
tion of cash and transfer of liabibties by BTG Investrments.
The tatal cash consideration amownted te USD 620 mdlion,
of which USD 420 million was paid at dosing of the trans-
action and the remaining S0 200 million, plus accrued in-
terest, will be payable 12 months after the dasing, The lia-
bilities transfesred 1o BTG Investments conssted primarily of
the present value of the residual payment cbligation of USD
1.6 billion oeed to former Pactual partners, which was in-
curred by LBS wpon acquisition of Factual in 2006 and was
duse i 2011,

Cwerall, the impact of the ransaction on UBS: profit
befora tax was a net charge of CHF 1,403 millien, incuding
2 goodwill impairmant charge of CHE 1,123 million znd 2
pre-tax |oss on sale of CHE 498 milion reporied in the Cor-
porate Center, parth offset by UBS Pactuals pre-tas opsera-
tionad profits for 2009 of CHF 218 millien. In additan, de-
ferred tax benefits of CHF 243 million have baen recognized.

The goodwill impairment charge af CHF 1,123 millian
was allocated o the business divisions as follows: Invesi-
ment Bank, CHF 749 milion; Global Asset Management,
CHF 240 millien; and Wealth Managemeni Amesicas CHF
34 million. It inchudes an mpairment of CHE 422 million
primarily relating to the effects from foreign exchange
losses that wene previously deferred e equity and from the
translaton of the US dollar denaminated sales price mto
Swiss francs. For management and segment reporting pur-
posas, consistent with UBS's internal policy that foreign ex-
change exposures related to investmants in subsdiaries are
managed by Group Treasury, related gains and losses are
recognized in the Carparate Canter This smpairmant was
charged through the “Services (ol from citer business di-
visicns” line itemn to the Corporate Center with respective
credits 1o the Investment Bank of CHF 328 milion, Glokal
Asset Management of CHF 149 milllkon and Wealth Man-
agement Armercas of CHF 15 millien.

The cperational resutts of UES Pactual of CHF 218 milicn
were induded in the business divisions Irvestment Bank,
Glokal Asset Management and Wealth Managerment Armeri-
cas and the Carporate Center

Sale of 56 branches in Wealth Management Americas

Following an agreement announced in March 2009, LS
sald 56 branches inWealth Management Americas ta Sufel,
Nicolaus & Compary, Incorporated for an upfront cash pay-
ment of approximately LIS 25 millian, In addition, LIBS re-
ceived aggregate payments of USD 18 million far net fixed
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assets and emploves forgivable loans, and ret LSD 154 mil-
lion for customer koans that were transferred. Under the
terms of the agreement, U85 may also recewe additional
cansideration contingent on the performance of the busi-
mess sold during the two years fellowing the daosing of the
transaction. The transaction was closed i four separate los-
ings durireg the second half ef 2009, Cverall, for 2005 the
impact of the transaction on UBS's profit before tax was a
met charge of approximately LSD 1.2 million.

Sale of UBSS India Service Centra (15C)

On 30 December 2009, UBS completed the sale of its India
Senice Centre (150) 1o Cognizant Technology Solutons for a
sale consideration of USE 82 milkan, which was pasd n cash
at dasng.

The net impact of the transaction on UBS% profit befors
tax was @ gain of CHF 36 milkan recognized in the fowrth
quarter in Offer income. In addition, the 5C contributed a
pre-tan profit of CHE 11 millicn for 2009,

Sale of assets to a third-party fund controlled by the
Swiss National Bank (SNB)

As announced on 16 Cctober 2008, UBS entered into an
agreement with the Swiss Mational Bank (SME) to transfer
certain illigued securities and other positions o the SNE Stab-
Fund limited partnership for collective invesiments (the
“fured ™), which is fully awned and controlled by the SNE.

For each transfer of assets, the SHB financad 30% of the
purchasa prica by providing & loan to the fund and the re-
maining 10% by making an equity contribution to the fund,
Upen each asset transfer, UBS purchased, for an ameunt
equal 1o the SMBS equity contribution ta the fund an that
date, an apton to repurchase the fund’s squaty {all such ap-
tions referred to collectively as the “call option*). The exer-
cise price of the call option was st at LISD 1 bilkon plus 50%
of the fund's equity vabue exceeding LS 1 bllion at the tme
of exgscise. The call aptsan wall be exercisable upan repay-
ment in full of the koan provided by the SME. The loan is se-
cured by the assets of the fund and bears interest at a rate of
ane month USE-LIBOR plus 250 basis points, Senace of the
boan s made frorm the cash flows generated by the fund's
assels.

In the avent of a change of contral of UES, the SKE has
the right but not the abligation to reguest that LBS purchaze
the loan it previded to the fund at its outstanding principal
ameunt plus acorued interest and the fund's aquity for 50%
of its walue at the time {the “put option"}.

If, upon termination of the fund, the SME incurs a loss an
its loan, it will be antitled to recaive 100 million LES ordinary
shares, subsiect to anti-dilution adjustments, in exchange for
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Financial nformation
Notes 1o the consalidated financial statements

Mote 40 Swiss banking law requirements

The consalidated Financial Staterments of LBS are prepasaed
in accardance with Intematianal Anancal Repartng Stan-
dards (IFRS). The Guedelines af the Swiss Financal Marka1
Supendasory Authority {FINMMA) reguire banks which present
their financial statements wnder IFRS to provide & namratwve
explanation of the maen differences betwieen IFRS and Swiss
GAAP (FIMMA dreular 08/2) and the Banking Cedinance. In-
cluded inthis note are the significant differences in regard 1o
recognition and measurement betwaen FRS and the provi-
=ions af the Banking Crdinance and the Guidelines of the
FiNsA& governing financial statement reparting pursuant 1o
Article 23 through Artide 27 of the Banking Ordinance. The
differences cutlined i points two through nine akso apply to
the Farent Bank statutory accounts,

1. Consokdation
Under IFRS, all entities which ase contralled by the Group are
fonsolidated.

Linder Swiss law, only entities that are active in the fisld
of banking and finance and real estate entities ane subject 1o
consolidation. Entities which are held tempararily are gener-
ally recorded as finandal investmants.

2. Finangial inwestments available-for-sale
Under IFRS, financial investments availabde-forsale are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded di-
recily in equity until an investment is scid, collected or oth-
enwizz disposed of, or until an investment is determined o
b impaired. At the time an available-for-sale mvesimant is
detarmined to be impaired, the cumulative unrealized kass
previously recognized in equity is incduded in net profit or
loss for the period. On disposal of & financial investment
available-for-sale, the cumulative wnrecognized gain or loss
pravrously recognized in equsty is recognized in the income
staterrient.

Under Swiss law, financial investments are carried aither
at the lower of cost or market or at amortized cost less im-
pairment with changes i measurement recorded in the in-
Cone staternent. Reductions to market value below cost and
reversals of such reductions up to onginal cost as well as
gains and losses on dispozal are induded in Other income.
Equity irvestments that are considerad permanent are car-
fied on the balance sheet at cost less impairment with im-
pairment lesses recorded n the income staterment. Perma-
nent investments are classified on the balance shest as
inwestments in assocated companies.

3. Cash flow hedges

The Group uses derivatve instruments to hedge the expo-
sure from varying cash flows. Under IFRS, when hedge ac-
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counting is appbed the fair value gain arloss an the effective
porton of the derivative designated as a cash flow hedge &
racognized in equity. Whan the hedgad cash flows material-
ize, the accumulated unrecognized gain or boss & realized
and redeased ta income,

Unger Swiss law, the effective portion of the fair value
change of the derivatiee instrement used to hedge cash flaw
exposuras is defermad on the balance sheet as other assets or
other liabilities. The deferred amounts are releasad to in-
came when the hadged cash flows matenalize,

4 |rveestment property
Undsr IFRS, inwestment property is carried at fair value, with
changas in fair value recognized in the income statement.
Unger Swiss law, investment property 15 carmed at ames-
tized cost less any accurmulated depreciation lass impairment
losses unless the investmant property is classified as held for
sale. Imvestrment property classified as held for sale is carried
at the lowwier of Cost ar market.

5. Fair value option
Under IFRS, the Group applies the fair value option to car-
tain financial assets and financial liabilities, mainky to hybrid
debt instruments. As a result, the entire hybsid instrerment
s accounted for at fair value with changes m fair value re-
flected in net trading income. Furthermare, UBS designat-
ed cartain loans, loan commitments and fund investments
as financial assets designated at fair value through profit
ard loss.

Under Swiss accounting rules, the fair value option is not
available.

&, Goodwil and intangible assets

Under IFRS, goodwill acquired in a business combination &
riet armortized but tested annually far snpairment. ntargible
assets acguired in & business combination with an indefinite
usaful life are also not amartized but tested annually for im-
pairment.

Unichar Swwiss law, goodwill and intangible assets with in-
definite useful lves are amortized over a period not exceed-
ing frve years, undess a longer useful life, which may nat
exgead twenty years, can be justified,

7. Duscontnued opsrabans
Under certain conditions, [FAS requires that non-current as-
sets or dispasal groups be dassified as held for sale, Disposal
growps that meet the critera of decontinued operations ane
preserted in the income staterment in a single line as Mer
incovme frovm discontinued operations.

Undar Swiss law, no such redassification takes place.
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Financial information
UBS &G (Parent Bank)

UBS AG (Parent Bank)
Parent Bank review

Income statement

The Barent Bank LSS AG net loss decreased by CHF 31,448
millicn fram a boss of CHF 36,483 millian to a less of CHF
5,041 milkon.

Met trading income improwed by CHF 8,990 million from
negative CHF G466 mdlion 1o negative CHF 476 million,
2008 reflects mainly kosses in the fized incame business and
charges assooatad with the SNB fransaction.

Income from investments in associated companies de-
creased to CHF 1,154 milkon from CHF 3,763 milkon in
2008 mainly due to lower dividend distributions raceivied,

Personnel expenses were up o CHF 9101 milkan from
CHF &,707 million in 2008 mainly due to recognition of a
defined pension asset in 2008,

Depreciation decreased to CHF 2,405 milkon frem CHF
26,9080 mullion i 2008 which inchuded write-downs of in-
vestments in assaciated US comparses.

Allcwances, provissons and losses decreased to CHF
1,432 million from CHF 3,071 milkan in 2008, which indud-
e costs related to the LS oross-barder case and cos1s 35500
ated with the repurchase of aucton rate securities.

The decreasa in Extraardingry incorme and in Exfracrdi-
nary expenses are explained in additional income statement
information,

Balance sheet

In 2009, LIBS's overall balance sheat reduction initatives led
akse 1o lower Parent Bank total assets, In particular UBS sub-
seliaries and third party banks in the Armenicas, European
region, and o lesser extent in Asia, reduced their assets and
therefore their funding needs from the Parent Bank. The Par-
ent Bank total assets stood at CHF 848 billion at 31 Decem-
b 2009, & drap of CHE 342 billien from CHE 1,189 Billion
at 31 December 2008,

The reductions accurred in intes-bank lending Joans
and callateral radirvg), which declined by 165 billion, pos-
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itive replacement values (dawn CHF 133 billien), customer
loans and collateral trading (down CHF 37 billion), trading
balances {down CHF 21 billion), and liguid assets {down
CHF 12 Billiony. These dedlines hawever were partially off-
setl by higher pasitons in maoney market papsers {up CHF
29 billion} and financial investments (up CHF 4 billian),
Morigage Ioans remained stable in 2009 a1 CHF 141 bil-
licsr.

Interbank lending

During 2009, due fram banks on tirme declned by CHF 53
billion, predominately dus to lower fundeg needs of third
party banks in the Americas and Eurcpean region as well as
UBS subsdiaries in the European region. Due from banks on
demand declined by CHF 12 bilkan due to lower funding to
bank subsidiaries in the European region, In addition, inter
bank collateral trading dedined by CHF 100 bdlion, attribut-
able to bower trading volumes and a shift into monay markat
paper within UBS subsidiaries in the Americas, Europ=an re-
gion and Asia.

Customer lending

The customer loan drop of CHF 37 billion was the result of
bawaer funding needs by dients in the Amercas and in the
Ewrapean regian, as well as UBS subsidiaries (non-banks),
predominately in the Americas region.

Money market papers

The increase in money market papers is due ta UBS strate-
gic decsion to rebalance its mvestment portfclo, which led
ta & shift from reverse repurchase agresments iNto money
market papers available-for-sale. These instruments include
highdy ligusd short-term securities ssusd by governments
and gevernmen t-contralled institutions mn various cumencies,
mainky US dallar and euro.

m
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Yarent Bank financial statements

Income statement
Fiar the year endied % change fom

CHF milien 3.03.08 3z 31.12.08
Intarest and dicoust income (64

and dmden d income from tradisy porfoli {590
________ and dwadend income from fnancial nvesssents 21
ntasest aepima (6A)
il isbarest inoome 1R
Credt-elaed fes aed commissons 23
Fee and commssion iscome from sacurities and imsestment besisess {20
Crbe fen and comesissios inanme 2
Fee and commssion expense 121
et fem and aomestcsios |noome 118
Mt frading Income a5
Biet iscome from depasal of financal inestments 130
Vecnme fiom jsestmets in associaned comparnes L]
Recnme faoes edl astate holdings il
Sundry income fram ordisary acities a1
Sundy ondisary espenses. E2l
Dy scome fom prdnary ativiiies 196]
Operating mooms WS
Personnel espenses ¥
raral aed pdimen ERlive aneires 124)
Operating expanses B
Opsrating profit 7a
Deprecation and wite-ofs n nvestments o assocated congaries and fled assens s %0 8]
Allewances, paowsions and |nsses 1432 m 1531
Profit before cxtraordinary femns and taxes |5 500} {36858 RS
Eavanrfiean ncore
Evvandinary expenses
Taon eega e
Profit!{lcss) for the period {5041} 136, 8350 B&
ar
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% change fiom
EHF mition i 111208 .

27030

Tl smoumts recaivable from droun companier PR E 435 721 )

Liabilities and equity

tirrruals and defered nco=e

Kegative replacement slues 1723
{rker labilties 153)
Allowasces and provizions 118]
thare capital 2
General staiuiony seserse 126]
Resers for owm shares {71
Ofer resenTs 2042 22,115 1811
Pt ot pid RN b, 36
Total lishilities and equity 84T 543 1,189,336 1290
Tt sboaciinated Ksdiities o414 20 &l
i arensns papatle g ommpanies F e AR it H

Statement of apprapriation of retained earnings

The Board of Directars propazes that the Annual General Meating (AGM) on 14 Apnl 20710 approves the follewing appropristion:

LHF milion

Peofit/(ogs) for the Snancial pear 2008 & per Be Parenl Bank's ncome Slalement 15,041]
Appeopriglion 1o ot pedemes 12,047]
Appapialion Lo geserd slatetony nesanes: SBae presism {2,9459]

13
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LBS AG {Farent Bank)
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Notes to the Parent Bank financial statements

Accounting policies

The Parent Bank Financiagl Statements are prepared in accor-
dance with Swiss Federal banking law. The accounting poli-
cias are principally the same as for the Group Financial State-
ments outlined in Mote 1, Summary of Significant Accounting
Folicies. Major differences between the Swiss Federal bank-
ing law requirernents and International Financial Reporting
Standards are described in Mote 40 1o the financial state-
ments. The acoounting policies applied for the statutary ac-
counts of the Farent Bank are discussed below, The risk
management of UBS AG 5 described in the contedt of the
fisk management Tor UBS Grown, Refer 1o "Risk and treasury
management” section.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are cown equity instruments held by arentity.
Under Swiss law, treasury shares are recognized in the bal-
ance sheet as trading balances. Short postions in treasury
shares are recognized in “Due fo banks”. Treasury shares
recognized & trading balances and short positions in trea-
sury shares are measured at fair value with unrealized gasns
or losses from remeasurement to fair value ncluded in the
income statement, Reakzed gains and losses on the sale or
acquisition of treasury shares ase recagnized n the incame
statement.

A Reserve for own shares must be created within equity
equal ta the cost value of the treasury shares held through
reclassification from Cther reserves, Repurchase of treasury
shases 15 only alkowed if sufficient Other resenves ane avail-
able. The Reserve for own shaves B nol avarlable fer detnbu-
tign to sharehalders.

Foreign currency translation

Assets and liabikties of foreign branches are ranslated into
CHF at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date. In-
come and expenss items are translated at wesghted average
exchange rates for the perod. Gams resulting from exchange
differences on the ranslation of each of these foresgn
branches are credited to a provisson account {other liabikties).
Lossas resulting from exchange differences are debited firstly
o the aforementioned provision account wtil such pravision
is fully utilized, and secondly 1o profit and kass.

ar4

Investments in associated companies

Irivestments in associated companies are equity interests which
are held for the purpose of the Parent Bank's business activities
or for strategic reasors. They indude all directly held subsidiar-
wes and ane camed at cost less impairnent, if apolicatle.

Deferred taxes

Ceferred tax assets are not mcognized in the Farent Bank
Finangal Statements, Deferred tax liabilites are recognized
for all taxable temporary differences. The change m the de-
ferred tax lability is recogrized in profit or loss,

Equity participation and other compensation plans

Equity participation plans

Under Swiss law, employes share awands are recognized &
compensation expense and accrued awer the performance
wear, which 5 generally the pericd prior ta the grant date,
Employes optan awards wiich de nat contain veluntary tes-
manation non-compete provisions are recognized as compen-
sation expense on the grant date, i the award is performance
based and contaens substantive future serviceSvesting period
conditans, compensation expense is recognized over the per-
formance period. Employes option awards which containvol-
untary termination non-compete prosisions {.e. good leaver
clawse) are recognized as compensation expanse over the per-
formance year. Equity- and cash-setiled awards are dassified
a5 lianilities. The employes share cption awards are rermea-
sured to fair value at =ach balance sheet date. However, for
employes share options that LIRS intends 1o setthz in shares
from conditional capital, there i no impact an the income
staterrent and no kabdity i3 recognized. Upan esercise of am-
ployee aptions, cash received for payment of the strike price
& credited against share capital and genera statutory reserve.

Cther compensation plans

Fixed and vanable deferred cash compensation is recognized
as compensation expense over the performance year. If the
award is performance based and contains substantive future
service/vesting period condifions, compensation expensa is
recagrized aver the performance period.
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Changes in accounting policies, comparability and
other adjustments

Metting of cash collateral against replacement values

In 2009, UBS conclisded that the cash codlateral pravided
or received can be offset against the negative or positive
replacement values if the cash collateral i provided or re-
ceived under the same kegally enforceable master netting
and related collateral agreement. The change in account-
ing palicy resulted in the following effects on the balance
sheet for 31 Decemnber 2009: a decrease of apprawmatehy
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CHF 28.3 billian in Pasithe raplacameant values, a decreasa
of apprommately CHF 29.4 billion in Negathe replacement
values and & corresponding decrease in Due fram banks/
e from customers and Due o banks/ Due 19 Custamers.
There was e impact to the income staterment for the pe-
ried.

subardinated liabilities

In the balance sheet 2009, total subosdinated liabilites

presented for 31 December 2008 hawe been adjusted from
CHF 24,427 rnillian ta CHF 21,228 midlion.

375
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Additional income statement information

Met trading income

Fiar the year endied % change fom
CHE millon N0 nazm 30208
WemsenGbeutes 3 3910 {24
Wvessment Eant fiead income, cemences and commodites’ L {12678} 65
et busisess diiskons’ 1,014 (g
Tond |476] (3,466} 95

1 Tho ka1 YT ATuna IS B Boss) aushied 10 GRFOITIT The ANt Bl resntation.

Extraordinary income and expenses

Extraardinary incame mcludes gains from sale of subsidiaries  release on reserves on invastments in subsidares of CHF 490
and assodated comparias of CHF 392 millionin 2009, where-  malion and a relessa of provisions of CHF 72 millian.

a5 Z008 included a gain on sale of Bank of China imvestment Extraardinary expenses in 2009 indude losses from sale of
of approssmately CHE 360 millicn, Further, 2009 includes  subsdianes and associated companies of CHF 48 mullicn,
wiite-up af svestments in associated companies of CHF 265 2008 induded CHF 478 million related 10 an overstaternent
million {2C08: CHF 20 milkon). Amounts in 2008 induded 2 of trading income in 2007.

e
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Additional balance sheet information

Allowances and provisions’

Frowksioes appled Ragmranies,

inacenmante  doubtful imerast,
Balance at with their cunency traesketion  Prosisions rdeased Mew povsions Ealance at
CHY milfen I1Z08  specifed purpose difference 1o income  changed b iscome 3.12.08
Dedauit righs [credit asd cowntry risk) 1.556 15,808) 195 1403] 1,405 1,256
L n risks 1078 (280 11000 1221 134 10
Cperational sk 157 (203 a 1571 145 a2
Retisement. benefit phars o (25h (1 1 2 B
Restiuciuring prosisions 4 (205 45 k(] 303 214
Deederred Lane 15 o {151 1z 1 #
Cthes 1.258 {520 2 18731 458 1024
Tatal allowances and provisions 4,254 [2.6a7) 127 {760} 1477 5451
Alaweance deducisd To= aets 1.530 1,174
Tatal provisions as per balance sheet 724 LIm

+ I previous. yeas, the bk e “Tradiag po oo isks” (CHF 14, 658 rilbar at 31 Deoenbes JO0E. Trading potfobo sk " | el b oxh. |i udtyand ol of wimnsiofencd | 8t uren &
acrmurte fint o1 T wabue through profit onloss As Thess adements are comporents of G maue sather thap llwancs and [rovis o, adiepetivepolt o | os ipass epsntd & i Ldieg
i rrlhed than ciedi o eerme o, “Tiading ntfole ests® ae po koage induded.

Statement of shareholders” equity
Total
sharahaikders'
Genesal sizutory  Geserl siatstony equity {belomne
nesenes: reserms;  Aesenoes for osm distributian
ChF milien Shere capilal Shae pramium  Belaned semng shane Other rasenes of prodit]
Az0131.92.07 and 1.1.08 207 6,303 1472 8,441 15,567 35500
Copild increes’ a6 15,911 115k 15,962
Copitdl iscreee relabed to MICNS 16,223 16,223
NCTesse In rasenes 0
Friorpear daidend 0
Profit ¢ [oss) for the perod (36,488} |36, 488
Changes in resenes for oo shares (5,564 6,364 0
Tarieis 110,307) 12478 14,373 0
As of 31,12.08 and 1.1.08 203 16,536 Q 1,677 a 18,706
Capiia areas i 178 3813
Capital iscrease relabad no MCHs £k} = a1
noresse In resenes 0
Prioe pear dad dend 0
Profit ¢ [koss) for the perod L5,041] 50481}
Changes in resesses for oo shares (2,047 2042 0
Tarrs’ 12,9550 2598 0
As 01 31.102.08 356 17,376 =] B35 0 18,560
1 Inchedies ock Sivibend. 1 Sabgd [0 szt By The Annal Gereral B eeting on |4 Apil 2010,
77
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LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Share capital
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Faral Razking for dividands
Capital in CHF

e of sharas Mo of shases: Cagital in CHF

Eondicnal ar capital

Shares issued

On 25 June 2008, UBS increased its share capital by issuing
293,258,050 new registered shares. The shares were placed
with & small number of large institutional invastors. The
shases were issued out of authonzed capital which had been
approved at the annual General Meeting of shareholders
{AGM) an 15 Sl 2009,

On 19 August 2009, the Swiss Confederation announced
the corwversion of its UBS mandatory convertible notes
CNE) Dpon conversion on 25 August 2009, UBS isued
332,225,913 new shares from existing condstional capital,

COn 27 February 2008 the extracrdinary general meeting
af shareholders approved the creation of @ maximum of CHF
10,370,000 in authorized capital allowing the distribution of
a stock dividend. That resulted in the issuance of 98,698,754
shares.

On 23 April 2008, the AGM of shareholders approved &
capital inorease that resulted in the issuance of 760,295 181
fully pasd registerad shares, All issued shares are fully paid.

ars

For further information on the capital increase and the
conversion of the MCNS in 2009, refer 1o “MNote 26 Capital
increases and mandatory convertible notes™ in the financal
statemeants.

Conditional share capital

T 31 Decarnbeer 2002, a maxmum of 28,330 shares could
have been issued agaimst the future axercme of options
from former PaineWWebber employee option plans and
149,994, 706 shares could have been issued to fund LIBSS
employee share cption peagrams. In additon, conditional
capital of up to 277,750,000 shares was available for the
UBS share delvery obligation due to the ssuance of the
March 2008 mandatery corvertile notes (MCHs) and con-
diticnal capital of up o 100,000,000 shares i available in
connection with the transacton with the Swiss Mational
Bank (SMB}.
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Off-balance-sheet and other information

Assets pledged or assigned as security for own obligations and assets subject to reservation of title

3.12.09 3102008 Change in %
Book value  Effective liability Baok value Elagthoe bty Bock vl Effective lisbiiy
1,365 7459
12,321 36599
31,862 50,223
1] 0149
45,551 55,500

+ Bk vahi 90 ecks. MeiTomaR kans 10 Rferred K SecLniy PR in AR paration of Uconing coeske hard RRGNTE

Financial assets are mainky pledged in securities borrowing  nection with derivative tranzactions, & security daposts far
and lendng transaciions, in repurchase and reverse repus-  steck exchanges and clearinghouse memberships, or trans-
chase transactions, under collateralized credit lines with cen-  ferred for security purpese in connection with the issuance
tral banks, against loans from martgage institutions, in con-  of cowered bonds.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

% change fiom
CHF milian 3M.12.09 .1308 EARFL:- ]
Contingass liabilities 138,319 285451 (E1H]

UBS AG & pintly and severally liabde for the value added tax O/AaT) lighility of Swiss sulbsadiaries that belong toits VAT group.

Derivative instruments

IMAT08 310208

Notional
amcunt
PRV MWAVT CHF billion

187,506

25,556 43,171 45434
Faplacameni valus retting 217,879
Fa placameant walues after nating 58,977
1 PR: Positlet replaoamant vailke. 1 MEW: Plegatva replacemert valie
w9
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Fiduciary transactions
% change from

LHF million 111208 3.1z08 311208
Drposis
el i ol T A ik o
e S e i
Total 18, &of 9,150 (52
Due to UBS pension plans

For the year eedied % thange from
(THF malen 1309 31L1E06 30208
Dzt IS5 pamsion plarcs and LB debrt nstriments Bebd by pension plass 37 f] {55

Transactions with related parties

Trarsactions with related partees (such as securities fransactions, payment transfer services, borrgwing and compensation for
deposits) are conducted at internally agreed transfes prices or at arm's length

Outsouwrcing

Cutsourang of IT and ather services throwgh agreements with external service praviders is in compliance with FINBA dreu-
ar OBS7 “Outsourcing banks”.

Personnel

The Parent Bank employed 36,182 personnel on 31 Decermber 2000 and 40,998 personnel on 31 December 2008

Significant shareholders

M % of sharar isspad 3z
Chase Mominees Lid, London 719
DTC (e & Co ), Mesw ok 98

wss than 3
w5t than 3 kg5 than 3

+ R (et & Do), Koo Yerk, ™ Th Depicsitnty Tt Campany” b a UUS Bacuriies dealing organ ganion

380
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Corporate governance and compensation report

Compensation details and additional information for executive members of the BoD

CHY, sregp vehare inghcated”
Aenudineentive  Disenelisnary Conlibuliaes 1o
Farr 1hee Annual ngenthee  Facnddshares  gward loptiens  Banafits retisamant
Mama, fuscion’ yearendad  Bawesaly  award [oash) = fair valugy =fairwalugl  nkind  benedits plars' Tortal
Faspar Ve, haimau L B e 0, Q.. M bR
200
Poar Kavar, farmer Chalman L .. L S Q.. 7. w0 PIANE
e 133331 o a a 52 167 174047 1,565,847
Warrsl Cpal, fowmer il O e en e
ne [ o a a -l BYO2  B3a448
Stephan Hasnngay Hom
bt Exmon i Whcn Tl o e = — S e G e

| PO0% Eargar Yiligen was the: onily nor-independent member in officr on 31 December 200F; Feter Eurer < not dand for rechection attbe S040E AT il 209 IE Ao R s Cheoly
STORE Temie 0 oficron 3 | Decemizer 2006 Mase| Dspel did not Zand for reekezion atthe AGM on 23.Ap 2008 ard Seshan Harng @ stqped o dud ng the yer as amereral the B0
e both of thesk BaETENs A pro-ata o the four and nine montis, sespodieely in their fundions.

Explanaticn of the tables outlining compensation details of executive members of
the BoD and members of the GEB:

a.

b

=

(L=

Loseal currencies are converted s CHF using e exchange rates as detalled in "Mate 39 Currency franslation rates” inthe 'F (nardal ol org-
ton ™ section of this report.

The entire cash incenthee is only paid out over a three-year period and b subject to forfeiture.

Vel per pesfamiance shaw al guant: CHF 16,30 far PEP awaids and CHE 22 20 bar IFP awarck granted i 3010 selated 1o the pei farace war
2003, These ase barssd on e perlonmance shame valuation which will be wed for aceounling punpedes. under IFRS 3. The valustion wascar ri e o
by Privewatzibause Coape s and Lakes inta sccount the rlevant performancs conditions, tangels se, ad the age of posdible outom 1 o these

. Mo oplions wers granted i 20140 for the parformance year 2009.
. Berefits i kind = car sasing, comparry car allowance, staf discount on banking products and senvicss, health and wellse bere it and gn

el mepards allowances - are all valisd at marke? price.

. i eusciilives participati in e darme pendion plin a2 all other smployees. Under this plan, erplogess recepe & company o B ibtian Lo

the plan which covers compersation up o CHF 200800, The retirement benefits corsit of a perdion, & bridging persion and a one-off
papaut of accurmulated capital Employess must sbs contrbute ta the plan. The figure excludes. the mandatory emploger's social securit y
contributians (AHY ALV but indudes the partion attributed ta the employer's portion af the lsgal BVG requirsment. The employes aet ribu-
tion is included in the base salary and annual incentive avward companents,

In both the US and the UK, execusves partidpate in the same plans as all other employees, In the U5 the plans diffes between t e bachus nss
diimians. For pach business dweion there are hea different plans. The grandathesed plars, which ane ra langesr apen 1o new hire, oppate de-
pending on the Business dwsion, sither on a cash babinee basts or a camer average salary basis and participants accrue a pensi an bxeden t bar
annual compensation imied to LED 250,000 tor USD 150,000 for Wealth Management Amencas employess), in the defined contribution pl
participants receive company cantributions to the plan based on compensation imed so LISD 245 004, U management may abke particpde in

a 401kl defined contibution plan (open o al employees), which provides a company matching contribution for employee connbut ons In the
UK, management pasticpates n sither the poncipal pension plan, which cpesates on a defined contribution basis and isimited toan earning op
of GBP 100,000, or a grandfathered defined tbenefit plan which providies a pension an resesment based on career average base salary! unappalt .
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Financial infosmation

LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Remuneration details and additional infermation for independent members of the BoD
CHE merapt whare indfrated®

Commities  Benelits  Additiond pescenl- Harmber ol
retanensl s knd  pamenis Tond age!  shares

Total 2008 6,437,500
Legend: € = Chaimpersan of the mspactive commiies; M = Mamber of the respagthe commatiee

1 Therer wieri: 11 indegendan Bol members in offios on 30 Devembe 7009, Michel Demark Ann F, Godbaliess and Sl FLehmann s ppoims 250 T A0 on 154001 100020 Enim Bro el 1,
Gabriliy Eaufmann-cohi and Joerg \Wolls Sepged down Iromihe BoD af the &G on 15 April 2009, T wite || indpsasent BoD mmee ia oflice o 31 Dcenten DR Do Siced | ws
appoimed 3 Ow AGK on 73 Aprdl 003, and ol &, Waper Peet Spaikr and Limincy & Vieisbach Seppsed dewn fomse Sol atshe Ehon 2@sde 1 B SallyEocy, Rad m M oF ey, Bum
Gani and Wilam G Faverr were appointed 3t The EGH on T Doeber 2003, ) Remurennion for 0061 TI0R k. for s mongs only, i sech Menbers. pithal Sapped Sown o1 Wik appoined o 1
Ocobsal JOOE. 3 Fews i paid S0% in cach and 50% in restiemend UES shases Howessl indagenfent S0l members can elect 00 have 100 of theill g Zion ped d i esti i ed LB Ssles o For
2008, showes vabued at CHF 14,57 | price- of UES shoes af 54 Swkss Bxchange ceer the bes 10 trading days of Fetwaary 20104 incledd 3@ lcedi soen. 3 15% f0 aneval wof dizam pi @
CHF 1238 Toese shares aiv Blocked for doer years. For 2008, sharcs silued 22 CHF 1138 daverage price of UES sanesabdnc,  mwil M5alm Bocong, o the ket 10 oadingdngs of Gy y 00)
inciuded a piice discount of 15%, Skooant price dor 3 sew salue of CHF 967 These shanes a0 bincbed for Fous years. = Hember of shares is. reduced i cise of the 1005 sion o dedud: sodal
oty al " ta sodal secerty « 5 4 TS onyme: |5 with the Serior Indep Diwector fanition.

In adiion, dor 2008/ 3008 on ane-oHl cash porymens mere made oo the Chaismen of the 52 (CHF 500, 0001, The GHE (CHF 200,081 andoe 00 CF 0, 000 . Ter pymts wiect the sib
stantial wirkdoad ol seting up the new RC. ard oapanding the mondae of the GHC and the HRCC.

ani
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Total payments to all members of the BoD

For the
CHE asTapt wihove srohcafad’ yeur anded Totd
e cocontcoecoecoeecottoncoee oo s om0 L e
anﬂ_bm.uﬁhtﬂd} pLiE] 10,267, 240
Total compensation for all members of the GEE
CHY, srepd vehare indkeatad®™
sinmal Lostribulions
ingentine Anral Annal 1 retirement
Fou tha awmaed CEP ncentivy incrative Barsfits banafits
Mame, fusction year ended Bemn malary ad cmh'  sward PEP award IPP n kind* plans Totd
Larsten Keageter, co-CED imm=sment Bask
(B ghesit-paid] 20 EG0 0 LO03.470 6,135,669 1,349,335 ] 12545 13, r00.312
Maicel Rokner, Goup Ohied Ensoutive Officer
(b ghest-pa 2003 1,500,000 o Q Q 161,766 152534 1814702
Aggregate of 3l members of the GES who
Yeara i ffics on 31 Cacpmbar 203 e 12000035 ITMIV] MG BSRAEITOT)  1SEI06 eA N
Aggragata of all mambers of the GE B wao
were in office on 31 Decesber 2008 200 TEIS 981 o a a 457,652 817,215 080911
Liggregate of all members of the GE2 wio
stepoed derun durisg 2005° 2009 2447 584 3B AL 00 a a 215,151 171,122 41276914
of all mambers of the GEE who
sepged dorn durisg 200657 2008 | GIAET] Q Q Q 23,336 258423  I,MB.132

+ Kby and Sigibigion of GEB memBis in 2000 13 GES mombers in office b 31 Decamber. JO0E: | § GEB membars i ofco on 30 Boewte, 5 Kumbsr and digridaion of GEB members in
J00: Wechicdid i Penttes o i it GER wwerabed foi Mrcel Pl ne, thie: manths i oFfoe fod Wakaa B Stirainger aied Racel 'WH LMol moabs | A for bk ohak 5o b, 83 @ e in ol
Bt Pty T o 3 e P WSt Hoalsma, T8 inchados Toam maghs in ofTic ans 5 GER amsibeed fnl Petit Kl #ight manthe | pol Toalor Moo Sra ol o mechs forloe Sy o inchided in

e 5018 i S 3 SEEDIP ks A 3L valae of GBP 4,635, 050 and EDP aaands A & Lar alas of GEP | 504,750,

383
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Share and option ownership of members of the BoD on 31 Decemnber 2008/ 2009

Farthe Murmber of ‘Voting g his Wembarof  Fotendialy condamad  Type and qeantiy
Mame, fuzction’ year ended shares hald na optonsheld  voling nigits in %7 of cptines’
Easpar Viliger, (Raisman poilic} 12,500 0.001 a 0000
e e
Zergio Marchionne, poilic} 164,158 0.0 a 0000
Senkr Indepenident D, Viee Chsiman P E L P G Ghe
Em =20 Bertareli, former member poilic} -
e
Eally Bott, member poilic} 12,281 0.001 a 0000
e o P SRS G Ghe
Miche] Demané, member poilic} 1,500 0,000 a Q000
P 050222303079 OGBS0 SaR R aRO0O0 G OeS e R EE e SEEEED
Rainer-harc Faey, memies poilic} 16,152 0.001 a Q000
e R [ RS G G
Bruzo Geheig, mesber poilic} 16,572 0.001 a Q000
P e [ RS G G
Ainm £, Gothehere, membes poilic} 1] 0,000 a Q000
e 30 RSO0 e SO0 aROIaOCR B S SaE e ER CES RS
Galviele Kauf=asn-Eodler, former member? i 2} - -
P AT A [ TR, G F T S
Fefer Kuser, former Charman i 2} - -
P T e . G e G R T
abed: 85913
bt 55913
bee 55813
Al P Lahmann, memkar om L I L LD O, REOO e
2008 -
Helmet Fans, mambir om LA noos OO0 e
aiE 31,4911 [l Q0o
Wil lam G. Parratt, membse om L1712 S o . SV OO0 .
2008 4,000 0000 Q0o
Dwad Sichwsl, membsr om oL S nooz OO0 e
2008 1 0000 Q0o
Potar P Vizsat, mamber om B oooa o
2008 0,873 o.0d7 acoe
boarg Wolk, fommar mamber* om T
an08 41,508 0003 L] 0.000

1 This Gabie inchudes, vested, unstssied, Bocied and untinoie d shares 208 options held by members of the So0 inded ing wiied patks 3 Mo comersen sghis 2 pustandng. 1 Refer oo “Maie 310 Equity
paricizon and other con pe nsation plass” in e " Frandal informaden” sedion of this iepos lor e ifomationensisd: QUM fars o Menbers of the BoDvwho sepped down 21 the AGH 2008

384
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Compensation paid to former members of the BeD and GEB'
CHE sarand whard indcadsa®
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far the Banafits
bame, fuscion year ended Compensaton inkind Totd
Goorges Blum, former mem ber of the Ball i
t5wish Bk Chimeralios) P
Feanz Galliker, Sormer member of e Bl i
{5wits Bank Comeration) S
‘isher . Frohises, former member of the Ball i
t5wits Bank Comeralion) S
Hams |Liiane] Strawer, forses mesber of the Bol i
5wt Bank Cameralios) S
Robert Studer, farmer mamber of the Eol i
{Uion Bank of Switzsiland) Rt
Aiiltartn Togni, former member of the Bol i
{LBsl
Philippe (Af) de ek, fomer member of the 2oD i
{Uion Bank of Swatzsrisnd) R
EogsoanElal TmRirREbe Ot CEN e S, SRR . U .
pirE]
EogsoanElal ommiRrbes ofte BT GE 9 amne B e
1008 318, 461 1,113,551 1,432,012
1 Compersation or sATUNEAticn S & oorredsd withthe Soemer menbers’ actwty on the Ball or GEB, orthet & nat & madket ond 1t ors = Inchedes tea formes G52 members
5
g
(-]
E
]
E
385 |
E
g
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Share and option ownership of membaers of the GEB on 31 Decembaer 2008 £ 2000

Ty and
Far the Murmber of ‘Vioting rights Membarof  Potertislly condemed quantity of
Mane, luscton' year esded shaees hald n% gt held valisg ngal in % opliass!
Crpahd 1, Gribed, 23 Q 0,000 4,000,000 oy lem: £,000 000
Group Chef Exeutive Officer 2008 - - '
Barced Rohees, 23 = =
former Gacup Chief Exeautive Officer! 2008 711,366 004z 1,055,043 aed wsiin 397
i 213,140
weii; 377087
Wi 319,710
i 313,140
lo=n Cryan, ] 135,079 nME 3ETATI Qo i 21,363
Gioup Chef Finascial Orffis '8 2073
il 0I5
Wi LT
Wil 5,254
i 5,741
i 2360
wil; 3400
wd: 13612
i 5506
xin 5.5
[ies 5L
wooaic 17072
A 1T0ER
i 17063
i 14310
e 14,210
absi 14,507
Wi 5,330
i 538
] 5,20
Lei 17,163
leii 17 T6
el 17760
.................................................................... bk 53,288
008 13595 os 351673 aml i
/8 0,731
vii 0,715
s G4
ii; LT
i 5,20
wi  23E%
wii;  235M
Wi, 23812
mdic 5,58
amin: 5,524
EEES 5.5
wdic 17073
l: 17
abi: 17063
iy 1azIn
b 14,710
Wi 14,30
fii: 5310
I 5,328
b 5,326
b 17 e
iz 17, 62
leii: 07,750
beut 53285
Markgs L) Dhesheim, 203 112,245 RS . Qoo
Group Gomgeal Coumsal 008 112265 00T a aoon
Bk A, Fraser, 203 4309 nor 105,755 sy Wi} .0
Chairman and C£0 Ginbal Awel Management wd; 1374
w1275
ki 17517
kil 202823
ke 313,140
beme: 170,512

386
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Share and option ewnership of members of the GEB on 31 Decembaer 2008 /2009 (continued)

Tppe and
For the Mumber of ‘Voting righes Mumber of  Petemlialy cosfeimed quantity of
M, luscian' yisai g shasss hald n% apfore held  valisg ights is % cpliond!
JoRn A, Fraser, 2008 361,216 [BHEL] 1,144,808 ke ] it 56,013
Chearman and JE0 Gobal Asset Management W R0
B 12TER4
e 12784
ahi:  1MLE1E
shiii 202423
b 21310
b 100512
Marten Hoalsira, 003 o e
former CEC Wiealth umwlﬁ-' M 241‘.£, u_,ms m“a aodi ic M,B
Wi 241
i BAX1
s BEI3
(1'H 4,763
w B 55T
mii: B5A1
ol 4
LTI E ]
shai 5125
ha 85,256
e 154931
bevii: 339,053
Jortar lohansson, wm ] T
former Chaiman 2nd CE0 invest=est Bani! 2008 L2058 03 TeE 410 ands bwii; 145580
b TAm
Carsten Fasqeser, i 16,909 028 905,000 a4 beeic  GO5,000
B |nveatiient Bank . = i R R R IR R e
Ulsick Kormar, i o 000 a L]
Grsup Chied Operating Dlfcsr . e SRR T
Philip | Lofts, il 175,224 01a L] ant ii: 11,845
Grgup Thied Risk Office [’ LR
W 11.ea
nie 1,240
i 5a5
'8 1198
a2 955
i 9580
(T 4914
i 1&33
e 1830
(T B30
e 35534
al: 15,504
aic 3551
shil: 117,080
b N
kv B5.256
ledi:  74.59%
2008 186,434 LR L] and ii: 11,445
b 1104
Wik 11,008
it 1,240
i 5454
™ 1,159
LT T ]
FETHI k-
i 0o
1833
(HH 1830
(T 1830
i 35,514
al: 35,514
;35500
hai; 117050
[ S | ey
lew.  B5.236
lewi: 74,5595
387
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Share and option ownership of membaers of the GEB on 31 Decembaer 2008 £ 2009 (continued)

Farthe Mumber of ‘Vioting rights Membarof  Potertislly condemed quantity of
Marie, luscton' yesar esided shared held n% aptors held  valisg nghts in % aplines!
Robert | WeCans, 23 602,481 003z 2 Q00
CEDieath Masapenest Amenias 2008 - '

Feanio Miama, 23 153,850 0005 325,086 ao8 hi 43911
TCEC LIRS Swaitzer band b 66,856

Wisher H Stiznger wm T e }
for=er Chiel Cperaling OMicer, Comporate Jenle® 308 IO ARG [T E 372595 il erk] W nAan

el . - S S .
former Chaftman and 2L s Facfi 2008 a2t.8m LT R T L ol misa

Frmer ek and D ikl Wl bt . :
Chasrman and CED Glok 2005 315,698 oHa 433,400 0006 i 53,285
Management & Besisess Basking? ’ ' et 02281

Aidewander Wilmot-Stvell, il <} g, TAT BHE 353,807 aoMg i 53,280
oL BT | remdtmeni Bank alix 2,130

2008 04655 LAE 353,807 B P Y ¥

Robert Wolf 20 T8 421 [ H 43 473 achn v RIS

‘Chairmen and CE0, UBS Geoep Americas)’ whii: 213,140

Frasident |rrsesiment Bank ahaiic 127 5B
[

.............. bevii: 106,570

ik 17,307 0033 a4 473 ale13 o M7 70
i 213,140
skl 127584
bt

levi. 106,570

38E
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Share and option ownership of members of the GEB on 31 Decembaer 2008 /2009 (continued)

Tppe and
Foe the Mumber of voling righes Humberof  Potentially co=femred quantity of
Rarme, luscon' yesar endesd shass held n % apiore held  wolisg rights is %° oplions!
ChisYion Fomn, 2003 367,573 020 623,253 Q3 il .57
Chalrman and OO Asa Padific " .29
wihi; 1,337
r 2,752
(13 £, 245
il 2184
sl BAdE
(10 Hid i
i 8633
wah. 4,763
LEEU A &
i 33N
wiic 321
mwiic 6,200
(EET] A.363
il: 6,152
aki: 6,195
by HLEES
ik HLEST
ki e
i 21,316
L 21,34
b 213N
i 5821
i 080
i B0
Lewi 42618
................................. L .
2008 = =
lirg Zeliner, 2003 16,502 oaom 205,470 apn W 04
CECHizalth Managamest [ Taq
i T4
ali; 1972
il 7,106
ik 10
ki M
(153 93
| 160
I 4%
i 17
Fii %
b 703
b (A [eE ]
hai: 110
haii; 242
I il
tu: ke
[ 110G
Leii: TG
Leii: T3
bew 23
bevi: 42838
besi: 50,000
2008 = =

1 Thisable inclades wesies and preedted shaves aad agtions Aedd by membess of the GEH, incudieg 1zketed perties. 2 Ko coreeesion rights arecutstanding. 3 Refier to “Mote 31 Equity pamopation
anelather compereazon plars” intae “Fiageoel ivloemation” sexion of this sepatt for mow inbomabon. « GER members wha sSeppes coma daring 2004
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Vested and unvested options held by independent members of the BoD and

by members of the GEB on 31 December 2008/ 2009
Type Muymites of options. “ear of grant Westing dae
3100207
31002007
3100205
3100, 204,
3100200
31002004
3100205
31002005
3100205
25022007
FRO2. 20T
ZE02. 203
5022004
2902, 2004,
902, 2004
2502, 2005
802,205
2502, 2005
8 06. 2005
23 062005
0103, 2004
Q1.03. 2004
003,205
Q1.03. 2005
.00 .00
Q1.03. 2006

Q1032006

01,03, 2004
01037005
01032006

LT
31012006
311006

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(Eos852)
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Expiry date  Sehsoripdon ratin Ske ice

amzmz
3naramz
amzmz
apzmz
apzmz
3nor2mz
3npzmz
3pnzmz
noramz
28022012
28022012
28022012
2802202
28022012
2808.2012
28022012
2802202
2808.2012
28062012
2812.2012
301203

0L

30123

11 UED 21.29

390
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Vested and unvested options held by independent members of the BeD and
by members of the GEB on 31 December 2008/ 2009 (tontinued)

e Hember of optioss tiaat of geant Wity dlate Expiry date  Subscripion s Stiike prica
] 137 2005 05122007 0512 3015 LH CHF 5203
i 79,276 2006 01 03,2007 2802 2016 I CHF 6557
I B350 200 ¥ 03, 2008 2802 016 LH CHF 6557
b f,750 2006 01 03,2009 2802 2016 I CHF G557

1,376.056 200 01 .03, 2008 2B0Z M6 ) LH CHFT257
i 10 2006 03 03,2008 1303 2016 S CHF 6591
Ll 2 200 9 06, 2008 08 .06 I 6 LH CHFE1 34
Iig 70 2006 0B 05, 2008 08092016 o CHF &5 76
I o 06 meizms meazae A CHFETE3
Isi 33,78 2007 01 03,2008 oz I CHF &7 00
il 3377 20 noiwm moranr i CHF&TOD
Ik 33743 207 01 032010 Bz 20T I CHF &7 00
e 1415142 207 11 03,2010 1.1 e T S CHF T3 67
I 13 207 02 03,2008 23207 I CHF&7 08
) a5513 208 01052011 2B.03 208 LH CHF 33 45
Tl F6ZA15 2008 01 032011 B0 2015 I CHF 33 66
Indi 745,950 o ooan | poans i CHE 36 46
Isis 740 2008 01 032011 wemaE 1 CHF 2310
B e 4,000,000 ) 2 0 2008 25002014 x CHE 1010
I 505,000 200 01 03.2012 I

I

issii 540,000 205 11032012 27082019 [

91
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Financial infosmation
LBS AG {Farent Bank)

Loans: granted to members of the BaD en 31 December 2008 /2009
CHE sape vahare inckeatad™

Far the: Other lnans
MName, fusctios’ yoar e Secured boans gransed Told
Kasparilkge, CRarman 009 a 0 i
e L L .
Sergio Marchionze, Senior isdepesdent Direcioe, Yioe Charman plii 2l a ] [
e L L .
Emextn Berianeli, former memies? plii ] - - -
e L S =
Sally Bott, mambes plii ] a a 1]
e L Lo .
Bichel Demard, membes: plii ] E30,000 a 050,000
e Lo S .
PRainar-Marc Frey, meamber plii ] a a 1]
e S .
Brenn Gahrig, membar plii ] o000 a Tl OO
[ e T
Ainz F Godhehera, member plii ] a a 1]
e L S .
‘Gabrinlle: Kaefmann-Kokler, former membar! plii ] - -
e =
[Peser Kzrer, former Chaiman® plii 2l - - -
[ e S i
Hupl P Lesmann, memies: plii ] a a 1]
e L S .
Helmut Pan ke, =ember plii ] a a 1]
e L S .
Wil la= G, Pamelt, me=ber’ plii ] 1207 a 1,260,731
[ e S e
Dizod Sickwell, me=her plii ] a a 1]
e L S o
Peser A Vioear, mesher plii ] a a 1]
e L S .
Joerg \Walle, former mesber ! i - - -
e . L .
Aingregate of al members of the Bol plii ] 1907 a 2,508,731
Aggregetn o =l member of the Bal) 1008 1,206,550 R 3,006,558
1 Ho ks h«rkﬂﬂnmlbuldmnlh of the members of the Bal ot covdtions not costomy n the madiet. 3 Seoumd loars grantsd eor o ther eection iotke B0, 3 inchding thase
merebers of e Bl who seposd down ot the AGK J005.
Loans granted to members of the GEB on 31 December 2006/ 2009
(CHF axrept where indiarag®
Fof the Onket lnans
Mame, fenction’ wear ended Secued kare grastad? Tosal
Nirg ativa, CEQ Wemhth Marageerart. ] s avant e SRR . 5000202
Ptarkus Ll Digthelm, Geoep Gareral Coureal e 2500,000 a 1,900,000
Fogeels of ll rembers of the CRE° ] s IsdseAnt R 1536408
Aggregate of all mashers of the Gi&! 0 T340, 5% Q 7,740, 562

3 Fi b 0 o aed 30 el paties o The reamibess of The GER 36 condTions n Csomany i the Workss, 3 Gearanfies nafuckng thess memtrs o 0 GEB who Sepped deenn
datiig 7009, & Incheding those members of the GEE wo sepped down foring 2008,

3o

360/395



(1)

2010

UBS 20009
2010
26 UBS
2010
(2)
| FRS
| FRS
40
| FRS
| FRS
(1)
| FRS
18
18
US GAAP
18
2008 10

CEO

UBS

UBS

UBS

UBS
UBS

2008

16
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2009 12 31
UBS 20009 201
Lukas Gahwil er (
2010 14 UBS
UBS 2010
33
21
2006 17
|l FRS
24



24
2010

(2)

| FRS

12 —

2007

(3)

| FRS | FRS

| FRS

(4)

| FRS | FRS

Il AS 27
2008 12 26

2010

SPE

SPE

29

22

SPE

2008
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(5)
| FRS | FRS
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Zurich, 31 May 2010

Acknowledgement of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We agree to the inclusion in the Securities Report on Form 8 filed with the Director-General of Kanto Local
Finance Bureau, of our reports dated 4 March 2010 with respect to the UBS AG consolidated financial
statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the UBS AG (Parent Bank)
financial statements and existence of an internal control system.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Dr. Andreas Blumer Jonathan Bourne

Licensed Audit Expert Partner
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To the General Meeting of

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Basel, 4 March 2010

Report of independent registered public accounting firm on
internal control over financial reporting

We have audited UBS AG’s internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2009, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). UBS AG’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting on
page 249. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States of America). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, UBS AG maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of 31 December 2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with Swiss law, Swiss Auditing Standards, International Standards on
Auditing and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States of America), the
consolidated balance sheets of UBS AG as of 31 December 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended 31 December 2009 and notes thereto, of UBS AG and our report dated 4 March 2010
expresses an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Andrew Mclntyre Dr. Andreas Blumer
Licensed Audit Expert Licensed Audit Expert
(Auditor in Charge)
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To the General Meeting of

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Basel, 4 March 2010

Report of the statutory auditor and the independent registered public accounting firm on the
consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of UBS AG which are comprised of the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows, and notes thereto, for each of the three years
in the period ended 31 December 2009 on pages 255 to 370.

Board of Directors’ responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board, and the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The
Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law, Swiss Auditing Standards, International Standards on
Auditing and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States of America).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
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appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of UBS AG at 31 December 2009 and 2008, and the consolidated results of operations and the
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2009 in accordance with IFRS, as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board, and comply with Swiss law.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

We confirm that we meet the Swiss legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act
(AOA) and independence (article 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and article 11 AOA) and that there are no
circumstances incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an
internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the instructions of the Board of Directors.

In accordance with Swiss law, we recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be
approved.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States of America), UBS AG’s internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2009, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated 4 March 2010 expresses an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control over financial reporting.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Andrew Mclintyre Dr. Andreas Blumer
Licensed Audit Expert Licensed Audit Expert
(Auditor in Charge)
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To the General Meeting of

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Basel, 4 March 2010

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements which comprise the balance sheet, income
statement and notes on pages 371 to 392 of UBS AG for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Board of Directors’ responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of Swiss law and the Company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further
responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
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In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 comply with Swiss law and the

Company’s articles of association.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the Swiss legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act
(AOA) and independence (Art. 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and Art. 11 AOA) and that there are no
circumstances incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an
internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Andrew Mclintyre Dr. Andreas Blumer

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert

(Auditor in charge)
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